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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

OPERATING PERFORMANCE DATA e RINBIE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZECEF “E-nE “F-0\F 4% “F-N
For the year ended 31 December RMB'000 RMB1000 Change RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB1000
BET-A=t-HLEE ARET R ARETT g AREFTL ARETT AREFTT
Revenue N 19,576,938 22,002,943 -11.0% 19,155,709 16306375 13647737
Gross profi ES ] 2,707,118 2093437 96% 3,145,825 2439959 2645143
Profit for the year FEER 530,354 922,749 425% 1,167,943 1,174,725 1,201,073
Profit attributable to shareholders R 3E JEA5 & 7 517,065 883726 -415% 1,163,092 1151862 1,187,531
Earnings per share SikAHN
— Basic —HK  RMBARH057T RMBARE09TT 412% RVBARE1277T RMBARE 1267 RMBARE133T
— Diluted —B3%  RMBARM056T RMBARE0IT 43% RMBARE127T AVBARE 16T RMBARE133TT
FINANCIAL POSITION DATA B R MR SR B
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“B0FF “ENF “FN\E “FtF “FF
As at 31 December RMB’000 RMB'000 (Change RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
M=A=1+-H ARET R ARETT 2 AREFTL ARETT AREFT
Total assets BEE 20,157,279 21174661 -48% 18770015 15534431 15.284:349
Non-current assets FRHEE 10,829,540 11374054 48% 9,336,032 7813552 7142656
Current assets RHEE 9,327,739 9,800,607 48% 9433983 7720879 8141693
Total liabilities BafE 11,684,541 13,075,286 -106% 11,933,193 9558718 10,092,905
Current liabilities L 8,011,160 7583220 5.6% 6773423 6420730 7419903
Non-current liabiliies ERPaE 3,673,381 5492066 -331% 5,159,770 3137988 2673002
Net current assets THEETE 1,316,579 2217387 -406% 2,660,560 1,300,149 72179
Net assets EEFE 8,472,738 8099375 46% 6,836,822 5975713 5,191,444
Equity attributable to shareholders B ER FEfHEa% 7,863,267 T4734% 52% 6738637 5910127 5148721
FINANCIAL INDICATORS M&iEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HE+-_A=T—HIFE —ECEE ZE-NF - N\F —ET—+tF ZE—RF
Inventory turnover days FEEERH 95 98 101 87 79
Trade and bill receivables EWE 5 N EERIE
turnover days [AERE 30 27 32 36 35
Trade and bill payables BNESREIERIE
turnover days ISP 61 62 73 78 87
Current ratio RENLL = 1.2 13 14 12 1]
Net debt to equity ratio (Note 1) B B/ FEEMER LT X 0.52 086 088 068 0.80
(MsF1)
Return on equity (Note 2) EmEImE (ffiF2) 7% 12% 18% 21% 26%
Note I:  Based on total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents and M : BRESFEBNEELENRASRASEAEDIN

pledged bank deposits over equity attributable to shareholders at each

year end.

Note 2:

Based on each year's profit attributable to shareholders over the average

Mtaz2 -

of the equity attributable to shareholders at the beginning and ending

of the financial year.
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CORPORATE PROFILE AND STRUCTURE

CORPORATE PROFILE

Texhong Textile Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) (stock code: 2678) is one of the largest cotton
textile manufacturers in the People’s Republic of China (“China” or the
“PRC") and is a leading textile enterprise focusing on manufacturing
high value-added core-spun textile products. The Group is principally
engaged in the manufacture and distribution of quality yarns, grey
fabrics, garment fabrics as well as garments. Since 1997, the Group has
grown rapidly and has over 5,000 customers in China and overseas, with
its sales network spanning across the PRC, Vietnam, North America,
Europe, Brazil, Turkey, Bangladesh, Japan and South Korea. With its sales
headquarter established in Shanghai, the Group has production bases
in operation in the PRC, Vietnam, Turkey, Nicaragua and Mexico
respectively, with major production facilities comprising about 4.1
million spindles and 1,900 weaving and knitting machines and the
related dyeing equipment as of 31 December 2020.

BEFN

RUHHBERMBRAR ([AAR] EREAWNEA
A [ AREE]) (BRI : 2678) BHFEAR
MBE(FEDEANRHHREERz — R
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ERENRRIE
CORPORATE PROFILE AND STRUCTURE

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Texhong Textile Texhong Textie Textiorg ey Texhong Texhong Global
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TN Investment Holdings Limited Investment Holdings s 2l
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: s B T AL prath R ER R
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ERENRRIE
CORPORATE PROFILE AND STRUCTURE

‘Texhong Textile Group Limited
(Stock Code on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 2678)
X SEEARAE
(EBBRFTRHS : 2678)
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EIRBES
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Company’s board of directors (the “Board”), | am RAABREZARREFR(EFE ) MARAK
pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the year ended NARREINAERBE_T -_TF+-_A=1+—
31 December 2020 to the shareholders of the Company. ALEFEMNEFEE -
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ERBRES
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

RESULTS

In 2020, the sudden outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic had an
unprecedented and systemic impact on the global economy. The textile
industry of China, not yet recovered from the impact of the Sino-US
trade conflict, suddenly had to face tremendous challenges, and
battling these obstacles became a matter of survival for many
companies. The pandemic directly affected the normal operation of
production facilities. Even when work and production was resumed,
many companies still faced various difficulties and problems, such as
the resumption of industrial chain upstream and downstream work not
being synchronized, insufficient orders from customers, insufficient
supplies of raw materials and lack of protective resources for COVID-19.
After the effective control of the pandemic in China, the rapid
deterioration of the epidemic situation in various overseas countries has
once again brought the textile industry's export market to a standstill
and a large number of orders have had to be suspended as a result.

At the beginning of the year, the Group adjusted its organizational
structure by establishing a yarn business center and an industrial chain
business center, which are responsible for the Group'’s yarn-related
business and downstream business, including garment fabrics and
garments, respectively. Following the outbreak of the pandemic, the
Group has made great efforts to stabilize production and operations
and had adjusted its strategies regarding product mix and operations
based on the principle of “guarantee employment, guarantee opening,
guarantee cash flow". The Group has also greatly strengthened capital
management, which resulted in the effective digestion of large amounts
of inventory, and achieved the best level of cash flow and debt ratio
seen in recent years. In addition, the raw material price in 2020
experienced sharp ups and downs, which had a great impact on the
gross profit margin of yarns, but the gradual rebound of cotton price in
the second half of the year drove the growth in sales volume and gross
profit margin of yarns. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
sales volume of yarns for the year amounted to more than 750,000
tonnes, representing a slight rise compared with last year. However, due
to the exceptional operating environment during the year, the gross
profit margin of yarn still dropped slightly from 13.5% last year to 13.4%.
Although the downstream business segment was also severely affected
by the pandemic situation overseas, its overall profitability still showed
an improvement as compared to last year after the reforms and the
acquisition made in 2019. The Group's total revenue reached RMB19.6
billion, representing a decrease of approximately 11% from last year.
Profit attributable to shareholders of the Group for 2020 was RMB517
million and basic earnings per share was RMB0.57.

%II‘EE

—ToFF HAEREEHARBNRAEEY
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HRZEZ T HNREERRE - PRERBSIERE
Hl1& - BINEBRIBHRER(CRABITERIRE
ANIMETISER - ATEREMFHERE

REBMPFEAHET T ABEBAR - KLY RER
RO REEEERTL  DRAEREEYEA
BRI RIRETE NN T 5% - Ri5
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B RE  REAR - RESR] MRABETE
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FEERRELREFABARB17ET  SREAR
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ERBRES
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

OUTLOOK

The COVID-19 pandemic has rung alarm bells for the global supply
chain system, forcing companies to reconsider the pressure tolerance of
manufacturing systems facing the global risk. Since 2015, the Group has
adhered to the development strategy of vertical integration of the
industrial chain, encountering many difficulties in the process. However,
such a strategic process has enabled us to gain a new perception and
understanding of the textile industrial chain, which has enabled us to
look outside the box as raw material suppliers and have a macro
perspective of the entire industrial chain. In the future, we will further
leverage our strategic advantages and strengthen our internal operation
management system in order to become better prepared for the ever-
changing market.

In terms of business, despite the difficulties over the past year, we have
further improved our plan and development in respect of downstream
business. Both the knitted garment fabrics business and the woven
garment fabrics business have expansion plans developed during the
year, which are currently in the process of being implemented. It is
expected that the Group's production capacity of knitted garment
fabrics will reach 100 tons per day in 2021. The knitted garment fabrics
business has been able to achieve a decent level of profitability despite
the adverse market condition, and there is a great possibility for future
business growth. Meanwhile, in order to promote more sustainable
textile production, the Group has conducted in-depth research on
relevant environmental protection technologies and equipment, and
has planned to apply them in the production of woven garment fabrics
and garments to establish a technology-oriented product line to drive
the growth of profit.

Following the Group's investment and construction of recent years, the
production capacity and layout of each of its business lines have been
improved. Going forward, it is expected that the capital expenditure will
be gradually reduced, with a focus on improving internal operations
and financial quality of the Group, so as to further reduce the gearing
ratio and achieve a more stable and low-risk profit growth.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Lastly, on behalf of the Board I would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all of our shareholders for giving the Group their care and
support over the years.

Hong Tianzhu
Chairman

12 March 2021
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EHBEWR S

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

The Group is pleased to present its annual results for the year ended 31
December 2020 (the “Year”") to its shareholders. During the Year, the
Group's revenue dropped by 11% to approximately RMB19.6 billion
when compared with last year. Profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company decreased by 41.5% to approximately RMB517 million against
last year. Basic earnings per share also decreased to RMB0.57 from
RMBO0.97 last year.

INDUSTRY REVIEW

According to statistics from the PRC's National Bureau of Statistics, the
aggregate sales achieved by sizeable textile enterprises amounted to
RMB2,277.8 billion in 2020, representing a 6.7% decrease year-on-year,
with profit totaling RMB110.5 billion, up by 7.9% year-on-year. Sizeable
garment and apparel enterprises recorded total sales of RMB1,369.7
billion, representing a year-on-year decrease of 11.3%, with net profit at
RMB64.04 billion, down by 21.3% year-on-year. According to data from
the General Administration of Customs of the PRC, in 2020, textile
products total worth of US$153.8 billion were exported from China,
representing a year-on-year increase of 29.2%, with the value of
garments at US$137.4 billion, representing a year-on-year decrease of
6.4%.

According to statistics from Vietnam Customs, the export volume of
yarn and staple fiber manufactured in Vietnam grew by 1.4% to 1.738
million tonnes in 2020, bringing in revenue of US$3,737 million, down
by 10.5% when compared with 2019. The garment exports decreased
by 9.3% to US$29.81 billion in 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Against the backdrop of the global outbreak of COVID-19, which
affected the economy and people’s lives around the world, the Group's
revenue in 2020 decreased by 11% to RMB19.6 billion as compared with
last year, better than the expected decrease of 20% for the Year as set
out in the interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2020, mainly
due to the recovery of the textile market in the fourth quarter in 2020,
especially for the PRC market. During the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group mainly derived revenue from the sales of yarns, grey
fabrics, garment fabrics and garments, which covered the entire
industrial chain. Revenue from the sale of yarns remained the primary
source of the Group's revenue, accounting for approximately 77.7% of
total revenue for the Year. Revenue from the sale of yarn for the Year
amounted to approximately RMB15.2 billion, representing a decrease of
9.0% when compared with last year, due to the decrease in selling
prices of yarns in the first half of the year. In respect of midstream and
downstream business, under the impact of the global pandemic on
end-user consumption (particularly for the regions outside of China),
the Group achieved sales revenue of RMB4.37 billion, representing a
decrease of 17.3% compared with 2019.
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THBFWRE S
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

In 2019, the market demand of the textile products was seriously
affected by the Sino-US trade friction, although there was a slight
improvement in the market at the end of 2019. However, in late March
2020, due to the impact of the global outbreak of COVID-19, production
capacity of the Group decreased as a result of a change in the product
mix. Consequently, the production facilities of the Group equipped with
approximately 4 million spindles did not operate effectively.
Nevertheless, the Group's staff overcame the difficulties, seized the
opportunities arising from the recovery of the textile market in China in
the fourth quarter, strived to sell its inventories in full swing , and
changed the product mix in order to gradually return to an ideal
condition. The total external sales of yarn remained at a similar level to
the 750,000 tonnes seen last year, with a slight year-on-year increase of
approximately 2,000 tonnes. As the Group adjusted its product mix to
prioritize capacity utilization in times of market turmoil, the gross profit
margin of yarn continued to be affected. However, the recovery in the
fourth quarter partially offset the impact of weak demand in the first half
of the year. As a result, the gross profit margin of yarn for the Year only
decreased by 0.1 percentage point to 13.4% compared with the
corresponding period of the previous year.

As for grey fabrics, following the development of the Group's own
garment fabrics business, internal use of grey fabrics produced by the
Group increased, while the external sales volume decreased from
approximately 79 million meters last year to nearly 66 million meters
this year. The gross profit margin of grey fabrics decreased from 17.2%
in 2019 to 12.9% in 2020.

As for woven garment fabrics, under the pressure of the impact of the
pandemic on both sales orders and production volume, the sales
volume of self-produced products decreased from approximately 100
million meters last year to approximately 88 million meters this year.
The Group's woven garment fabrics business was more significantly
affected by the global pandemic than its other businesses, which was
mainly due to its target customers being outside of the PRC and, to a
lesser extent, employees of different enterprises around the world being
encouraged to work from home under the pandemic, which had a
substantial impact on the demand for woven fabrics apparel. The
trading volume of the Group's woven garment fabrics was also affected
and the sales volume decreased by approximately 16% from
approximately 38 million meters last year to approximately 32 million
meters. Despite such a difficult operating environment, the gross profit
margin of the Group's self-produced woven garment fabrics was
maintained at around 19.5% for the Year.
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THBFWRE S
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The situation faced by knitted garment fabrics and woven garment
fabrics are different. Given that different enterprises around the world
are encouraging employees to work from home, the impact on the
demand for knitted fabrics apparel is relatively low. It is also the Group’s
first business segment to recover during the pandemic. The sales
volume of self-produced knitted garment fabrics for the Year was
approximately 16,000 tonnes, representing a decrease of only
approximately 1,000 tonnes as compared with last year. Following the
successful business restructuring, the gross profit margin of self-
produced knitted garment fabrics has reached 18% for the Year.

After the reform in second half of 2019, the jeanswear business was
concentrated on production bases in Vietnam and Shandong, China,
which are factories with an established earning base, thus the gross
profit margin of self-produced jeanswear increased significantly to
approximately 9.4% compared with last year. In addition, the non-
woven fabrics business is still in its early stages and the products are
mainly used in the production of tissue paper products. In 2020, the
Group launched the first non-woven fabrics production line. With the
other three invested production lines set to be launched gradually in
2021 in order to reduce the average production cost, the gross profit
margin is expected to increase simultaneously.

Despite the severe impact of the global pandemic, the Group in turn
recorded an increase of 0.2 percentage point of overall gross profit
margin to 13.8% as compared with last year under the impact of Sino-
US trade friction. With an average gross profit margin of 11.4% in the
first half of 2020, there was clearly a recovering in the second half of the
year, mainly driven by the recovery of the textile apparel market and the
rebound of the raw material price in the fourth quarter of 2020. With the
exception of the woven garment fabrics business, which may not return
to normal levels until the second quarter of 2021, the Group’s other
business segments had largely resumed relatively normal operations by
the end of 2020. The profit attributable to shareholders for the Year was
RMB517 million, and basic earnings per share was RMB0.57, both
representing a decrease of approximately 41% when compared with
last year. As our business in the midstream and downstream is under
development, in order to maintain business growth while increasing
profitability, and the gross profit margin of woven and knitted garment
fabrics has gradually increased which have potential to exceed the
gross profit margin of yarn sales, we believe that the stability of the
Group's profit and the overall profit level will continue to increase.
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THBFWRE S
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROSPECTS

As at 31 December of 2020, the Group's major production facilities
comprise 4.10 million spindles, 1,900 weaving and knitting machines
and the related dyeing equipment. Of the spindles, 2.51 million were in
the PRC and 1.59 million spindles were in overseas regions. After
recovering from the business impact of the pandemic, the Group will
continue to focus on making the best use of existing capacity in 2021
and to ensure optimal efficiency. With the recovery of the original yarn
product mix, the commencement of expansion of the overseas
production base for woven garment fabrics and the gradual revenue
contributions from the knitted garment fabrics arising from the original
production base in China and new production capacity in Vietnam, and
assuming that the global pandemic gradually come to an end, the Sino-
US trade relationship does not deteriorate further, and there are no
other black swan events affecting the global economy, the Group’s
profitability is expected to improve significantly in 2021, and total sales
revenue is expected to see remarkable growth.

The Group’s main project in progress is the construction of a new
production base for knitted garment fabrics in Vietnam. In addition, the
Group also intends to increase automation in its existing yarn
production base in order to reduce human resources. It is expected that
the Group's business will recover significantly in 2021. Inferred from the
current market conditions, excluding the sales volume of the trading
business, the Group is aiming to sell 840,000 tonnes of yarn, 60 million
meters of grey fabrics, 140 million meters of woven garment fabrics,
30,000 tonnes of knitted garment fabrics and 11 million pieces of
jeanswear in 2021.

On 27 July 2020, the Group was once again named among the “Fortune
500 Chinese Companies 2020", and was also ranked third by the China
Cotton Textile Association among cotton textile enterprises in terms of
comprehensive competitiveness; a strong endorsement of its
continuously expanding business and proven business model. The
Group will continue to work tirelessly and exert every effort to bring
long-term and sustainable returns to its shareholders.
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TEEHRE S
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW Bt 7% 0] B8

Sales HE

During the Year, the sales of the Group mainly comprises the sales of FR - AEENHEETZEREHEDE B - &
yarns, grey fabrics, non-woven fabrics and garment fabrics, as well as i RERERATRE c HBBBEAREENEE
jeanswear. Yarns continued to be the Group’s major product. With the Eme AR X FHEHEEBRTH  —SE-FF
decrease of selling prices of yarns in the first half of the year, the sales of REBWZRIBERER T —NLFTFEL92.0% - T5
yarns decreased by about 9.0% in 2020 as compared to that of 2019. AAEESEERMNEEDN -

Sales analyses of the Group by products are shown below.

8,738.5 [l 8,651.5
l 150.0

RMB million
AREEEBT
9,000

8,000

7,000
6,000
5,000
4,000 8,062.8
3,000 6,463.7
2,000
1,000
0

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
—B-%E —TNF —Bo%E —TNF —B-%E —TNF —B-%FE —TNF —B-%E —TNF
Stretchable Other yarns Fabrics Jeanswear Non-woven fabrics
core-spun yarns Hithihig A R E R TR EHT
BHELLER
W nyans W S W Sinceoeorey [ Dhwr oy [ e oament [T Kives oo I oorsecer [ (00 e
BHBEYER BT HAtb I Am e E R S ER fsuri)

Revenue
2020 2019 change

—2-® —T-NE oN -

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT

Stretchable core-spun yarns BN BESHLR 6,463,724 8,062,776 -19.8%
Other yarns Hitngh 4z 8,738,517 8,651,516 1.0%
Stretchable grey fabrics & AR 323,177 560,477 ~42.3%
Other grey fabrics = ih7 173,624 150,019 15.7%
Woven garment fabrics B R 2,332,003 2,694,451 -13.5%
Knitted garment fabrics FHEmE R 803,873 900,225 -10.7%
Jeanswear A IR 680,312 983,479 -30.8%
Non-woven fabrics mamm 61,708 - -
Total =t 19,576,938 22,002,943 -11.0%
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THEBEWE S

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Sales (Continued)

Sales Volume

$HE

Stretchable core-spun yarns and other yarns
BHRBHRREMOR

Br 7518 (&)
WE ()

[l Stretchable core-spun yarns 3 /1 8540 43
W Other yarns 404

Tonne 1§ ¢ 12.1%
4 13.1% 446,349
351,061 398,157
305,026 ‘ ‘ ‘
2020 2019 2020 2019
—E-BF —E-NEF —E-BF —E-NF

Stretchable grey fabrics, Other grey fabrics, Woven garment fabrics, Knitted garment fabrics,

Jeanswear and Non-woven fabrics

BWHTE  HttE - REEE - $EER - FARERES®
Million metres/Tonne/Million pieces/Tonne
BEXK/WE/ BB

¥ 13.2%

120.4

J 36.2%
59.7
M 43.1%
38.1
27.9
1 | L

¥ 3.8%

17,541 18230

‘ ‘ ‘ $39.4%  34m
17.0
10.3
a §# |

Stretchable grey fabrics 3& /) #£ 77
Other grey fabrics H A7
Woven garment fabrics # fE %}
Knitted garment fabrics $t# @
Jeanswear {1 REE

Non-woven fabrics #4777

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020

2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

CECRF CR-NF ZBCEFCE-NF CBCRF CR-AF ZBSRF CR-NF ZRCBEF CE-AF ZESRF ZB-NF
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TEEHRE S
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) 5F 75 1 R )
Sales (Continued) HE#E)
Sales volume Selling price Gross profit margin
HE &E ERlE
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
“ECBE TN B —F-NF ZFCBE TR
Stretchable core-spunyams B ELTNAD 4R (1,
(Tonne/RMB per tonne) AEEEH) 305,026 351,061 21,191 22967 16.8% 14.8%
Other yarmns (Tonne/RMB Hipshiz (s,
per tonne) AREZH) 446,349 398,157 19,578 21,729 10.8% 12.3%
Stretchable grey fabrics (Million B 13 (HEX /
metres/RMB per metre) AREFK) 38.1 59.7 8.5 94 12.0% 15.2%
Other grey fabrics (Million Hinkh (BEX/
metres/RMB per metre) AREERK) 27.9 195 6.2 77 14.6% 24.6%
Woven garment fabrics (Million  # & EH (B&EX,/
metres/RMB per metre) AREEK) 120.4 1387 19.4 194 16.5% 16.6%
Knitted Garment fabrics (Tonne/ 45 B £} (14,
RMB per tonne) AEEEH) 17,541 18,230 45,828 49382 17.7% 12.7%
Jeanswear (Million pieces/ ETRE(BER/
RMB per piece) AREGH) 103 17.0 66.0 579 2.2% 54%
Non-woven fabrics (Tonne/ #4577 (1 //
RMB per tonne) AEEEH) 3,441 - 17,933 - 3.3% -
The Chinese textile market is the Group's major market, accounted for PESGETISEARENEEMS  HAEE T

70.4% of our total sales of 2020. The percentage of Group's exports has
experienced a decrease as compared to 2019 due to the impact of
global pandemic in 2020.

As at the date of this annual report, the Group has more than 5,000
customers. As the Group produces differentiated products, the Group
does not rely on orders from a particular customer. The ten largest
customers of the Group only accounted for 12.8% of the total sales of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Gross profit and gross margin

For the year ended 31 December 2020, gross profit of the Group
decreased from RMB2.99 billion to RMB2.71 billion, representing a
decrease of 9.6% as compared to that of 2019. The overall gross profit
margin increased by 0.2 percentage point to 13.8% as compared to that
of 2019. Driven by the recovery of the textile and garment market and
the rebound of the raw material price in the fourth quarter of 2020, the
average gross profit margin in the second half of 2020 has rebounded
from the bottom as compared to 11.4% in the first half of 2020.

“EFREEENT04% c S _TFZR2HER
F&  AREHOWAIR-T-NFEMRE

RAFHREH AEBEHEFEFES000FK - BN
AEBNEEZRCERRER - BASEL MK
BE-XPHNFIE BE_Z-_TF+_A=1+—
BEFEAEETAREPEEAEEAHEERN
12.8% °

EFNREFRR
HE-Z-_ZE+_A=+—HIFE KAEEH
%ﬂm_? nEAEmE9Fﬁﬁv%%§AE
B 271187t BREMNER-_T—NF EF021F

“%imw~ R_T_TFRENEEHERE
THEER R EMEHER DA TS - =T =%
FEFFRNAFHENE S _FFTEF
BRAKEBFT
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TEEHNRE S
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Cost structure

For the year ended 31 December 2020, cost of sales dropped by 11.3%
to RMB16.9 billion due to the decrease in sales. Raw materials cost
accounted for about 74.6% of the total cost of sales of 2020. Cotton is
our major raw material.

The breakdown of our cost of sales in 2019 and 2020 is shown below:

Consumables
A an

23%
Utilities

Others
Htt

1.3%
71%

Depreciation
e

45%

Direct Labour
& >

BTHE
10.2%

Raw Materials
AR

74.6%

2020
—ECEF

Selling and distribution costs

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's selling and
distribution costs amounted to RMB752.3 million, representing a
decrease of 11.2% when compared to that of 2019. It was mainly due to
the decrease in overall sales revenue and sales volume of grey fabrics
and garment fabrics, which led to the decrease in salaries of sales
personnel and transportation and storage costs.

General and administrative expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s general and
administrative expenses amounted to RMB1,034 million, which
represented an increase of 2.3% when compared with 2019, and
accounted for 5.3% of the Group's revenue. The increase was mainly
due to a business acquired by the Group during 2019, the general
expenses of which were consolidated into the Group for the entire 2020
fiscal year.
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THBFWRE S
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Cash flows

Br O B8 ()
BE&RE

2020 2019

—ECEF —FE-NF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARBTF T

Net cash generated from operating activities RESEENTRIR G F5E 3,300,785 2,418,356
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBERE 558 (577,713) (1,939,288)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities g8&SEB) (FT#E), FriSIR &85 (1,870,318) 297,070
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year RERNE S KIBSEEY 2,683,613 1,830,859

For the year ended 31 December 2020, net cash generated from
operating activities of the Group amounted to RMB3,300.8 million,
which represents a significant increase comparing with 2019 mainly
due to the improvement in working capital management and relatively
low level of receivables and inventories maintained by the Group to
cope with the severe market environment in 2020. Net cash used in
investing activities amounted to RMB577.7 million, which was mainly
used for the payment of expenditures for yarn, garment fabrics and
non-woven fabrics projects under construction in Mainland China and
overseas production bases in Vietnam and Americas. During the Year,
net cash used in financing activities amounted to RMB1,870.3 million,
which was mainly due to early partial repayment of bank borrowings by
the Group due to the improved operating environment in the second
half of 2020.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's bank and cash balances (including
pledged bank deposits) amounted to RMB2,944.2 million (as at 31
December 2019: RMB1,852.3 million). The Group's inventories decreased
by RMB1,304.4 million to RMB3,795.7 million and our trade and bills
receivables increased by RMB200.9 million to RMB1,735.6 million as at
31 December 2020 (as at 31 December 2019: RMB5,100.1T million and
RMB1,534.7 million respectively). The inventory turnover days and trade
and bills receivables turnover days were 95 days and 30 days
respectively, compared to 98 days and 27 days in 2019. The inventory
turnover days were lower, mainly due to the market recovery in the
fourth quarter of 2020 and remarkable increase in sales of the Group,
resulting in a lower inventory level at the end of the year. The turnover
days of trade and bills receivables were slightly higher than the level of
last year, mainly due to the slowdown in the collection of receivables
from some overseas customers as a result of the outbreak of COVID-19.

Trade and bills payables of the Group decreased by RMB383.2 million to
RMB2,652.7 million as at 31 December 2020 (as at 31 December 2019:
RMB3,035.9 million), the payable turnover days was 61 days, compared
to 62 days in 2019. The payable turnover days was nearly the same as
last year.
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THBFWRE S
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liquidity and financial resources (Continued)

The total bank borrowings of the Group decreased by RMB1,221.5
million to RMB7,063.1 million as at 31 December 2020. Current bank
borrowings increased by RMB477.9 million to RMB3,837.5 million while
non-current bank borrowings decreased by RMB1,699.4 million to
RMB3,225.6 million. The increase in the proportion of current bank
borrowings was mainly due to the financing for working capital for the
Group's new production capacity. In the fourth quarter of 2020, the
operating environment improved, and the Group repaid some non-
current bank borrowings in advance, which reduced the overall liability
level of the Group.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the key financial ratios of the Group
were as follows:

BA 5B (@)
hBESRABER(H)
REB-BFI A=A ARBORGER

BEBH D ARE12215BTE AR 7063118 7T
MENRITEEEMARK 4779187 /\E’%sys
1870 MIERBMITEERR D AR 16,994 87T
ZEAREE322568TT - MBIRITIEEA L HIIEINE
ERAAEEMEHENIEMEEECRENE -
—ETHEFNEE  KERBEANE  A%KE
RAMEE T MO ERBRITEE - BIETEEELE
BB EKF -

RZFZZEFR-F-NFTZA=1T—H &K%
B EEHBLENT

2020 2019

—EIEF —E-NF

Current ratio PE S 1.16 129
Debt to equity ratio' BEERLL R 0.90 117
Net debt to equity ratio? BEFERERLE? 0.52 0.86

! Based on total borrowings over equity attributable to shareholders

2 Based on total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents and pledged
bank deposits over equity attributable to shareholders

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's total bank borrowings amounted
to RMB7,063.1 million, among which RMB1,846.3 million (26.1%) was
denominated in Renminbi, RMB1,873.8 million (26.5%) was
denominated in United States dollars ("US$” or “USD") and RMB3,343.0
million (47.4%) was denominated in Hong Kong dollars ("HKS” or "HKD").
These bank borrowings borne interest rates ranging from 1.0% to 5.1%
perannum (2019: 2.1% to 4.9%).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has outstanding current bank
borrowings of RMB3,837.5 million (2019: RMB3,359.6 million). The
increase in current bank borrowings was mainly used for working
capital for the Group’s new production capacity.

In respect of the Group's borrowings, the Group has to comply with
certain restrictive financial covenants.
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THBFWRE S
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Borrowings (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, bank borrowings of RMB353.6 million (as at 31
December 2019: 520.8 million) were secured by bills receivable with a
net book amount of RMB160 million (as at 31 December 2019: nil) and
bank deposits with a net book amount of RMB200 million (as at 31
December 2019: 8.00 million), and none were secured by machinery
equipment and inventories (As at 31 December 2019: the machinery
and equipment with a net book amount of RMB709.5 million and
inventories with a total amount of RMB66.58 million).

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and Vietnam. Most of the Group's
transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB, US$ and
HKS. Foreign exchange risk may arise from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations. The Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk is
mainly attributable to its borrowings and raw material procurement
denominated in USS$ or HKS. The Group manages its foreign exchange
risks by performing regular reviews and closely monitoring its foreign
exchange exposures.

To mitigate the depreciation risk of RMB, the Group has purchased
certain amount of currency option contracts and currency swap
contracts so that a significant portion of currency exposure is hedged
against.

Capital expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the capital expenditure of the
Group amounted to RMB539.8 million (2019: RMB2,101 million). It
mainly related to the production capacity of yarns, garment fabrics and
non-woven fabrics under construction in China, Vietnam, Americas and
Turkey during the period under review.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

Disclosure pursuant to Rule 13.18 of the Rules (the “Listing
Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

As announced by the Company on 20 April 2016, by an agreement
dated 20 April 2016 (2016 Facility Agreement”) entered into by, among
others, Texhong Galaxy Technology Limited (“Texhong Galaxy”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as borrower and a syndicate
of banks and financial institutions as lenders, the lenders have agreed to
grant a facility (“2016 Facility”) in the aggregate principal amount of up
to US$103,000,000 to finance the development of Texhong Galaxy's
production plant in Haiha District, Quang Ninh Province, Vietnam. The
2016 Facility shall be fully repaid in April 2023 and is guaranteed by the
Company.
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THBFWRE S
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Disclosure pursuant to Rule 13.18 of the Rules (the “Listing
Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(Continued)

The 2016 Facility Agreement contains a requirement that Mr. Hong
Tianzhu shall maintain, directly or indirectly, the status of the largest
individual shareholder of the Company and maintain the position of
chairman of the Group. A breach of such requirement will constitute an
event of default under the 2016 Facility Agreement, and as a result, the
2016 Facility is liable to be declared immediately due and payable. The
occurrence of such circumstance may trigger the cross default
provisions of other banking/credit facilities available to the Group and,
as a possible consequence, these other facilities may also be declared to
be immediately due and payable.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company is in compliance with
the 2016 Facility Agreement.

Human resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total workforce of 38,545
employees (as at 31 December 2019: 41,108), of whom 19,707
employees were located in the sales headquarters and our
manufacturing plants in Mainland China. The remaining 18,838
employees were stationed in regions outside Mainland China including
Vietnam, Cambodia, Turkey, Nicaragua, North America, Hong Kong of
China and Macao of China. The Group will continue to optimize its
human resources structure and offer a competitive remuneration
package to its employees. As the Group's success is dependent on the
contribution of a group of skillful and motivated employees who form
functional departments, the Group is committed to creating a learning
and sharing culture in the organization, placing strong emphasis on the
training and development of individual staff and team building.

Dividend policy

The Board intends to maintain a long term, stable dividend payout ratio
of about 30% of the Group’s net profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company, providing shareholders with an equitable
return. The Board has resolved to distribute a final dividend of 20 HK
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members on 12 May 2021 and
will be payable on or about 27 May 2021, subject to the approval by the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company on 3 May 2021. No interim dividend was declared by the
Company during the year of 2020.

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP

The following are the key risks that the Group considers to be of great
significance to the Group in its current status. These risks may have
adverse effect on the Group's business.

For the possible impact of each risk on the Group should it occur, we

have made a detail description and set down corresponding control
measures and mitigation plan to manage the risk.
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THBFWRE S
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued)

The impact of risk relating to the business of the Group will change over
time. The size, complexity and coverage of our business and the
changing environment in which the Group operates also mean that the
list cannot be an exhaustive list of all material risks that could affect the
Group.

REBEWEKR@RE @)
SAEBEEHARORROYLEMBRIES - R
MERBRIE  ERL TN ERE N R LIE S
OB b BREUIIR TR E HA TS
AEEMHEAAR -

Major control measures
and risk mitigation

FREEHEREREER

Risks description

g g

Changes of risk
level from last year

BB FE EFE{L

Business concentration

REKT

Product concentration: The Group has
established its market position as a
manufacturer of high value-added core-spun
textile products and core-spun yarn is the major
earning source of the Group. In the event of any
change in fashion trend, customers may prefer
other textile materials. Competition in such
market may also intensify suddenly. If the Group
fails to respond to the change in an efficient and
effective manner, the profitability of the Group
may be adversely affected.

Geographical concentration: The Group has
several production bases located in the
Mainland China, which is the major market of
the Group and, thus, the Group is subject to the
economic, political and social condition and
change in domestic demand for the products of
the Group in China.

EnEd  ARECEmEREYEEAS
MMEESHEERREFNMA - 815
DEBRBAEEFIZRTE - WERKRHAR
BREME - TP BEERTEMSE
Wk XEEZMIENHRFERA ﬁ%ﬁ/ﬁﬂl
FU - RS E AR AL AR A ke fE

REBEMAMNENIGZTHTE -

s REEEFRBEAMES S EE
EfE  WEHBERNMAREBEEMS
Ht AR BRI R ELE - Buafit gt
AARAEBERNPEBRANE RN
R 2 o

Enhance customer communication with an
outstanding marketing team which thoroughly
and promptly understands the requirements of
customers

Step up cooperation with raw material suppliers
and monitor the market trend of change in new
textile materials

Boost input for research and development team
and improve product functionality and develop
new products in response to market demands
Explore downstream industries and increase the
contribution of downstream products

Facilitate the development of import and export
business continuously to tap into overseas markets
Promote diversified development in the industry
50 as to survive under adverse macro-environment,
in view of the fact that the textile industry is large
in scale despite its vulnerability to the economic
and social environment

FREFOMSEHEN - MRETFER
xn REEREPHEX
IR RFREEENAE - BIEMSHHEY

HEZHEL
MAMBEBERRA - BHSH RS EERDEE
FABHER

AERTHESR  BMTHERNLE
TETNRE L D XBNFEE - RIS
BAMBITRDHRIEERHEREFE
BRRERBREKN  BRETEAZTLER
BHENRERETFNZERET LR

)

Causes of the trend:
Global outbreak of COVID-19
still affects the textile retail
industry in the European
countries and the United
States. As the Group's
business is concentrated in
the textile industry, it is
difficult to completely avoid
the operational risks brought
about by such circumstance.
The uncertainty of the U.S.
policies towards China may
affect the textile industry in
China. The Mainland China is
still the major market of the
Group, which brings certain
operating risks.
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THBFWRE S
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued) AEBENE KRR &)

Major control measures Changes of risk
Risks description and risk mitigation level from last year
g pu TEEEREREARYE REATRLFERE
Risk of fluctuation of cotton prices
BRIEERRE R
Cotton is the major production material of the Closely monitor the dynamics of cotton futures >

Group and the fluctuation of cotton prices may
not align with fluctuation of end-product prices
at all times. In the event of intense fluctuation of
cotton prices, the gross profit margin of the
Group will be heavily affected.

RIETARETENEERE  BAEBH
HO 5 B 18 [ T — T B4R 3 2 e ) (B AR IR ED
T2RAY - WEREERBIRILD - S
ARBEEFREREATE

Foreign exchange and interest risk

SNERFERB

Fluctuation of exchange rate may result in
material losses on foreign currency and affect
the raw material procurement costs and
financing costs of the Group. In the event of
intensified fluctuation of the exchange rate of
USD/RMB, the profitability of the Group may be
subject to material uncertainties.

In the event of increase in prevailing interest
rates of banks, liabilities at floating rates may
cause an increase in financing costs of the
Group.

EXREABEEHEAINERL FEX
SERNRHRBRAARBEXE - W5
En/ARBHEZRSHNE - AEEOR
MEEN T RERS EEREATREE M

WERTRAIME EH - FBHEINAE
HEEHARERE K AL

and supply and demand balance and correlation
in the spot market and hedge risks mainly through
measures like maintaining stable procurement and
inventory strategies

Diversify the development of the synthetic fiber
category and reduce the Group's reliance on the
cotton category

ROMIRTEEDAURRETSNMUE >
THERAEYE  TEUARETNRERFY EEY
S S s SR R B
HICBER BN  REAEELHEY S
Bk

Foster communication with financial institutionsand €%
market analysis institutions to interpret the dynamics
of financial market and make specific adjustments to
financing structure

Increase loans in RMB to reduce the ratio of loans in
USD to directly mitigate risks

Lock up exposure of liabilities in foreign currencies,
including foreign liabilities arising from daily operation
and financing, using foreign exchange financial
products, such as forward contracts and options
Closely monitor various important economic data
published by the People’s Bank of China and the
Federal Reserve and keep abreast with its interest rate
policy

Obtain quotations for interest rate swap from financial
institutions regularly and utilize financial instruments
in a timely manner to switch from floating to fixed
interest rate

s R KRR TISOTREBNER  BE >
TRISHA - SHHENRERE SR EBEE)
EMARBEFARBETERLY - B&E
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THBFWRE S
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued) REEWERERE @)

Major control measures Changes of risk
Risks description and risk mitigation level from last year
B H TEREERER BB K BB PR EFR1L

Financing risk

MERR

The business scale of the Group is relatively
large, but it also seizes the opportunities to
increase its investment with higher financing
needs. In the event that the financial institutions
which provide the existing facilities cease to
offer such financing to the Group or banking
facilities on similar terms and the Group fails to
obtain alternatives, the Group may not have
sufficient funds for its commitment of capital
projects and may restrict or hinder the business
operation of the Group. In the event that the
operating environment deteriorates, it may even
affect the operation of the existing business of
the Group.

AEEEBHRERKA - AR B EIIE—L
BEENRE  ARSORERE - HER
HEARENSREBE LA EERMK
ARBELBLUGFORTRE  MAK
B ARRERFHAAE  WAKERTHE
ESERWNESARNEARARA  BM
AT REMR Bk PR AR B XL E - B
EREB EEAREFEINAKERE

Enhance the transparency of the Group's operation
for banks’ understanding and maintain good
working relationship between the Group and
financial institutions

Monitor various financing indicators in real-time
and provide timely alerts to ensure compliance in
respect of various indicators

Diversify the portfolio of financial institutions and
financing products

Devise a reasonable spread for financing with
different terms to strike a balance between
financing costs and risks

RRRITHREEETHRERNERE - #
EHARE AR BB ERE
ERNERSERERS  RERE  BERER
EIFTEN
ENRERENREERESNSHT
AREETFHMRNEE  REMEXALE
BERER
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Unchanged
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THBFWRE S

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued) REBWE KRR @)

Major control measures Changes of risk
Risks description and risk mitigation level from last year
B H TEREERRR AR K RBKFREFR1L

Customer credit management risk

EFEREERAR

The Group focuses on producing a wide range
of products and does not rely on a particular
individual customer. The Group works with
more than 5,000 customers from an enormous
and widespread portfolio. As a result of the
unfavourable market environment and request
from part of the customers to extend credit
terms, the Group is facing a risk of the
receivables turning into bad debits.

REEULEESASBENERAEY T
ERNEE—KF - AEBHEEZFE5000
R BPRZAMEIMOR - ARTHER
B - N EEHOEPERERERE -
REBEEEKEETOEZERR

Monitor and evaluate credit terms granted to
customers regularly

Monitor the collectability of receivables in real-
time and provide alerts and warnings for amount
overdue and customers with abnormal business
operation

Closely monitor market dynamics and operation of
customers to devise plan for customer visit and
collect the latest information of customers
Enhance customer reconciliation system

Adopt collectability of receivables as a criterion of
staff performance assessment to promote staff
members’ awareness of payment demand
Arrange export credit insurance for all overseas
customers with newly established relationship
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Causes of the trend:
Increasing business volume
and business type lead to
increasing total receivables
Tougher policies implemented
by foreign governments on
China spurs operation risk for
Chinese manufactures
Global outbreak of COVID-19
still affects the operation and
cash flow of brand customers,
chain supermarkets and
retailers
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THBFWRE S

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued) AEBHEXRRE #)

Major control measures Changes of risk
Risks description and risk mitigation level from last year
¢ TEEERER AR K REAERLFR1

Product liability risk
EmEERE

The Group offers a wide range of products and
its portfolio is ever-expanding, creating a huge
risk of product liability for the Group. Although
the Group has not suffered any material losses
from product liability claim, there have been
individual claims from customers in respect of
product quality.

AEBEERmEES  BFmBEAEEN -
HEAGEEMEETRTERNER - #
AAEERARERETEHEMEAE
X BERFERPHREREENMERNR
BEMF-

Taxrisk

B R

The operation presence of the Group covers
various countries and regions, including the
Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau, Vietnam,
Turkey and Americas. In the course of tax
planning and daily operation, we are subject to
the following tax risks:
Risk of tax incompliance caused by
misunderstanding of regional tax policies;
The interpretation of tax policies and the
legal conformity of tax preparation must be
confirmed by the tax administration
authority. In the course of such confirmation,
the enforcement of tax administration may
be different.

ALEBREERERETEAN - FE
BPT - ME - THEAREMNEZERKNM
B ERBEILEEELRED  HME
&MTM%HB

i@ R EBORIER B R MELNT

BERER

mﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁmﬁgﬂ AEUTE
SEFBITHEHPINER - FE—HER

Lﬁ¢ MBTRIVEAREHRRE °

Increase efforts on quality control and devise
improvement solutions for quality fluctuation
Control production process using state-of-the-art
measurement equipment and online quality
control system

Improve production technology training for staff
members and cultivate responsibility awareness of
plant production staff and management members
ateach level

Actively reach out to customers for product liability
incidents and coordinate for resolution and hold
relevant staff accountable internally

MAEELEFENEVHELENEEREE
TTRHE T R
FRLENRAESRERESRH RS - 8
EmEERBRETES

EINE TAERMNE - REIHEEAS
REREBABHETER
RERRTEHERTFPERER  HARKE -
HNBRBBABERF

Engage financial officers familiar with local tax
policies and regulations to conduct tax audit and
handle tax examination of the government
Engage professional local tax consultation
institutions for consultations on tax compliance
advices, tax incentive policies and tax preparation
solutions

Liaise with local tax authority frequently to have
thorough understanding of change in tax policies
and policy interpretation, thereby reducing risks of
tax incompliance and enforcement of tax
administration

%%%%%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ%MﬁAéﬁﬁ
BBEZE  BHBRRBRE
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Causes of the trend:
Increased product portfolio
More stringent requirements
on product quality and
differentiation from customers

)

FMRBENERR
g
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Causes of the trend:
Intensifying tax regulations in
different countries
Increasing international
coverage of operation
presence, resulting in
mounting overseas tax risk

)
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THBFWRE S
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued) AEBENE KRR &)

Major control measures Changes of risk
Risks description and risk mitigation level from last year
g pu TEEEREREARYE REATRLFR1E

Legal and other regulatory risk

ERREMEERR

As a listed company on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the
Group must comply with the “Securities and
Futures Ordinance” and the “Listing Rules” of the
Stock Exchange as well as the laws and
regulations in places which the Group operates
in. As social and economic environment evolves,
many countries and relevant authorities
continue to promulgate laws and rules to
update economic matters, such as corporate
governance, foreign investment, commerce, tax
and trade. The introduction or amendments of
these laws and regulations may adversely affect
the business and prospects of the Group.

ARBER—MREEHEXHMERA
A ([BERpr)) L AR BAET(EHFR
S RPDMBE A ERRBDARAEE
RERmEIZRER - BELEER
RENZ SEUANEBRES TEHR
MEHMDBER  BIMNE  BE  BBX
BHSRBSHARRAY - LR
BOEMMFIE B EG A e W AR E X
FAISERAETE -

Energy supply risk
BERGtER R

Electricity consumption of the Group's
production process is huge and electricity
shortage may adversely affect the operation of
production facilities of the Group.

ARBREEBETRAXENEN &
NEEERAEHARELERENES
ERARIFE -

Engage qualified legal advisors or consultation
institutions to review and provide advices on
relevant documents to ensure legal compliance
The company secretary is responsible for offering
advices to the board of directors and board
committees in respect of the latest legal,
regulatory and governance matters and ensuring
their awareness of such matters

RBREREARMNARZBR LKA BEENIEMA
XELREER  BREWEESREK
ARMERRNESERESZESUEN
HOER - BEREAEERMEE R LEREF
BEZEFEE

Equip production factories subject to potential
electricity shortage with generators to minimize
the duration of electricity shortage

Conduct technological renovation on equipment
to reduce energy consumption

Liaise with the government to seek permit for
uninterrupted electricity supply

RARHRENEROEETREHEEER
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Unchanged

4=4

>

Unchanged

4=4
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THBFWRE S
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued) AEENE KRR &)

Major control measures Changes of risk
Risks description and risk mitigation level from last year
¢ TEEERER AR K REAERLFR1

Human resources risk

ANEFRRR

The Group operates in a labour-intensive
industry. While our new plant, with more
advanced production facilities, has helped to
reduce our deployment of labour force to a
certain extent, our need in manpower remains
relatively high compared to some other
industrial segments. If we experience any labour
shortage or technical inadequacy of its labour
force, the efficiency in utilization of our
production facilities will be impaired, and our
profitability will be affected as a result.

The Group has been expanding its operation
abroad. The cultural difference between our
foreign and Chinese employees may bring risk
to the regular and normal operation of our
Company.

ARBFRITERFDERULTE &R
MIHEETERTENEERE £
ERELRETST - BB EMITE
HRETHFRERAR T - EABTRER
ABEERETESEHEEREMN AR
KR EMPEAREOAFES -

AEEBINIBETHBEA - BINETHP
BB THXCERAEALENLRE
BHRRER -

Commence effective performance-based unit
count in recognition of the principle of ‘better
reward comes with greater contribution’

Expand the scope of staff training to create a
highly efficient and capable workforce

Prepare and work further ahead on any decisions
related to employees and that any issue which
may arise will be promptly dealt with

Address issue concerning the conditions of our
canteen and staff quarters, enhance the quality of
our employees’ livelihood, and improve our
backup supporting service

Train up and enhance the management capability
of our management staff, roll out skill and
capability reinforcement programme, strengthen
the sense of belonging and honour of our staff
Improve staff retention through maintaining and
expanding our presence in the locality

RHFEREN T BRESZENRA
BABTHIEE  EEEEE THAEASN

)

Causes of the trend:
The COVID-19 epidemic has
reduced the movement of
people and increased the risk
of understaffing
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THBFWRE S

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued) AEBENE KRR &)

Major control measures Changes of risk
Risks description and risk mitigation level from last year
¢ TEERERRERYEER REATRLFR1E

Environmental protection compliance risk

RREAAR

The Group's production process is subject to a
wide range of the environmental protection
laws and regulations in various countries and
territories. The Group has not been subject to
any fines or penalties concerning environmental
pollution in the past. However, there can be no
assurance that governments of any countries
and territories will not introduce new laws and
regulations to impose stricter control on
environmental pollution in the future.
Additionally, the risk faced by the Group may
also increase as a result of investments in
downstream sectors.

Changes in existing environmental protection
laws and regulations may require the Group to
incur substantial expenditure to upgrade its
existing environmental protection facilities and
the profitability of the Group may be adversely
affected.

ARBLEERERAETEEIMRARE
REEERIGD - FEBHEBEY ERR
BRAMBIRITUEES - BRL TR
BEEFIMEBFTIERBRSIAEZERE
ERBRFSROFNERRIED] - RN A&
B0 F 8 T ERIRE T AT BESE p0 B B R
B

RAERREBRGHHREE e
SEELREANAS  UWRAEREBRE
RERBORRER  NERENBFIE
AR ARIFE -

Selectively pick our suppliers, enter into purchase
agreements with suppliers which guarantee the
raw materials supplied are in compliance with
environmental protection standard (in particular
dyestuff and chemicals)

Establish a factory internal check system and
procedure in compliance with product-wise
regular core environmental protection standard,
set up a highly regulated control system and
strictly implement it

Pay attention to news about development in
environmental regulations, cause new factories to
operate in strict compliance with any new
regulations and existing factories to transform and
upgrade their facilities in order to meet with
environmental protection standard

BRHER  BRERRIRERIRRER
HtER®  LERMBRCBERTE
BRUERMBRZORREEOIHRERESL
2 - BUABNERGELBRERNT
BIRBERTENEHES  SRIETIH
BURIRBRANARIT - RN E TREERETH
ERRITAR - ERFAIRRA RIRE

t

Causes of the trend:
Increase in number of dyeing
factories and higher risk in
environmental governance
Governments of different
countries tighten its control
over environmental protection,
which may affect the
production operation of
business enterprises

)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate
governance with an emphasis on the principles of transparency,
accountability and independence. The Board believes that good
corporate governance is essential to the success of the Group and the
enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE (THE “CG
CODE")

The Company is committed to maintaining high level of corporate
governance and has steered its development and protected the
interests of its shareholders in an enlightened and open manner. The
Board comprises five executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. The Board has adopted the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code Provisions”) set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2020 (the
"Year”), the Company had complied with the Code Provisions.

THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises eight Directors and its composition is set
out as follows:

Executive Directors:

Hong Tianzhu (Chairman)

Zhu Yongxiang (Vice Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)

Tang Daoping

Hui Tsz Wai

JiZhongliang

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”):
Tao Xiaoming
Cheng Longdi
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA
(PRACTISING), ACA, CTA(HK), FHKIoD

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
"Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 52 to 55. There
was no relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship) among members of the Board.

The Company has three INEDs representing more than one-third of the
Board. At least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise
under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Board has received from each
of the INED an annual confirmation of his independence and considers
that all the INEDs are independent under the guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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T R MH, FCCA, FCPA
(PRACTISING), ACA, CTAHK), FHKIoD
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THE BOARD (Continued)

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group, and to review and
approve the Group’s annual and interim results. During the Year, four
Board meetings and one general meeting were held and attendance of
each Director at the Board meetings and the general meeting is set out
as follows:

EE2 5
ETeTHBHTE  HRASE Y BREBEEUR
LB NBIERE  UEMMUEAEE Z2FERF
HRSAE o MER S DRTIIAESERER—KR
FAG SEFHRETESERREAGIER
mE

Number of Number of
Board General
meetings meetings
attended/held attended/held
HES HES
BUESE BITRR
BERRH RERH
Executive Directors: HITES
Hong Tianzhu HRA

(Chairman) (£/E) 4/4 11
Zhu Yongxiang (Vice Chairman and KXKFE (BIEBFETEAAE)

Chief Executive Officer) 4/4 0/1
Tang Daoping I FERE 4/4 0/1
Hui Tsz Wai R 4/4 1/1
Ji Zhongliang HER 3/4 0/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BIUFHITES:

Cheng Longdi 2R 4/4 0/1
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA T R MH, FCCA, FCPA

(PRACTISING), ACA, CTA(HK), FHKIoD (PRACTISING), ACA, CTA(HK), FHKIoD 4/4 1/1

Tao Xiaoming ¥ H A 4/4 11

The Board is responsible for considering and decision making for
matters covering mainly the Group's overall strategy, investment plans,
annual and interim results, recommendations on Directors’
appointment or reappointment, material contracts and transactions as
well as other significant policies and financial matters. The Board has
delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the senior management
under the supervision of the Board.

Board meetings are scheduled to be held at approximately quarterly
intervals and as required by business needs. At least 14 days’ notice of a
Board meeting is normally given to all Directors who are given an
opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The
company secretary assists the chairman of the Board in preparing the
agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are complied with. The agenda and the accompanying
Board papers are normally sent to all Directors at least three days before
the intended date of a regular Board meeting (and so far as practicable
for other Board meetings). Draft minutes of each Board meeting are
circulated to all Directors for their comment before the same will be
tabled at the following Board meeting for approval. All minutes are kept
by the company secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice by any Director.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials and has access to the advice and services of the company
secretary. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management. Directors
will be continuously updated on the major development of the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

To ensure the Directors’ contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant and in compliance with paragraph A.6.5 of the CG Code,
the Company would arrange and fund suitable continuous professional
development for the Directors to participate in order to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills.

During the Year, the Company had provided all the Directors with
regular updates regarding the Company’s performance as well as
updates on latest amendments and developments to the Listing Rules
and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements from time to time.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct (“the Securities Code”)
regarding securities transactions by Directors and officers on terms no
less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code
("Model Code”) for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

A copy of the Securities Code has been sent to each Director of the
Company first on his/her appointment and thereafter twice annually, 30
days and 60 days before the date of the Board meetings to approve the
Company's interim result and annual result respectively, with a reminder
that the Director cannot deal in the securities and derivatives of the
Company until after such results have been published, and that all his
dealings must be conducted in accordance with the Securities Code.

Under the Securities Code, the Directors are required to notify Mr. Hong
Tianzhu or Mr. Zhu Yongxiang or a Director (other than himself/herself)
designated by the Board for the specific purpose (the “Designated
Director”) and receive a dated written acknowledgement from such
Designated Director before dealing in the securities and derivatives of
the Company.

During the Year, the Company, having made specific enquiry on all the
Directors, confirms that all the Directors have complied with the
required standard set out in the Securities Code and the Model Code.
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ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separated and should not be performed by the same
individual.

Mr. Hong Tianzhu is the chairman of the Company. Mr. Zhu Yongxiang
is the vice chairman and chief executive officer of the Company.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen, Professor Cheng Longdi, Professor
Tao Xiaoming has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director for an initial term of one year commencing from their
respective date of appointment as an INED renewable automatically for
successive term of one year each commencing from the next day after
the expiry of the then current term of appointment, unless terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either the
independent non-executive Director or the Company expiring at the
end of the initial term or at any time thereafter. The Company has paid
an annual director’s fee of HKD300,000 to Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen,
HKD150,000 to Professor Cheng Longdi, and HKD180,000 to Professor
Tao Xiaoming for the year ended 31 December 2020. Save for the above
directors’ fees, none of the independent non-executive Directors has
received any other remuneration for holding their office as an
independent non-executive Director.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established a remuneration committee (the
"Remuneration Committee”), an audit committee (the "Audit
Committee”) and a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), each of which has its specific written terms of reference.
Copies of minutes of all meetings and resolutions of the committees,
which are kept by the company secretary, are circulated to all Board
members and the committees are required to report back to the Board
on their decision and recommendations where appropriate. The
procedures and arrangements for a Board meeting, as mentioned on
page 29 in the section “The Board” above, have been adopted for the
committee meetings so far as practicable.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee since
November 2004, which currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors of the Company, namely Mr. Ting Leung Huel,
Stephen, Professor Tao Xiaoming and Professor Cheng Longdi and the
chairman and an executive Director of the Company, namely Mr. Hong
Tianzhu. The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Ting
Leung Huel, Stephen. The Remuneration Committee has adopted terms
of reference which are in line with the code provisions of the CG Code.
The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent professional advice
in accordance with the Company’s policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are:

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy
and structure for all directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) toreview and approve the management’'s remuneration proposals
with reference to the board'’s corporate goals and objectives;

(c) to make recommendations to the board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, this should include benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

(e) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

()  to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

(g) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

(h)  to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. One
committee meeting was held during the Year to review and discuss the
existing policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors, the
remuneration packages of both the executive and non-executive
Directors and the attendance of each member is set out as follows:

BEEZEEH)

HMEER(E)
FMEESESFEATOBE—NEE - FRND BT
—REBEEH  UBZERTHRESZRTTMR
EREE MTESRIERTEEZEIEE M
EREZHEEROT

Number of committee
meeting attended/held

Committee member ZEBBHE HE BITEEEREZLK
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE /1
Hong Tianzhu R 11
Tao Xiaoming P B A /1
Cheng Longdi e 1/1

In addition to the Committee meetings, the Remuneration Committee
also dealt with matters by way of circulation during the Year. The
remuneration payable to Directors will depend on their respective
contractual terms under their employment or service contracts as
approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee.

In order to attract, retain and motivate the senior executives and key
employees of the Group, including the executive Directors, the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
in April 2014 for a term of ten years. Details of the share option scheme
are set out in the Directors' Report on pages 60 to 62 and note 17 to the
financial statements.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since November 2004, the
current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Ting Leung Huel,
Stephen, Professor Tao Xiaoming and Professor Cheng Longdi. The
chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen. To
retain independence and objectivity, the Audit Committee has been
chaired by an INED with appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise. The Audit
Committee has adopted terms of reference, which are in line with the
code provisions of the CG Code. The Audit Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice according to the Company’s policy if
considered necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)
The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

(@

to be primarily responsible for making recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of
resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard;

to develop and implement policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services;

to monitor integrity of financial statements of the Company and
the Company’s annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them, and
to review the Company’s annual report and accounts, half-year
report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports before
submission to the Board;

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim and
final audits, and any matters the auditors may wish to discuss;

to review the Company’s financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems;

to discuss with the management the risk management and
internal control systems and ensure that management has
discharged its duty to have effective systems;

to consider any findings of major investigations of risk
management and internal control matters as delegated by the
Board or on its own initiative and management’s response;

to review the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices; and

to review the external auditor's management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management in respect of the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year. Two committee
meetings were held during the Year and the attendance of each
member is set out as follows:

BEEZEEH)

ERZEER(E)
EZLZEeTFEEVAAMAEE - FRBET
MAEZEELH MENEZHRBBEROT

Number of committee
meeting attended/held

Committee member ZEEBNE HE BT EESEEEZRH
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRIE 2/2
Tao Xiaoming P& & /A 2/2
Cheng Longdi e 2/2

During the meetings held in the Year, the Audit Committee had
performed the work as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees proposed by the
external auditor regarding the final audit of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (the “2019 Final Audit”);

(i) reviewed the external auditor’s report of findings in relation to the
2019 Final Audit;

(i) reviewed the financial reports for the year ended 31 December
2019 and for the six months ended 30 June 2020; and

(iv) reviewed the effectiveness of internal control system of the Group
including financial, operational and compliance control and risk
management functions of the Group.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
the external auditors.

Nomination Committee

On 19 March 2012, the Board has approved the establishment of the
Nomination Committee which became effective on 1 April 2012. The
current members of Nomination Committee comprises an executive
Director and the chairman of the Company, Mr. Hong Tianzhu and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Professor Tao Xiaoming,
Professor Cheng Longdi and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen. The
chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Hong Tianzhu. The
Nomination Committee has adopted terms of reference which are in
line with the code provisions of the CG Code. The Nomination
Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties
and has access to independent professional advice in accordance with
the Company’s policy if considered necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)
The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are:

()

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors;

to make recommmendations to the Board on:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

the role, responsibilities, capabilities, skills, knowledge and
experience required from members of the Board;

the policy on the terms of employment of non-executive
Directors;

the composition of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and other board committees of the Company;

proposed changes to the structure, size and composition of
the Board;

candidates suitably qualified to become members of the
Board;

the selection of individuals nominated for directorship;

the re-election by shareholders of the Company of any
Directors who are to retire by rotation having regard to their
performance and ability to continue to contribute to the
Board;

the continuation (or not) in service of any independent non-
executive Director serving more than nine years and to
provide recommendation to the shareholders of the
Company as to how to vote in the resolution approving the
re-election of such independent non-executive Director;

the appointment or re-appointment of Directors;

succession planning for Directors in particular the chairman
and the chief executive; and

the policy concerning diversity of Board members;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

(e

38

to give full consideration to the following in the discharge of its
duties as mentioned above or elsewhere in these terms of
reference:

(i) succession planning of Directors;

(i) leadership needs of the Group with a view of maintaining or
fostering the competitive edge of the Group over others;

(i)  changes in market environment and commercial needs of
the market in which the Group operates;

(iv) the skills and expertise required from members of the Board;

(v)  the Board's policy concerning diversity of Board members
adopted from time to time; and

(vi) the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules with regard to
directors of a listed issuer;

in respect of any proposed service contracts to be entered into by
any members of the Group with its director or proposed director,
which require the prior approval of the shareholders of the
Company at general meeting under rule 13.68 of the Listing Rules,
to review and provide recommendations to the shareholders of
the Company (other than shareholders who are directors with a
material interest in the relevant service contracts and their
respective associates) as to whether the terms of the service
contracts are fair and reasonable and whether such service
contracts are in the interests of the Company and the shareholders
as a whole, and to advise shareholders on how to vote;

to ensure upon the appointment to the Board, non- executive
Directors receive a formal letter of appointment setting out what
is expected of them in terms of time commitment, committee
service and involvement outside meetings of the Board;

to conduct interviews with any Director upon their resignation in
order to ascertain the reasons for his departure; and

to consider other matters, as defined or assigned by the Board
from time to time.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The director nomination policy (the “Director Nomination Policy”) of
Company aims to set out the criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of directors of the Company; ensure that the board (the
"Board”) of directors of the Company has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company; and ensure
the Board continuity and appropriate leadership at Board level.

Criteria for nomination and appointment of Directors

The criteria for selecting any candidate for directorship are set out as
follows:

bringing an independent judgment and make constructive
recommendation on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of
conducts;

taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

serving on the Audit Committee, and the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee (in the case of candidate for Non-
Executive Director) and other relevant Board Committees, if invited;

devoting sufficient time to the Board and/or any Committee(s) on
which he or she serves so as to allow them to benefit from his or her
skills, expertise, and varied backgrounds and qualifications and
diversity through attendance and participation in the Board;

scrutinising the Company's performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance;

ensuring the Nomination Committees on which he or she serves to
perform their powers and functions conferred on them by the
Board; and

conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by legislation
or the Listing Rules, where appropriate.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY (Continued)

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an INED, his or her
independence shall be assessed in accordance with, among other
things, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to
any amendments as may be made by the Stock Exchange from time to
time. Where applicable, the totality of the candidate’s education,
qualifications and experience shall also be evaluated to consider
whether he or she has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise for filling the
office of an INED with such qualifications or expertise as required under
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Nomination process
(@) Appointment of New Director
() The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should, upon

receipt of the proposal on appointment of new director and
the biographical information (or relevant details) of the
candidate, evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as
set out above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

(i) If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board should rank them
by order of preference based on the needs of the Company
and reference check of each candidate (where applicable).

(i) The Nomination Committee should then recommend to the
Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for directorship,
as applicable.

(iv) For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for
election as a director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set
out above to determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship.

Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should make recommendation to shareholders in
respect of the proposed election of director at the general
meeting.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY (Continued)

Nomination process (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Re-election of Director at General Meeting

(i)

(i)

(iff)

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should review
the overall contribution and service to the Company of the
retiring director and the level of participation and
performance on the Board.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should also
review and determine whether the retiring director
continues to meet the criteria as set out above.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should then
make recommendation to shareholders in respect of the
proposed re-election of director at the general meeting.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect a
candidate as director at the general meeting, the relevant
information of the candidate will be disclosed in the circular
to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting in
accordance with the Listing Rules and/or applicable laws
and regulations.

Re-election of INED at General Meeting

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as an
INED at the general meeting, it should set out in the circular to
shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying the
notice of the relevant general meeting:

(i)

(i)

(iff)

(iv)

the process used for identifying the individual and why the
Board believes the individual should be elected and the
reasons why it considers the individual to be independent;

if the proposed INED will be holding their seventh (or more)
listed company directorship, why the Board believes the
individual would still be able to devote sufficient time to the
Board;

the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual can
bring to the Board; and

how the individual contributes to diversity (including gender
diversity) of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will conduct regular review on the
structure, size and composition of the Board and the Director
Nomination Policy and where appropriate, make recommendations on
changes to the Board to complement the Company's corporate strategy
and business needs, to comply with all applicable laws and regulations
from time to time and maintain good corporate governance practice.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY (Continued)

On 5 August 2013, the Board adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) which aims to set out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. All Board appointments will be based on merit
while taking into account diversity including gender diversity. The
Nomination Committee will regularly review the measurable objectives
to ensure its effectiveness to achieve diversity on the Board. The
following measurable objectives have been set for implementing the
Board Diversity Policy:

inclusion of candidates for Board members with overseas working
experience (outside of PRC);

ensuring that there is no limitation on gender on selection of
Directors;

inclusion of candidates for Board members with working experience
in other industries; and

inclusion of candidates for Board members with knowledge and
skills in different aspects.

As at the date of this annual report, the above objectives have been
achieved, 7 out of 8 members of the Board have overseas working
experience and 2 out of 8 members of the Board have accounting or
other professional qualifications.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year. One
committee meeting was held during the Year to review the structure
and composition of the Board and the re-election of the retiring
Directors and the attendance of each member is set out as follows:
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Number of committee
meeting attended/held

Committee member ZEEBNE HE BT EESEEEZRH
Hong Tianzhu HRA 11
Tao Xiaoming (R 11
Cheng Longdi TEER 1/1
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TR /1

The Nomination Committee has adopted a written nomination
procedure (the "Nomination Procedure”) specifying the process and
criteria for the selection and recommendation of candidates for
directorship of the Company. The Nomination Committee shall, based
on those criteria as set out in the Nomination Procedure (such as
appropriate experience, personal skills and time commitment etc.),
identify and recommend the proposed candidate to the Board for
approval of an appointment.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY (Continued)

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by a
Director. The package will also include the latest published financial
reports of the Company and the documentation for the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Board. The senior management
will subsequently conduct such briefing as is necessary to give the new
Directors more detailed information on the Group'’s businesses and
activities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has not set up any corporate governance committee.
Since April 2012, the Board has adopted written terms of reference in
compliance with the code provisions of the CG Code.

The Board is mainly responsible for keeping the effectiveness of the
corporate governance and system of internal non-financial controls of
the Group. The Board shall introduce and propose relevant principles
concerning corporate governance and to review and determine the
corporate governance policy, so as to enhance and to ensure a high
standard of corporate governance practices in the Group.

During the Year, the Board regularly reviews and monitors the training
and continuous professional development of the Directors, and the
Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with the
support from finance department, the financial statements of the
Group. In preparing the financial statements for the Year, the
requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules and the Companies
Ordinance were complied with.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor, Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers, are set out in the Auditor's Report on pages
127 t0 133.

Risk Management and Internal Control

Framework

The risk management and internal controls system will assist the Group
to fully achieve its strategic objective by identifying and assessing all the
risk exposure of the Group and setting down corresponding control
measures, with a view to attain the long-term vision of the Group. We
believe that effective risk management and internal controls system will
enhance shareholders’ value in the long term. The risk faced by the
Group directly relates to its control measures and mitigation plan.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued) BER&H (#)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued) EiEERAMEERE(E)
Framework (Continued) ELR(E)

Accordingly, the risk management and internal controls framework of Mt AEENERRERERANZPEITELNT
our Group is as follows:

The Board Audit Committee
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Internal Audit Risk Management and
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

Framework (Continued)

The operating model of the Group's risk management and internal
control framework conforms to the internal controls framework of
COSO (the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission) in the following five aspects:

«  Control Environment

The Group has established a clear organization structure and
delegated powers necessary to perform different business functions
to management at different levels but it is subject to the limit set by
the Board. The Board meets regularly to discuss and approve the
business strategies and working plans set by each operating units.
The Group will report our financial performance to the Board on
monthly basis.

Our governance rules and requirements are very transparent to
employees. We hope to build up risk awareness and internal
controls responsibility in our corporate culture by creating an
internal organizational environment driven by the management
operating philosophy, risk awareness, integrity and ethical values.

+  Risk Assessment

The Group identifies, assesses and grades the risks that are most
relevant to the success of the Group based on the possibility of
occurrence and the impact on the financial result of the risk). Risk
management and internal controls team is responsible for setting
the appropriate tone from the top, performing risk assessment, as
well as taking care of the design, implementation and maintenance
of internal controls. Meanwhile, it requires department heads from
each of the operating units to identify operating risks from the
bottom in order to determine the major risks and the risk levels of
the Group.

«  Control Activities
The Group has policy and procedure in place for all business
functions, including authorization, approval and audit,
recommendation, performance review, asset protection and
division of duty, to ensure effective execution of organization
objectives and mitigation of risk activities.

+ Information and Communication
The risk management and internal controls team performs risk
assessment and prepare the Annual Report of Risk Management on
a semi-annual basis, which sets out the identified risks and related
control procedures. The report will be submitted to the Board and
reviewed by the Audit Committee annually.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

Framework (Continued)

Monitoring

The Group self-assesses its controls and risks by internal review and
circulating major control procedures to its employees to maintain
continuous monitoring of the internal control procedures.
Rectification will be made according to findings of the control
procedures in order to improve internal monitoring.

Risk Management and Internal Controls Team

Composition

A risk management and internal controls team has been set up by the
Group in 2016, which comprises Mr. Tang Daoping (executive Director
and chief operation officer), Mr. Hui Tsz Wai (executive Director) and Mr.
Ji Zhongliang (executive Director), and members including general
manager and department head from each of our operating units, and
general managers and department head of finance and human
resources department of our subsidiaries. Mr. Hong Tianzhu, an
executive Director and chairman of the Group and Mr. Zhu Yongxiang,
an executive Director and vice chairman and chief executive officer of
the Group act as advisors of the working team.

Major Tasks

Set out below are the major responsibilities of our risk management
and internal control team:

46

The team shall formulate proposal and plan for building and
promotion of corporate culture in risk awareness and to lead in
providing risk management training.

The team shall prepare and conduct annual and interim reviews on
risk profile and formulate mitigating measures.

The team shall summarize and analyze the findings of the review
exercise, to advise any modification to the risk management
strategy, to lead and assist relevant departments in formulating
counter measures in addressing any material risks.

It shall conduct annual internal evaluation on its own risk
management function, to lead and mobilize the establishment and
modification of risk management and internal controls system, to
give guidance to subsidiaries on initiation of setting up of risk
management system.

It shall prepare the annual report on Risk Management and submit
the same to our Audit Committee for review and approval.

It shall be responsible to formulate or modify the relevant risk
management and internal controls system and to oversee its
implementation, to give guidance and assist the subsidiaries on
setting up and optimizing their risk management practical
measures.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Controls Team (Continued)

Major Tasks (Continued)

-+ It shall be responsible for the organization, compiling of minutes
and oversight of implementation of relevant resolutions concerning
the risk management function in the meetings of the Audit
Committee and Board meetings.

It shall strictly comply its plan to counter risks by implementing the
measures stipulated therein and to monitor the work rate and
efficiency of such implementation on an ongoing basis, and advise
on remedy in a timely manner.

It shall monitor the status and development of any risk events and
formulate and devise contingency plan in a timely manner, to
forthwith report or inform the Audit Committee on such matters.

Work Accomplished in 2020

Our risk management and internal controls team held two meetings in
2020, and reported twice to the Audit Committee and the Board on the
annual risk assessment and findings of internal controls review. The
team accomplished the following work in 2020:

1. issued relevant documents on risk assessment and internal
controls within the Group to enhance its risk management culture;

2. performed a general review on the major risk exposure of the
Group, especially in areas relating to raw material purchase,
foreign exchange and exchange rate, credit management and
taxation;

3. discussed the possible risk and impact on operating result with
department heads from each of our operating units;

4. reviewed and improved corresponding internal controls measure;

5. prepared and submitted the annual report on risk assessment and
internal controls to the Audit Committee and the Board.

Details of the major risks of the Group are set out in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section on pages 20 to 28.

Review of Internal Controls Effectiveness

For the Year, our Board had reviewed the representations made by the
management in respect of risk management and internal controls, and
considered that our Group’s risk management and internal controls
system effective and adequate. No significant areas of weaknesses and
deficiency that might have affected the financial, operational,
compliance controls and risk management functions of the Group were
identified. The Board is of the view that the resources, qualification and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, and their training and budget are
adequate.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

Review of Internal Controls Effectiveness (Continued)

The risk management and internal controls system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve our business
objectives. Like all other systems, it could not entirely eliminate the
impact of all unforeseeable risks and events beyond our control that
might emerge and occur during the course of our operation.
Consequently, the Board may only provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that there was no significant misrepresentation or deficiency
as to the completeness and effectiveness of our Group’s risk
management and internal controls.

Disclosure of Inside Information

Regarding procedures and measures of internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the Group:

1. is aware of its obligation under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the overriding principle that
inside information should be announced on a timely manner;

2. conducts its affairs in strict compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations prevailing in Hong Kong;

3. has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair disclosure by
pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution of information to the
public through channels such as financial reporting,
announcements and its website;

4. has included in the Code of Conduct a strict prohibition on the
unauthorized use of non-public or inside information;

5. has communicated to all relevant staff regarding the

implementation of the Continuous Disclosures Policy and relevant
trainings are also provided.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

External Auditor’'s Remuneration

During the Year, the remuneration paid and payable to the Company's
external auditor, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as follows:

BERKE &)

SNREAL BT 2 B &

RAER « B R D AN BT B R E
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Paid/Payable
Services rendered to the Group AL R Z R 2N ENER
RMB'000
ARBFT
Annual audit service FEEZR®E 3,725
Non-audit services (including consulting service IEBERE (BIEER T EIRE -
for transfer pricing and environmental, social and g REAWE 8RR RS &
governance report, agreed-upon procedures for REBFEMEER KR
selected financial information of the Group, and TS EBERHOIBEREF)
preliminary announcement of results) 893
Total: a5t 4618

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of good communication with
shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal channels,
which include interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars.

The Company's annual general meeting (the "AGM") is a valuable forum
for the Board to communicate directly with the shareholders. The
chairman actively participated in the AGM held during the year and
personally chaired the meeting to answer any questions from the
shareholders. A separate resolution had been proposed by the chairman
in respect of each issue to be considered at the AGM. An AGM circular
and AGM notice had been distributed to all shareholders in accordance
with the requirements of the articles of association of the Company and
the Listing Rules, setting out details of each proposed resolution, voting
procedures and other relevant information. The chairman explained the
procedures for conducting a poll at the beginning of the AGM, and
answered any questions from shareholders regarding voting by way of

poll.
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SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

The following procedures for shareholders (the “Shareholders”, each a
“Shareholder”) of the Company to convene an extraordinary general
meeting (the "EGM") of the Company are prepared in accordance with
Article 64 of the articles of association of the Company:

One or more Shareholders (the “Requisitionist(s)") holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings shall have the right, by written notice (the
“Requisition”), to require an EGM to be called by the Directors for
the transaction of any business specified therein.

Such Requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company via email at the email address
of the Company at main@texhong.com.

The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such Requisition.

If the Directors fail to proceed to convene such meeting within 21
days of the deposit of such Requisition, the Requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the
Requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for raising enquiries

1.

50

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment of
dividend to the Company'’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
details of which are set out in the section headed “Corporate
Information” of this annual report.

Shareholders may at any time raise any enquiry in respect of the
Company via email at the email address of the Company at
main@texhong.com.

Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions together with

their detailed contact information for the prompt response from
the Company if it deems appropriate.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Procedures and contact details for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

1.

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company, a
Shareholder should lodge a written notice of his/her/its proposal
(the "Proposal”) with his/her/its detailed contact information via
email at the email address of the Company at main@texhong.com.

The identity of the Shareholder and his/her/its request will be
verified with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong
and upon confirmation by the branch share registrar that the
request is proper and in order and made by a Shareholder, the
Board will include the Proposal in the agenda for the general
meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the Shareholder concerned
at the general meeting varies according to the nature of the
Proposal as follows:

(i) Notice of not less than 21 days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of an ordinary resolution in an
annual general meeting or a special resolution of the
Company;

(i) Notice of not less than 14 days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval in meeting other than an annual general
meeting or approval by way of a special resolution of the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying and
complying with the CG Code but about promoting and developing an
ethical and healthy corporate culture. We will continue to review and,
where appropriate, improve our current practices on the basis of our
experience, regulatory changes and development. Any views and
suggestions from our Shareholders are also welcome to enhance our
transparency.

On behalf of the Board

Hong Tianzhu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 12 March 2021
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Hong Tianzhu, aged 53, is an executive Director and chairman of
the Group. He is the founder of the Group. He is responsible for the
strategic development and strategic deployment, project investment and
decision-making for major issues, leadership and policy decision-making
for establishment of corporate culture of the Group. He has over 20 years
of experience in the textile industry. Prior to establishing the Group, Mr.
Hong was a vice general manager of & T 22 REHIEH R A 7
(Jinjiang Yifeng Garment Weaving Company Limited). Mr. Hong's interest
in the shares of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company
(“Shares”) is disclosed under the paragraph headed “Report of the
Directors — Directors’ and chief executives' interests and short positions
in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations” in this annual report.

Mr. Zhu Yongxiang, aged 54, is an executive Director, vice Chairman
and chief executive officer of the Group. He is responsible for the
strategy implementation, operational planning and decision-making,
decision-making for major issues and organizational implementation of
the Group. Mr. Zhu graduated from the & i %7 4% T £ [T (Nantong
Textile Industry College) in 1987. Prior to joining the Group in 1997, Mr.
Zhu was an assistant to the general manager of £ 38 & — 18 %7 4% i
(Nantong No. 2 Cotton Textile Factory). Mr. Zhu's interest in the Shares
of the Company is disclosed under the paragraph headed “Report of
the Directors — Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations” in this annual report.

Mr. Tang Daoping, aged 55, is an executive Director and chief
operation officer of the Group. He is responsible for the operation
management of the Group. Mr. Tang graduated from 7N E & B8 A
E2 (Xuzhou Radio and TV University) in 1996 majoring in accounting
and administrative management. Mr. Tang has over 30 years of
experience in the textile industry. He was a workshop manager of f 2
TR &R LR (Suining Cotton Textile Factory) prior to joining the Group in
1998 as a vice general manager. Mr. Tang was promoted and became a
director of Jiangsu Century Texhong in September 2002. Mr. Tang’s
interest in the Shares of the Company is disclosed under the paragraph
headed “Report of the Directors — Directors’ and chief executives’
interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations” in this
annual report.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Hui Tsz Wai, aged 47, is an executive Director and company
secretary. He is responsible for the management of finance, information
system and treasury management of the Group. Mr. Hui graduated from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor of business
administration (honours) degree. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified Public
Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst and a Certified Fraud Examiner.
He has more than 20 years working experience in finance related area.
Prior to first joining the Group in November 2004, Mr. Hui had been
working at one of the big four international accounting firms for about
nine years. Mr. Hui had been the chief financial officer of the Group. Mr.
Hui's interest in the Shares of the Company is disclosed under the
paragraph headed “Report of the Directors — Directors’ and chief
executives' interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporations” in this
annual report.

Mr. Ji Zhongliang, aged 57, is an executive Director. He is responsible
for the operations management of the Group’s garment fabric and
garment business segment. Mr. Ji graduated from Jiangsu College of
Engineering and Technology of the PRC (T % T #2 B 2 £ 17 22 F)
(formerly known as Nantong Textile Industry School (@404 T 222
#2)) in July 1982. Prior to joining the Group in August 2015, he had
been the vice president of Black Peony (Group) Co. Ltd. (24tF} (£ E)
f&% 3 B PR 2 7)) (stock code: 600510), the shares of which are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange from December 2011 to May 2015. He
had been the general manager of Changzhou K&J Import and Export
Co., Ltd. (B ML H OB R 7]), which is principally engaged in
import and export of cotton and fabrics in the PRC from October 1997
to May 2011, the general manger of Black Peony Group Import and
Export Co,, Ltd. (B4t f4 & B # ) O & R A 7)), which is principally
engaged in import and export of textile, garments and daily necessities
in the PRC from May 2011 to December 2011, and the chairman of the
board of directors of Black Peony (HK) Limited, which is principally
engaged in manufacture of denim in the PRC from December 2011 to
May 2015. Mr. Ji has more than 30 years’ working experience in the
textile industry. Mr. Ji is a director of Texhong Dyeing and Printing
Technology Limited, a indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Professor Tao Xiaoming, aged 63, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 3 March 2014. Professor Tao is an elected
fellow of The Textile Institute, the American Society of Mechanical
Engineers, the Royal Academy of Arts and Design and Commerce of the
United Kingdom, and has been the chair professor in Textile Technology
at the Institute of Textiles and Clothing of the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University since April 2002. She was elected as the world president of The
Textile Institute for a tenure of three years from May 2007. Professor Tao
received a bachelor's degree in textile engineering from China Textile
University (1 BI# 4% KX 22) (currently known as Donghua University (5
# K 8) of the PRC in January 1982 and a doctorate degree in textile
physics from University of New South Wales in August 1987. From
September 1987 to September 1988 and from October 1990 to
September 1994, she had been a scientist of the Commonwealth
Scientific and Industrial Research Organisation of Australia. From October
1988 to January 1990, she had been a lecturer of Donghua University.
Professor Tao was a recipient of prestigious individual awards of the field:
the honorary fellowship of the Textile Institute in 2010, the founder award
of the Fiber Society of the United States in 2013, and Guanghua
Engineering Scientific and Technological Award of Chinese Academy of
Engineering in 2020. With seven academic monographs, over 800
research papers published and over 41 patents granted, she has been
internationally recognised in particular for her pioneering work on smart
textiles and clothing and textile engineering such as low-twist yarns,
solospun yarns and fabric sensing technology which have been widely
applied in the textile industry.

Professor Cheng Longdi, aged 61, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 21 November 2004. Professor Cheng
obtained his doctorate degree in textile engineering from Donghua
University in 2002. He is currently a professor (2nd grade) in College of
Textiles and a deputy director of the Key Laboratory of Textile Science
and Technology of Donghua University. Professor Cheng is a member
of the expert committee of each of the following institutions: the China
Cotton Textile Association of New Technology (as a deputy director),
the China Knitting Industrial Association, the China Bast And Leaf Fibers
Textile Association and the China Textile Machinery Association.
Professor Cheng was an engineer of the China Textile Academy
(formerly known as Textile Academy of Textile Ministry). Professor
Cheng is currently an independent director of Hengli Petrochemical Co,,
Ltd. (stock code: 600346) which is a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, MH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING), ACA, CTA
(HK), FHKIoD, aged 67, was appointed as independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 21 November 2004. Mr. Ting is an
accountant in public practice and has more than 30 years’ experience in
this field. Currently he is a partner and director of Messrs Ting Ho Kwan
& Chan, Certified Public Accountants (Practising) and Ting Ho Kwan &
Chan CPA Limited respectively. He is currently an independent non-
executive director of six other listed companies in Hong Kong, namely
China SCE Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 01966), Computer and
Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code: 00046), Dongyue Group
Limited (stock code: 00189), New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited
(stock code: 00472), Tong Ren Tang Technologies Company Limited
(stock code: 01666) and Tongda Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
00698) respectively. He is also a non-executive director of Chow Sang
Sang Holdings International Limited (stock code: 00116).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Sha Tao, aged 55, is a vice president of the Group and director of
our grey fabric production and management center. Mr. Sha obtained
his bachelor’s degree in textile from #& #5 & T % £ ¢ (Wuxi Light
Industry University) in 1986. Mr. Sha has over 30 years of experience in
the textile industry. Prior to joining the Group in 1998, he was a factory
manager of one of the factories of F#8 5 — #B4H 4 (Nantong No. 2
Cotton Textile Factory).

Mr. Hu Zhiping, aged 57, is a vice president of the Group and general
manager of Taizhou business segment. Mr. Hu graduated from £ 5 5%
2 KB (Wuxi Professional University) in textile in 1984. Mr. Hu has over
30 years of experience in the textile industry. He was a vice general
manager of &5 173 3= £ 15 A PR 2 A (Wuxi Xieda Weaving Company
Limited) prior to joining the Group in 1998.

Mr. Cao Youchang, aged 52, is a vice president of the Group and
director of the yarn production and management center of the Group.
He is responsible for the yarn production of the Group. Mr. Cao
graduated from 7 8 %5 4% T 2 FT (Nantong Textile Industry College)
with a bachelor’s degree in textile engineering in 1994. Mr. Cao has over
26 years of experience in the textile industry. He joined the Group in
2000, and served as the director of yarn technology of the Group.
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ESTHE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company is pleased to submit their report
together with the audited financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of yarns, grey fabrics,
non-woven fabrics and garment fabrics as well as garments. The
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set
out in note 38 to the accompanying financial statements.

Business segments

The Group is engaged in the manufacturing and sale of yarns, grey
fabrics, non-woven fabrics and garment fabrics as well as garments.
Business analysis of revenue, segment results, total assets and capital
expenditure are set out in note 5 to the accompanying financial
statements.

Geographical segments

The Group mainly operates its business in China, Southeast Asia and
Americas. Geographical analysis of revenue, segment results, total
assets, and capital expenditure are set out in note 5 to the
accompanying financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For details of business review in relation to the development,
performance or position of the Company’s business, please refer to the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report.

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with rules and
regulations and the impact of non-compliance of such rules and
regulations on the business. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group has complied with all
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group in relation to its business including health and safety, workplace
conditions, employment and the environment.

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining
the highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. The Group understands that a better
future depends on everyone's participation and contribution in
environmental protection. All employees are encouraged to participate
in environmental and social activities which benefit the community as a
whole.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The Group advocates cleaner production and pursues both
environmental and economic benefits through means such as reducing
pollutant emissions, improving energy efficiency and reducing material
consumption. The Group also advocated conservation of resources in
office and encouraged employees to develop good habits, conserve
resources and energy to build a green and comfortable office
environment.

Details of the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the
Group are set out on pages 78 to 126 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 136 of this annual
report.

The board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.20
per share in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2020.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 18 to the accompanying
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 7 to
the accompanying financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in
note 16 to the accompanying financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company's distributable reserves as at 31 December 2020 is set out
in note 36 to the accompanying financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its
existing shareholders.

¥OE e

AEEERBREE  BBRL SRR - 125
%ﬁﬂmW~ﬁ SYIRRYRE TR - BRIBERE
%WA°$EIﬁ§§XE%“*Mﬁhﬁ B
@al%ﬂﬁ%?ﬁ HHBREMEE - BREE
FBERPRARE -

NEE [IRIE
F78% 1268 °

RER TR

AEERBE_T_ZEF+ _A=+—HILFE
ZEBHIINAFRE 136 AZFEWER °

CHERERERE | FRERNAFR

EEeERREHE T -_ZEF+-_A=+—H
IFT S 2 RERAR B &% 0208 T ©

(A

AEEBZE-_Z-_ZF+T-_A=+—HIFEZ
FEBEBHISHNBEN 2 MR 18 -

%%E%ﬁ%&%ﬂ%

REE#EE — fﬁ% R=+—HLEEZ
L E =& 1% FHEE A BERT < B 7 Rk B
u£7°

SN

KRR ZEABEFEHNBEMN 2 M RR M T
16 °

LIRS ﬂﬁﬁ

ARRR B -_ZF+-_A=+—RZAHDIK

T%%%E?Iﬁ%@ﬁé[ﬁf B Z A TS ¥R R M E 36 ©

ErRBRER

AR RV A B RS AR B 3 A S AR ST T
BB E 2RO UE A A B ARL BRI A
R B EH RO ) ©

2020 ANNUAL REPORT —Z-EHFFH 59



EFERE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to
the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 2 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2020.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Share Option Scheme was adopted by the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting on 7 April 2014 (the “Adoption
Date”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to
grant options to selected participants as incentives or rewards for their
contributions to the Group. All directors, employees, suppliers of goods
or services, customers, persons or entities that provide research,
development or other technological support to the Group, shareholders
of any member of the Group, advisers or consultants of the Group and
any other group or classes of participants who have contributed or may
contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or other business
arrangement and growth of the Group are eligible to participate in the
Share Option Scheme.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing on the Adoption Date.

The total number of Shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme adopted by the Group must not in
aggregate exceed 88,468,117 Shares, representing 10% of the Shares in
issue on the Adoption Date and 9.67% of the Shares in issue as at the
date of this annual report respectively (the “General Scheme Limit"). The
Company may renew the General Scheme Limit with shareholders’
approval provided that each such renewal may not exceed 10% of the
Shares in the Company in issue as at the date of the shareholders’
approval.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme adopted by the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from
time to time.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total number of
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Group (including both exercised or outstanding options) to each
participant in any 12-months period shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company for the time being (the “Individual Limit").

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21 days from the
date of the offer of grant of the option. A nominal consideration of HK$1
is payable on acceptance of the grant of an option.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the Directors to each grantee, which period may commence
on a day after the date upon which the offer for the grant of options is
made but shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the date of
grant of the option, subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof. Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the
offer of the grant of options to a grantee, there is no minimum period
required under the Share Option Scheme for the holding of an option
before it can be exercised.

The subscription price for the Shares under the Share Option Scheme
will be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant,
which must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Shares.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Movements of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2020 are summarised as
follows and details of which are set out in note 17 to the consolidated

financial statements:

B

RBEZZ_ZF+_A=+—HILFE  REE
BRI N BREZ BB 2 HMBWT - FiI5H
RERE M IRMEE 17 -

Number of share options
BRERA
Closing price
per Share Outstanding Outstanding
immediately Exercise asat Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled asat
List of before the price per 1 January during during during during 31 December
grantees Date of grant (Note) Exercise period date of grant share 2020 the year the year the year the year 2020
BEAL itk 22 it St 23
AHHZER -A-8 t2f=+-A
ARARE R B () & inf SRRE 34 RERRY RERGE RERKH REREH At
HK$ HKS
o oo
Directors
is
Mr.Tang Daoping 23 March 2015 1 January 2016 to 22 March 2025 827 870 670,000 - - - - 670000
FETAE “2-1%=ACT=R 2 F-R-BZ
ZECRFZAZTZR
23 March 2015 1January 2017 to 22 March 2025 827 870 670000 - - - - 670000
ZZ-RE=AZTEA e e
S =
23 March 2015 1 January 2018 to 22 March 2025 827 870 660000 - - - - 660000
“EF-1%¥=f-t=R “F-\f-fA-RZ
ZECREZAZTCR
2000000 - - - - 2000000
Mr.Hui Tsz Wai 23March 2015 1 January 2016 to 22 March 2025 827 870 1000000 - - - - 1,000,000
FFERE ZZ-RE=AZTER Z2-7F-A-BE
IS e
23March 2015 1 January 2017 to 22 March 2025 827 870 1000000 - - - - 1,000,000
ZZ-RE=AZTEA I =k
IS e
23 March 2015 1 January 20180 22 March 2025 821 870 1000000 - - - - 1000000
“2-1%=RCT=R “2-\§-f-BZ
S
28 December 2015 1 January 2017 to 27 December 2025 584 570 300,000 - - - - 300000
Z2-RETZACTAR “2-tF-f-BE
B S
28 December 2015 1 January 2018 to 27 December 2025 584 570 300,000 - - - - 300000
“E-RETACTAR “E2-\§-A-BE
ZECIFTACTLA
28 December 2015 1 January 2019 to 27 December 2025 584 570 300,000 - - - - 300000
“E-RETACTAR “E-NE-A-RE
ZECIFTIACTLE
28 December 2015 1 January 2020 to 27 December 2025 584 570 300,000 - - - - 300000
ZR-RETCACTAR “ECEE-A-RE
ZECRETCACHA
28 December 2015 1 January 2021 to 27 December 2025 584 570 300,000 - - - - 300000
ZR-RETCACTAR “EC-E-A-RE
CRETZAC LR
4500000 - - - - 4500000
Total 6,500000 - - - - 6500000
&3t

Note: The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the

commencement of the exercise period.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the
date of this report were:

Mr. Hong Tianzhu

Mr. Zhu Yongxiang

Mr. Tang Daoping

Mr. Hui Tsz Wai

Mr. Ji Zhongliang

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen*
Professor Cheng Longdi*
Professor Tao Xiaoming*

* Independent non-executive Directors

In accordance with articles 108(A) and 108(B) of the articles of
association of the Company, Mr. Hui Tsz Wai and Prof. Tao Xiaoming will
retire as Directors by rotation and they, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
Mr. Ji Zhongliang has informed the Board that he will retire as a Director
and will not offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Hong Tianzhu, Mr. Zhu Yongxiang and Mr. Tang Daoping, all
being executive Directors, has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of one year commencing from 21
November 2015, and will continue thereafter for successive terms of
one year until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other expiring at the end of the
initial term or at any time thereafter. Mr. Hui Tsz Wai and Mr. Ji
Zhongliang, both being executive Directors, has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from their respective dates of appointment as an
executive Director, and will continue thereafter for successive term of
one year until terminated by not less than three month’s notice in
writing served by either party on the other expiring at the end of the
initial term or at any time thereafter.

Each of Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, Professor Tao Xiaoming and
Professor Cheng Longdi, all being independent non-executive directors,
has been appointed for an initial term of one year commencing from
their respective dates of appointment as an INED renewable
automatically for a successive term of one year each commencing from
the next day after the expiry of the then current term, unless terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing at the end of the initial
term or at any time thereafter.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The service contracts entered into by the Company with each of the
Directors, which are currently in force and were in force during the year
ended 31 December 2020, contain indemnity provisions which are
permitted indemnity provisions under the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) subject to the limitations
specified in sections 468 and 469 thereof, for the benefit of the
executive Directors. Pursuant to such provisions, the Company shall
indemnify and hold harmless any Directors on demand from and
against any and all losses, claims, damages, liabilities, and expenses,
including without limitation, any proceedings brought against such
Directors, arising from the performance of his duties pursuant to or his
appointment under the service contracts, so far as permitted by law,
except in any case where the matter in respect of which indemnification
is sought was caused by the default, neglect, omission or fraud of the
executive Directors. The Company has also taken out and maintained
appropriate insurance cover to indemnify the Directors for liabilities that
may arise out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
on an annual basis. During the year ended 31 December 2020, no
claims were made against the Directors.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive
Directors confirmation of his independence and the Company considers
that each of them to be independent based on the guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, FIVE HIGHEST PAID
DIRECTORS/EMPLOYEES AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Details of the emoluments of the Directors on a named basis during the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 37 to the
accompanying financial statements.

Details of the five highest paid individuals during the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in note 27 to the accompanying financial
statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the remuneration of the
senior management by band is set out as follows:
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Number of
Remuneration bands senior management
FeE BREEEAY
Below RMB1,000,000 AR 1,000,000 T T 0
RMB1,000,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR 1,000,001 TTE A R 2,000,000 7T 3
RMB2,000,001 to RMB3,000,000 AR 2,000,001 TTE A KR 3,000,000 7T 0
RMB3,000,001 to RMB4,000,000 AR #3,000,001 TTE A KR 4,000,000 7T 0
RMB4,000,001 to RMB5,000,000 AR 4,000,001 TTE A R 5000000 7T 0
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REMUNERATION POLICY

Remuneration policy of the Group is reviewed regularly, making
reference to the legal framework, market condition and performance of
the Group and individual staff including the Directors). The
remuneration policy and remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and the senior management of the Group are reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee, which are contained in the paragraph
headed “Remuneration Committee” under the section headed
"Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Particulars of the Group's retirement benefit schemes are set out in note
27 to the accompanying financial statements.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management as at
the date of this annual report are set out on pages 52 to 55 of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance,
Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong (the “SFQ")), as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

N BUR

REBSERERE - MR RAKERER 8
T(BRES) 2RA - ERRTEFHMBOR -
MEEGgEERIAEENTEERGREEE
ZHMBRRFHAES  HBEERAFERS [

XEARE] —HIFHEREE —BRA-

BIRERIGE
AEBRKEFFE 2 FBENEN B BHRE
BzE27 o

EERSREEABZEAGE

EENEREBAEBRAFRABRZEAAGRES
RAFIRES2ESSH

RITBABRARRARERABZR (ERRERE
BIFEsN BE S LB ((EHRBEGMN]) S
XVER) ZBtn ~ MR RERE T EERIEES
RAEGHIF 216G REBERARRATFEZE
ARz #m MR R - SRE E TR RIPTE R IR 2
7 AR TE 2B DA B Al 77 SUB AN AN 2 =) B B 32 P 2 #E
mEORBIAT

Name of Number of
Group member/ ordinary
associated shares
Name of directors corporation Nature of (Note 1)
of the Company AEBERERT interest ZERER Percentage
ARBRESBHE HEEE AR EEME (Mfat1) Bo
Mr. Hong Tianzhu the Company Interest of controlled 544,742,400 (L) 59.53%
AR E YNNG corporation(s) (Note 2)
L PIN (K3 2)
the Company Beneficial owner 5,400,000 (L) 0.59%
/NG| BEEEEA
Mr. Zhu Yongxiang the Company Interest of spouse 219,900,000 (L) 24.03%
RoKRE A& /NG| fofE s (Note 3)
(Ktat3)
Mr. Tang Daoping the Company Beneficial owner 2,580,000 (L) 0.28%
HETEE RAT] Ema A (Note 4)
(it 4)
Mr. Hui Tsz Wai the Company Beneficial owner 4,500,000 (L) 0.49%
FFELE ZAN/N| EmEEA (Note 5)
(MfaEs5)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(Continued)

Notes:

1. The letter "L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

2. Among these 544,742,400 Shares, as to 392,842,400 Shares are registered
in the name of and beneficially owned by New Green Group Limited, the
entire issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by Texhong
Group Holdings Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Hong Tianzhu
and as to 151,900,000 Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Trade Partner Investments Limited, the entire issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned as to 57.44% by Mr. Hong Tianzhu
through New Green Group Limited. Under the SFO, Mr. Hong Tianzhu is
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by New Green Group
Limited and Trade Partner Investments Limited. Mr. Hong Tianzhu is a
director of Texhong Group Holdings Limited, New Green Group Limited
and Trade Partner Investments Limited.

3. Among these 219,900,000 Shares, as to 68,000,000 Shares are registered in
the name of and beneficially owned by Wisdom Grace Investments
Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by
Ms. Zhao Zhiyang and as to 151,900,000 Shares are registered in the name
of and beneficially owned by Trade Partner Investments Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which is beneficially owned as to 42.56% by Ms.
Zhao Zhiyang through Wisdom Grace Investments Limited. Mr. Zhu
Yongxiang is the spouse of Ms. Zhao Zhiyang. Under the SFO, Mr. Zhu
Yongxiang is deemed to be interested in the same number of shares in
which Ms. Zhao Zhiyang is interested. Mr. Zhu Yongxiang is a director of
Wisdom Grace Investments Limited and Trade Partner Investments
Limited.

4. These interests includes 2,000,000 share options granted to Mr. Tang
Daoping pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

5. These interests represent share options granted to Mr. Hui Tsz Wai
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
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2. % F544742400 1% % 7 392,842,400 f% LA New Green
Group Limited ( E & %8 2 & 77 I Z& i Texhong Group
Holdings Limited Bz G * AARAM A A BB AR E
100% %) BERIER/ERIER AZR 5 151,900,000 8%
LA Trade Partner Investments Limited ( 3 X 4 % 4 & 1B
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5744% K ) BERIERBEREBAER - REZFR
H B AR B 3t R AR % A B4R A B New Green Group
Limited & Trade Partner Investments Limited 578 2 BT I%
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Limited * New Green Group Limited }z Trade Partner
Investments Limited 2 2 °

3. %% 219900,000 0% % 15 H 68,000,000 i LA Wisdom Grace
Investments Limited (2 #E BHITRABBEESG LT E
HEB)BERERERES AER © 151,900,000/ JA
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Wisdom Grace Investments Limited & 25 5 & 2 2 2 %
TR BI4256% am ) BB RIERBRBEBAERL ° K
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2020, the interests
or short position of the persons other than a Director or chief executive
of the Company in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:

FERRELFRARND - HEARORE
R CEERAR

MEBEMAE R2BE-TF+-_A=+—080 R
ANARISEMBEAERY - BERD R ERETE
ERBEES MR EIEGE 3B IFL N A RAET
BFEZERMAZERIAEHAT(ERRAZ
EERTHRAHEBRIN T

Ordinary Shares of the Company: RAFZ R
Number of
ordinary
shares
Name of the Nature of (Note 1)
substantial shareholders interests ZERERE Percentage
TERRESE LB EEME (KtaE1) Bk
New Green Group Limited Beneficial owner 392,842,400 (L) 42.93%
EnEE A (Note 2)
(Htat2)
Interest of controlled 151,900,000 (L) 16.60%
corporation(s) (Note 3)
FIiEHE ARz (Kt5%3)
Trade Partner Investments Limited Beneficial owner 151,900,000 (L) 16.60%
EnEBA (Note 3)
(K15 3)
Wisdom Grace Investments Limited Beneficial owner 68,000,000 (L) 7.43%
ERBEAA (Note 4)
(WfzE4)
Interest of controlled 151,900,000 (L) 16.60%
corporation(s) (Note 3)
FrizslE AR (K15 3)
Texhong Group Holdings Limited Interest of controlled 544,742,400 (L) 59.53%
corporation(s) (Notes 2 and 3)
P A Az (HiaE2 X% 3)
Ms. Ke Luping Interest of spouse 550,142,400 (L) 60.12%
TS ELZ+ Ao B (Note 5)
(HtaEs)
Ms. Zhao Zhiyang Interest of controlled 219,900,000 (L) 24.03%
wEHzt corporation(s) (Note 6)
P §lAE Az (Kizte)
Mr. Hui Ching Lau Interest of controlled 64,100,000 (L) 7.01%
FEBImSEE corporation(s) (Note 7)
FrizslE AR (Ktaz7)
Event Star Limited Beneficial owner 64,100,000 (L) 7.01%
BEnEAA (Note 7)
(K15 7)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Notes:

68

The letter "L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

These 392,842,400 Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by New Green Group Limited, the entire issued share capital of
which is beneficially owned by Texhong Group Holdings Limited, a
company wholly beneficially owned by Mr. Hong Tianzhu. Under the SFO,
each of Texhong Group Holdings Limited and Mr. Hong Tianzhu is deemed
to be interested in all the Shares held by New Green Group Limited.

These 151,900,000 Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Trade Partner Investments Limited, the entire issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned as to 57.44% by Mr. Hong Tianzhu
through New Green Group Limited and 42.56% by Ms. Zhao Zhiyang
through Wisdom Grace Investments Limited. Under the SFO, each of Mr.
Hong Tianzhu, Ms. Zhao Zhiyang, New Green Group Limited and Wisdom
Grace Investments Limited is deemed to be interested in all the Shares
held by Trade Partner Investments Limited.

These 68,000,000 Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Wisdom Grace Investments Limited, the entire issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned by Ms. Zhao Zhiyang. Under the SFO,
Ms. Zhao Zhiyang is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Wisdom Grace Investments Limited.

Ms. Ke Luping is the spouse of Mr. Hong Tianzhu. Under the SFO, Ms. Ke
Luping is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which
Mr. Hong Tianzhu is interested.

Among these 219,900,000 Shares, as to 68,000,000 Shares are registered in
the name of and beneficially owned by Wisdom Grace Investments
Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by
Ms. Zhao Zhiyang and as to 151,900,000 Shares are registered in the name
of and beneficially owned by Trade Partner Investments Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which is beneficially owned as to 42.56% by Ms.
Zhao Zhiyang through Wisdom Grace Investments Limited.

These 64,100,000 Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Event Star Limited, a company which is 100% controlled by Mr.
Hui Ching Lau. Under the SFO, Mr. Hui Ching Lau is deemed to be
interested in all the Shares held by Event Star Limited.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Options” above, at
no time during the year ended 31 December 2020 was the Company,
its holding company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
which enabled the Directors (including their spouses or children under
18 years of age), to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of Shares in
or debenture of the Company or any other body corporate.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the related party transactions as set out in note 35
of the financial statements and in the section headed “Connected
transactions” in this annual report, no Director nor an entity connected
with such director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to
the Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party, subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Save as disclosed in the related party transactions as set out in note 35
of the financial statements and in the section headed “Connected
transactions” in this annual report, no contract of significance has been
entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company which
were not contracts of service with any Director or any person engaged
in full time employment of the Company were entered into or subsisted
during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the percentages of
purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier 13.0%
— five largest suppliers combined 34.4%
Sales
— the largest customer 2.9%
— five largest customers combined 8.7%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers of the Group noted above.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had conducted
the following continuing connected transactions which were required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 14A.71 of the Listing Rules:

Continuing connected transactions — Utilities Master Supply
and Service Agreements

m

70

Reference is made to (i) the announcement of the Company dated
23 May 2017 in relation to the supply of utilities and wastewater
treatment services by Texhong Industrial Park Vietnam Limited
("Texhong Industrial Park”) to each of Texhong Galaxy Technology
Limited (“Texhong Galaxy”) for its uses on the Texhong Galaxy
Land (as defined below) and Texhong Dyeing And Printing
Vietnam Limited (Currently known as Texhong Winnitex Vietnam
Limited) (“Texhong Dyeing”) for its uses on the Dyeing Land (as
defined below); and (i) the announcement of the Company dated
20 October 2017 in relation to supply of gas by Texhong Industrial
Park to Texhong Dyeing Land; and (iii) the announcement of the
Company dated 10 May 2019 and the supplemental
announcement of the Company dated 17 May 2019.

On 10 May 2019, Texhong Galaxy, as customer, had entered into
the following renewal agreements with Texhong Industrial Park, as
supplier, for its uses on two parcels of industrial land located at
Texhong Industrial Park, Hai Ha District, Quang Ninh Province,
Vietnam with a site area of approximately 225,000 square metres
and 215,000 square metres, respectively, and the infrastructure
erected thereon (“Texhong Galaxy Land") with effect from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2021:

1. the power master supply agreement in relation to the
provision and supply of electricity (“Texhong Galaxy Power
Master Supply Agreement”);

2. the steam master supply agreement in relation to the
provision and supply of steam (“Texhong Galaxy Steam
Master Supply Agreement”);

3. the wastewater treatment service agreement in relation to
the provision and supply of wastewater treatment service
("Texhong Galaxy Wastewater Treatment Service
Agreement”); and

4. the water master supply agreement in relation to the
provision and supply of water (“Texhong Galaxy Water

Master Supply Agreement”).

(collectively, “Texhong Galaxy Agreements”)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Continuing connected transactions — Utilities Master Supply

and Service Agreements (Continued)

(2)  On 10 May 2019, Texhong Dyeing, as customer, had entered into
the following renewal agreements with Texhong Industrial Park, as
supplier, for its uses on a parcel of industrial land located at
Texhong Industrial Park, Hai Ha District, Quang Ninh Province,
Vietnam with a site area of approximately 123,228 square metres
and the infrastructure erected thereon (“Texhong Dyeing Land")
with effect from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2021:

1. the power master supply agreement in relation to the
provision and supply of electricity (“Texhong Dyeing Power
Master Supply Agreement”);

2. the steam master supply agreement in relation to the
provision and supply of steam (“Texhong Dyeing Steam
Master Supply Agreement”);

3. the wastewater treatment service agreement in relation to
the provision and supply of wastewater treatment service
("Texhong Dyeing Wastewater Treatment Service
Agreement”);

4. the water master supply agreement in relation to the
provision and supply of water (“Texhong Dyeing Water

Master Supply Agreement”); and

5. the provision and supply of liquefied petroleum gas
(“Texhong Dyeing Gas Supply Agreement”).

(collectively, “Texhong Dyeing Agreements”)

BERS &)
BEBESS — KEMERREAHSF)

)

R-ZE—NFRA+H  RUEBEUEAEFS)
BRI TRE (ERMHER) st EE AR
FEEAESTRRT TEE B EmELD
123228 oKk TERMARE FFrEE
(TR AR )T 0 T &R
B -—ZE-_TF—A—BRE-_ZT-_—F
+=ZA=+—H1:

1. AREENHENHEERHZE ([ RIRE

HERRBZ])

2. AEERHEREAHERRE(TRI
REBEAMEREHRE])

3. ARARRGEE KB I AR A M5 7K BE IR AR A%
ek (R LB S KER RS HE])

4. BEKEESMKET R ([ RIABH
KBIHED R

5. RERHEREA R ([ RIABKRR
W=D

(il [ R B % 1)

2020 ANNUAL REPORT —Z-EFFH 71



EFERE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Continuing connected transactions — Utilities Master Supply
and Service Agreements (Continued)

3

72

On 10 May 2019, Texhong United Technology Vietnam Company
Limited (“United Technology Vietnam”), had entered into the
following agreements with Texhong Industrial Park, as supplier, for
its uses on a parcel of industrial land located at Texhong Industrial
Park, Hai Ha District, Quang Ninh Province, Vietnam with a site area
of approximately 269,748.5 square meters and the infrastructure
erected thereon (“United Technology Vietnam Land") with effect
from 1 June 2019 to 31 December 2021:

1. the power master supply agreement in relation to the
provision and supply of electricity (“United Technology
Vietnam Power Master Supply Agreement”);

2. the steam master supply agreement in relation to the
provision and supply of steam (“United Technology Vietnam
Steam Master Supply Agreement”);

3. the wastewater treatment service agreement in relation to
the provision and supply of wastewater treatment service
("United Technology Vietnam Wastewater Treatment Service
Agreement”); and

4. the water master supply agreement in relation to the
provision and supply of water (“United Technology Vietnam
Water Master Supply Agreement”).

(collectively, “United Technology Vietnam Agreements”)

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 10 May
2019 for further details of the Texhong Galaxy Agreements,
Texhong Dyeing Agreements and United Technology Vietnam
Agreements.

The tables below set out the actual transaction amount and the
annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2020 for each of the
Texhong Dyeing Agreements, Texhong Galaxy Agreements and
United Technology Vietnam Agreements.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

BERS ®)

For the year
ended

31 December
2020
BE-2-%F
+=A=+—H
LLFEE

Texhong Dyeing Agreements

RUT BN R

Texhong Dyeing Power Master Supply Agreement
R RBEEEBLTZE

Texhong Dyeing Water Master Supply Agreement
RITREHKETZ

Texhong Dyeing Steam Master Supply Agreement
RUTRR TR EA T Z

Texhong Dyeing Wastewater Treatment
Service Agreement

RUTREE)S/K B IR AR TS 1hh

Texhong Dyeing Gas Supply Agreement
KA FBEIRR A 5

Texhong Galaxy Agreements

R S8R 155 5

Texhong Galaxy Power Master Supply Agreement
RALEROA R E LB W

Actual transaction amount
BB FHEHE

Existing annual caps

BEFELR

Actual transaction amount
ERRHTHE

Existing annual caps

BEFELR

Actual transaction amount

ERZ ST

Existing annual caps

RAEFELR

Actual transaction amount

Existing annual caps

BEFELR

Actual transaction amount

ERX ST

Existing annual caps

FERTEFE LR

Actual transaction amount
ERRX SR

Existing annual caps

BAEFE LR

RMB3.726 million
AR ¥ 3,726,000 70

RMB11.966 million
AR 11,966,000 7T

RMB1.046 million
AR ¥ 1,046,000 7T

RMB5.093 million
AR ¥ 5,093,000 70

RMB11.120 million
AR#11,120,000 7T

RMB38.962 million
A #38962,000 7T

RMB1.421 million
AR ¥E1,421,000 7T

RMB6.67 million
AR ¥ 6,670,000 70

RMB1.35 million
AR #51,350,000 7T

RMB9.646 million
AR ¥ 9,646,000 70

RMB161.145 million
AR ¥ 161,145,000 7T

RMB190.32 million
AR ¥ 190,320,000 7T
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

BERXS #)

For the year
ended

31 December
2020
BE-F-%F
t=A=+-8H
LtFE

Texhong Galaxy Water Master Supply Agreement
RELHRA oK @t a%

Texhong Galaxy Steam Master Supply Agreement
RATEROM 25 7 e 4 i

Texhong Galaxy Wastewater Treatment
Service Agreement

R YL R V57K BE T2 AR 7% 15

United Technology Vietham Agreements

Bt & R R 15

United Technology Vietham Power Master
Supply Agreement
e R HERA RS

United Technology Vietnam Steam Master
Supply Agreement
AR R TR AR S

United Technology Vietnam Wastewater Treatment
Service Agreement

Bra RHR MR 5K R IR AR

United Technology Vietnam Water Master
Supply Agreement
Bra R M B k&

Actual transaction amount
ERX S

Existing annual caps

REFE LR

Actual transaction amount
BERR 5 e

Existing annual caps

REFE LR

Actual transaction amount
BRERFEHE

Existing annual caps

REFELR

Actual transaction amount
ERR e

Existing annual caps

REFELR

Actual transaction amount
BERZH5EH

Existing annual caps

REFE LR

Actual transaction amount
BRS¢

Existing annual caps

REFELR

Actual transaction amount
BERZ e R

Existing annual caps

REFE LR

RMB2.422 million
ANER¥E 2,422,000 7T

RMB3.206 million
AR ¥ 3,206,000 70

RMB11.371 million
AR¥11,371,000 7T

RMB14.709 million
AR ¥ 14,709,000 7T

RMB3.955 million
AR ¥ 3,955,000 7T

RMB4.16 million
AR ¥ 4,160,000 7T

RMB4.903 million
AR 4,903,000 7T

RMB16.641 million
AR ¥ 16,641,000 7T

RMB1.987 million
AR #51,987,0007T

RMB15.851 million
AR ¥ 15851,0007C

RMB0.606 million
AR # 606,000 7T

RMB6.702 million
AR ¥ 6,702,000 70

RMB0.482 million
AR5 482,000 7T

RMB3.655 million
AR ¥ 3,655,0007T
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Listing Rules implication

Texhong Industrial Park is a connected person of the Company by virtue
of its being an associate of Mr. Hong Tianzhu, the chairman of the
Company and an executive Director and Mr. Zhu Yongxiang, the co-
chief executive officer of the Group and an executive Director.
Therefore, the transactions contemplated under the Texhong Dyeing
Agreements, the Texhong Galaxy Agreements and United Technology
Vietnam Agreements constitute continuing connected transactions of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have, for the purpose of Rule
14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed and confirmed that the
aforementioned continuing connected transactions undertaken by the
Group were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group; (i) either on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii)
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the transactions
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole. PricewaterhouseCoopers, the
auditors of the Company, has issued a letter to the Company to confirm
the matters stated in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

There was no material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries or
associated companies by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2020.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this annual report, there was sufficient prescribed
public float of the issued shares of the Company under the Listing Rules
at any time during the financial year ended 31 December 2020.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 21 November 2004. The Audit
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, Professor Tao Xiaoming and
Professor Cheng Longdi. Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen is the chairman
of the Audit Committee. The rights and duties of the Audit Committee
comply with the code provisions of the CG Code. The Audit Committee
is responsible for reviewing and supervising the Group's financial
reporting process and internal control system and providing advice and
recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the audited results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2020.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee pursuant to
a resolution of the Directors passed on 19 March 2012. The Nomination
Committee comprises an executive Director and the chairman of the
Company, Mr. Hong Tianzhu and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Professor Tao Xiaoming, Professor Cheng Longdi and
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen. The chairman of the Nomination
Committee is Mr. Hong Tianzhu. The Nomination Committee has
adopted terms of reference which are in line with the code provisions
of the CG Code. The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice in accordance with the Company’s policy if
considered necessary.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 21 November 2004. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, Professor Tao Xiaoming
and Professor Cheng Longdi and the chairman and executive Director,
namely Mr. Hong Tianzhu. Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen is the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee has
rights and duties consistent with those set out in the code provisions of
the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee is principally responsible
for formulating the Group’s policy and structure for all remunerations of
the Directors and senior management and providing advice and
recommendations to the Board.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group made charitable
contributions amounted to approximately RMB5.35 million.

LITIGATION

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is engaged in any
litigation or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim
of material importance was known to the Directors to be pending or
threatened against the Company or any of its subsidiaries that would
have a material adverse effect on the financial condition or results of
operation of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Hong Tianzhu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 12 March 2021
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

According to the requirements of the Appendix 27 “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, the Company has prepared this environmental,
social and governance report (the “ESG Report” or the “Report”), which
sets out the performance of the Group in terms of environmental and
social subject areas in 2020. This is the fifth ESG Report published
consecutively by the Group.

REPORTING SCOPE

The Report covers the main business segments of the Group in the
manufacturing of yarns, grey fabrics, garment fabrics and garments,
including the environmental and social key performance indicators ("KPI")
of the 17 production subsidiaries of the Group that are situated in
Mainland China, Vietnam and Nicaragua, throughout the financial year
ended 31 December 2020. This report includes the newly acquired
Zhejiang Qing Mao Weaving, Dyeing & Printing Co,, Ltd. ("Zhejiang Qing
Mao"), excluding Chu Hsing Garment Cambodia Co., Ltd. which has
ceased production. Save as disclosed in this report, there is no
change in the scope of disclosure in this report compared with the
ESG report set out in the 2019 annual report of the Group published
on 31 March 2020.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The Group performed an assessment over the relevant subject areas
and KPIs in terms of applicability and materiality in accordance with the
ESG Reporting Guide. In full compliance with the disclosure requirement
“comply or explain’, this report provides explanations as to why certain
disclosure rules do not apply to the Group, thereby satisfying the
reporting principles of the ESG Reporting Guide:

"Materiality”: The Group determines material ESG issues by
stakeholders engagement and materiality assessment;

"Quantitative”: The Report states the Group's applicable
environmental and social KPIs on a quantitative basis;

“Consistency”: The relevant disclosure methodology of the Report

remains consistent with those used in ESG Report for the previous
year.
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1.

RESPONSIBILITY MANAGEMENT

1.1

1.2

ESG Strategy

The Group upholds the core values of “Respect for nature
and love for mankind” and the corporate mission of
“Becoming a global leading cotton textile enterprise that
emphasizes creating a wonderful life”. It adheres to the
principles of “Honest Partnership, creativity and excellence,
customer-oriented approach” and insists on a sustainable
development pattern. Just like the integration and
interaction of the three-color ribbons in the Group logo,
Texhong integrates social, economic and environmental
responsibilities into production and operation to promote
the concept of humanity, environmental friendliness and
energy conservation, health and safety, and integrity, with a
view to becoming a socially responsible corporation.

ESG Governance structure

The Group recognizes the importance of enhancing its own
environmental and social performances to maintain business
sustainability, and the Group has established a sound
corporate governance structure. In determining its operation
strategy, the Group considers risks and opportunities
affecting the ESG issues, which will provide guidelines for its
daily business operations.

The Board is the top governance organization for ESG
matters of the Group and assumes full responsibility for the
ESG strategies and reporting of the Group. The Board
endorses the Group’s commitments to ESG responsibility,
and is responsible for directing and surpervising the ESG
decision and performance of the Group. The Board reviews
the ESG performance of the Group annually, identifies,
evaluates and manages important ESG-related matters,
reviews ESG objectives and monitors progress towards ESG
objectives, and oversees and approves annual ESG report.

In charge of assessing and determining the ESG risk
exposure, the management of the Group also ensures the
Group establishes appropriate and effective ESG risk
management and internal control systems and reports to
the Board the ESG-related risks and opportunities, and
progress made against ESG-related goals, and provides
confirmation on the effectiveness of the ESG system.

To carry out the full-scale ESG management work, the
Group’s ESG working group, comprised of the major
functional departments of Texhong, is established, and all
responsible officers in charge of various functional
departments will directly participate in and designate
personnel to engage in the ESG management and reporting
work, the work progress of which will be reported to the
management of the Group.
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1.

80

RESPONSIBILITY MANAGEMENT (Continued) 1. EXEE®)
1.3 Stakeholder Engagement 13 FREBELFBE

The Group attaches great importance to communications
with stakeholders and establishes effective communication
channels with key stakeholders including shareholders,
employees, suppliers and customers, and actively
communicates with stakeholders, understands and responds
to the demands and expectations of stakeholders.

AEBESEEAMNSHBELINER B
ENRmBAETERER BT H#HES
HEFPEREY TERMBRRE BB
FERMEZAESBR  THRILCEN S
THETT VAR SR -

Stakeholders Expectations and concerns Means of communication

AR HAZEERER BEAA

Government - Observance of disciplines and laws Daily supervision
Tax payment in accordance with Official correspondence
laws Conference exchange
Labour rights

Environmental protection

B S FAS 7 HE&EE
HOEMNTR NER
BIHER GREM
RIEIRE
Shareholders/investors - Information disclosure General Meeting of Shareholders

Investment returns
Corporate governance
Risk control

Sustainable development

BRREE - ERBE
- REDE
NGINSES
R\ e 4%
AR R

Company website

Mail, telephone and fax
Investor relations activities
Website of the Stock Exchange

BERKE
NEAh

Bt EBE - BE
REEBEED
56 32 FfT 4R

Employees - Wages and benefits
Occupational health and safety
Training and development
opportunities
Democratic communication and
human rights protection

BT - TERER
BixiEFEELT S
Hol RS
REEBEAERE

Complaint E-mail and hotline

Annual meetings, routine meetings,
etc.

Internal publications (Texhong News)
Employee activities
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1. RESPONSIBILITY MANAGEMENT (Continued) 1. EFEE %)

1.3 Stakeholder Engagement (Continued) 1.3 FFEEABEE)

Stakeholders Expectations and concerns Means of communication
AR HAZEERE R BEAR
Customers Product quality and safety Customer satisfaction survey

Quality service
Product innovation
Sustainable development

Visiting customers
Handling customer complaints

'F EnEERZE BEEMBERE
BB RS BFEED
EE mm BT BRI
AREER

Partners Supply chain management Project cooperation negotiation
Quality and price Visiting suppliers
Integrity and compliance Quality communication

BB HrEsEER BB A E#H
BERER R ED
HIEEH BEE2ER

Society Environmental protection Charitable donations
Events for good causes Volunteer service

He RIERE HERE
NI ) HRRE RS
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1. RESPONSIBILITY MANAGEMENT (Continued) 1. EFEE®
1.4 Materiality assessment 1.4 BEEMHFME

In order to better understand the issues that stakeholders are BRATHBANZEEFIEINZEE 18

concerned about, to guide the development of ESG work BISGTEMHARMNBENRS - 25

and the preparation of the Report, and to improve the BEATHESE  ASETEHREESG

quality of the disclosures, the Group conducted an ESG BEME  BENEEET I

materiality assessment to identify key issues. In 2020, the ESG HEE - —_T-TF ESGL{E/4ER

working group invited key internal and external stakeholders BTANBEBFHEBA2EREE S

to participate in the materiality assessment to identify FHE - BEE T EZHESGE ©

material ESG issues.

« Identification of issues: Taking into consideration . EBERRZGEAEEAEEIR
factors such as the Group's current situation, industry TEHR  mEERERNEEEEE
situation and risks and opportunities, 20 ESG issues P HEAER LK EFZZERTAE
relevant to the Group and its stakeholders were B 20 Al ESG % RE
identified;

+ Questionnaire survey: Focusing on the identified - REEAWHYEBNENERED
issues, online and offline survey questionnaires were HEEE BT BFNHERSE
designed and issued to internal and external A~ SNEBF = A8 BE 5 AR 5T A1 B AR
stakeholders such as management, employees, ERMETHEAABE - LRE1250F
customers and suppliers. A total of 125 valid WHELE YESETEEAMELD T
questionnaires were received and summarized and D BRI EE LR
materiality analysis was conducted to obtain preliminary
materiality assessment results;

« Confirmation of results: The preliminary results were . BEREER VS ERBEESRETERB
discussed, verified and confirmed by the senior EAESG T/ RETTRIR © BB FIAE
management and the ESG working group, and the final R EREIHNEEHTRER -

materiality assessment results were obtained.

Compliant and incorruptible operation
AREREE

Product quality management
ERUEEE
Customer privacy management
REBALER
R&D and innovation
e A

Supply chain management
HEER

Customer satisfaction management
EEREEER

2
© Ei
O W\
O ik =
Relite Occupation health and safety
S i [TLT L EES
B
F e FHHER
5 o Equality and diversification Prohibition of child labour and forced labour
9 >Ka FERSTE BEETERHST
9= Employee development and training
ans BT B R
E E5Y Contribution to society
=7 Bt e Wastewater discharge management
BERERE R
Energy management
BERER
Waste management Employee interests and benefits.
Packaging materials management EENEE B TiEEER
BEMEEE
Water resources management Waste gas emissions
KERER FERE ISR

Response to climate change
EHERE(E

Impacts on business development of the Group

HARKRBEEXBRROTE
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2.

*

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

2.1

Innovation and excellence

Since its establishment in 1997, adhering to the enterprise
spirit of “professionalism and innovation”, the Group has
been committed to creating differentiated products and
bringing forth new products constantly, and promoted
industrial upgrading and revolution in the field of cotton
textile. The Group has invested a large amount of funds and
resources in technological innovation and technological
transformation. With our laboratories as the technical center,
the Group has developed a number of new technologies
and products with a focus on pure cotton products,
including elastic pure cotton core-spun yarn series, high-end
yarns and garment fabrics for knitting, through independent
R&D and cooperation with renowned domestic and
international fabric developers and research institutions. The
Group expands market share with top-notch, superb,
premium and advanced products, and actively explores a
variety of functional fibers and new types of fibers, and
spares no effort to promote environmentally friendly raw
materials and contribute to sustainable environmental
development.

The Group has been committed to product research and
development and talent cultivation, and has established
Texhong Education College* (KL %A £t ), Texhong Group
Yarn Research and Development Center* (& 8T £ B 40 4 A 3%
F0)), Jiangsu Post-doctoral Innovation Practice Base* (T &1 &
8+ 1% Al ¥1 & B & ), Texhong Group Retail Products
Research and Development Center* (K 4T £ B Z & & fa iff 3%
D), etc. A number of the subsidiaries of the Group have
obtained the certificates of high-tech enterprises, and together
with China Textile Machinery* (FF 45 #), have established the
Textile Research Institute, which is a special core-covered yarn
textile engineering center in Jiangsu Province.

The Group pays close attention to the protection of
intellectual properties, keeps in view our patents, LOGO and
trademarks, safeguards our legal rights and intellectual
property rights, and maintains fair competition in the market.
The Group observes relevant local laws and regulations, such
as “Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Patent
Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Regulation for the
Implementation of Patent Law of the People’s Republic of
China” and “Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, and complies with internal policies, such
as the “Management Policy on Intellectual Property Rights”,
“Management Policy on Transformation of Scientific and
Technological Achievements”, “Incentive Measures on
Transformation of Scientific and Technological
Achievements” and “Management Policy on Research and
Development Structure . As of the end of 2020, the Group
had 249 patents, including 55 invention patents, 183 utility
model patents, and 11 software copyrights.

for identification purpose only

2. EmBERH

2.1
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2.

84

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (Continued)
2.2 Quality-oriented

The Group attaches great importance to product quality
management and strictly complies with relevant local laws
and regulations, such as the “Product Quality Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, “Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Protection of Consumers’ Rights and Interests”,
and “National General Safety Technical Code for Textile
Products”. The Group has improved its internal systems such
as the "Quiality assurance structure”, “Quality work manual’,
“Rules on order assessment and product modification”, and
“Rules on product manufacturing and warehousing”. As at
the end of 2020, five subsidiaries established an ISO 9001
quality management system and obtained third-party
certification.

Quiality assuran:

GRY

1SO 9001 Quality Management System
Certificate of Texhong Winnitex Vietnam
RITE#HMEIS09001 EEEEBAIE

In order to ensure product quality, the Group has established
a quality assurance inspection system and clearly defined the
job responsibilities, inspection requirements, inspection
frequency, etc. of each responsible person, and requires each
inspector to conduct inspection for the purpose of solving
problems and achieving effective control, and to supervise
rectification and ensure quality.

With increased investment in technological instruments, the
Group adopts advanced equipment for effective control over
product quality and integrates quality management into the
whole production process.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RUI4SEBMARA T

2. EmHERE

inspection
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Quality assurance system inspection
BRERRE

Technology quality assurance inspection
THERRE

Equipment quality assurance inspection
RIEBERRE

Operation qua\ityrassuranie inspection
BEEERRE

Product supervision quality assurance inspection
EmEEERRE

Product quality assurance inspection
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2.

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (Continued)
2.2 Quality-oriented (Continued)

The Group complies with the requirements such as the
"Quality management and shutdown policy” and “Rules on
quality issue handling”. When the quality fluctuation reached
a level that requires shutdown, for example, failure to meet
internal control standards during raw materials inspection,
production will be stopped immediately and relevant
administrator will be notified to arrange rectification. The
production can only be resumed once passing the
inspection. Afterwards, the Group will impose cash and
administrative penalties on the person in charge of quality
assurance in light of the nature of the issue according to
policies such as the “Responsibility and accountability policy
for quality issues”.

The Group improved the operating skill level of our
employees, strengthened the awareness of standard
operation, and improved product quality through monthly
quality analysis meetings, internal and external quality
training sessions, operation competitions, etc.

In 2020, all subsidiaries of the Group stepped up efforts in
quality control, enhanced the construction of quality
assurance team, organized various relevant policies, and
implemented quality management throughout the
production process.

Texhong Yinlong Textile Ltd. (“Texhong Yinlong"): In order to
strengthen the quality control of the production process of
products, on the basis of the existing cotton supply team
and quality control team, Texhong Yinlong has also
established a quality stability improvement team, a
professional production team for denim series, a
professional production team for knitting and elastic cotton
products and a professional production team for open-end
spinning, to control and monitor the product quality at all
levels;
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Quality-oriented (Continued)

Jiangsu Century Texhong Textile Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu
Texhong"): In order to ensure quality stability, Jiangsu
Texhong has formulated a series of quality tracking
management system measures to stabilize various indicators
in respect of yarn defect control, long-term variety indicator
control, temperature and humidity (return) control and joint
quality control of the white yarn system. In addition, Jiangsu
Texhong organized middle-level management personnel to
visit and learn from fellow subsidiaries in two batches,
aiming to identify gaps, improve basic management and
promote quality improvement.
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Jiangsu Texhong: Fellow subsidiaries visit and study
IEKRIL: REARSBEE

In the previous random inspection conducted by the national,
provincial and municipal technical supervision departments, the
Group did not have any unqualified products. In 2020, the Group
did not have any recall due to product safety and health issues.

Customer-oriented

Based in China, the Group continued to expand its overseas
markets. With more than 5,000 customers worldwide, the Group
has established long-term cooperative relationships with
internationally renowned brands, covering Japan, Korea,
Southeast Asia, the European Union, South America and North
America. The continuous improvement of product quality has
greatly enhanced user satisfaction and product awareness,
enabling the Group to maintain its leading position in the
market competition.
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (Continued)

2.3 Customer-oriented (Continued)

2. EmHERE®

23 EFEM@(E)

2.3.1Improvement of customer satisfaction

It is the solemn promise of Texhong to provide high-
quality products and services within the specified time.
“Consistent product quality to meet customers’ needs”
is the quality objective of the Group. The business
philosophy of the Group is to expand market share
with brand name and improve customer satisfaction.
Consumers’ opinions and suggestions would be
analyzed comprehensively in order to improve the
quality of products and services constantly and boost
customer satisfaction in every possible way.

The Group assigns specific staff to different customers
in order to handle their enquiries in a timely manner,
including enquiries on order quality, quantity
requirement, delivery schedule and customer feedback.
Market intelligence department of the Group conducts
biannual satisfaction surveys on major customers who
have purchased the Group’s products and invites them
to complete “Customer Satisfaction Questionnaire”. In
accordance with aftersales quality management
requirements, professionals of the Group offer all-
rounded services for products sold and have been
widely recognized by customers.

Texhong Galaxy Technology Limited (“Texhong
Galaxy"): Through video conferences and on-site
visits, Texhong Galaxy regularly communicates with
customers on improving product quality and
service level to strengthen cooperation with
customers;

Jiangsu Texhong: We regularly invite key customers
and new customers to visit the Company to
exchange and discuss market demand and quality
requirements to understand customers’' needs and
improve service satisfaction.
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Jiangsu Texhong: Invited customers to visit the Company
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (Continued)

2.3 Customer-oriented (Continued)
2.3.2 Customer complaints

The Group strictly adheres to the relevant local laws
and regulations, such as the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Consumers’
Rights and Interests” to prepare documents like “Flow
chart on the handling of quality feedback from
customers on yarns of the Group” to ensure speedy
and effective resolution for quality issue reported by
customers. Each subsidiary has also established
corresponding customer service policies documents.
For example, Taltex (Zhuhai) Co,, Ltd. ("Taltex (Zhuhai)")
issued the policy on “Aftersale Customer Service” to
standardize the handling procedures. The Group
registers and records every enquiry and requirement
on quality raised by customers. For handling customer
complaints, we meet with relevant staff to analyze the
cause and identify responsible department to devise
and implement countermeasures. Reply to customer,
handling and record will be made within 20 days.

The quality department of the Group categorizes
customer feedback and analyzes pending issues,
followed by the preparation of after-sales service
report. Customer service managers of the Group are
responsible for supervising and examining after-sales
services and providing monthly and annual report to
after-sales service department at the headquarters.
Customer visits are arranged for the general manager
of the Group, if necessary.

2.3.3Customer privacy protection

Recognizing the importance of customer relations and
respecting the privacy of every customer, the Group
actively safeguards the privacy and security of each
customer. For instance, Shandong Texhong Textile Co,,
Ltd. ("Shandong Texhong”) requires employees who
disclose without authorization any customer,
technology and other confidential information in
relation to business operation or internal department
operation shall be put on probation and it may result in
termination of employment contract in a serious case.
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2. PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (Continued)

2.4 Win-win cooperation 2.4

2. EmHERE®

BELR

The Group considers the enhancement of social
responsibility performance of suppliers a fundamental task
and obligation of supply chain management. Through visits
and exchange, we promote the Group's spirit of anti-unfair
competition, respect for intellectual property and anti-
bribery to every part of the supply chain. The Group has
established guidelines such as “Regulation on the
Management of Procurement Operation of Daily Supplies of
Subsidiaries” and “Regulation on the Procurement of Certain
Supplies of the Headquarter and Texhong China” to regulate
the supply chain system. Moreover, the Group integrates the
spirit of environmental and social sustainability into the
management of supply chain:

Logistic contract: in case of newly signed or renewed
contracts, certain clauses in relation to the requirements
of environmental and social sustainability will be added,
which is legally binding on the cooperating parties.

Assessment policy: certain terms in relation to
environmental and social sustainability (refinement and
quantification of contract requirements) are added to
the existing assessment system of transportation
company as a regular management tool.

In 2020, subsidiaries of the Group conveyed the concepts of
environmental protection, energy saving and sustainable
management to suppliers through visits to suppliers,
communication with the suppliers and site inspections, and
encouraged suppliers to adopt environmental-friendly
products, use energy efficiently, and give attention to the
supplier's employee rights protection so as to continuously
improve environmental and social performance:

Shandong Texhong: Priority is given to the procurement
of environmentally friendly adhesive to reduce carbon
emissions and impact on water resources, and reduce
pollution to the environment;
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2. PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (Continued)

2.4 Win-win cooperation (Continued)

Texhong Yinlong: Encouraging packaging suppliers to
actively carry out the recycling of scrap materials and
defective raw materials, and requiring suppliers to
handle waste paper, defective products and waste in
compliance with regulations. Communicate the
implementation of the Company's environmental
protection assessment with paper tube manufacturing
suppliers on site, and promote environmental awareness
and corporate responsibility. We understand the
information of employee management from suppliers
and emphasize the remuneration and working hours of
compliance management employees;

Jiangsu Texhong: For contracted transportation suppliers,
all of them are required to adopt environmentally friendly
electric trailers and forklifts. For main auxiliary machinery
suppliers, all of their motors are required to be national
energy-saving products and meet the high-efficiency
motor standards of the National Development and Reform
Commission of the PRC.

As at the end of 2020, the Group had a total of 5,563
suppliers. The distribution of suppliers by geographical
region is as follows:

Supplier Distribution

Y EpaKiin
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1,381
China Vietnam
R Y fidEs]
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3.

RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT

3.

ERERE

1SO14001 Environmental Management System Certificate of
Texhong Winnitex Vietham

XU E ¥ E515014001

RREEERARE

As one of the top 10 most competitive enterprises in China'’s
cotton textile industry, the Group concerns about environmental
protection with respect for nature, and considers sincere
contribution and service to the society as its corporate mission
and fulfils corporate responsibility with wisdom and actions.

In active response to the fundamental national policy of
“Environmental protection” and the urge for accelerating the
development of a “Conservation-oriented society”, the Group has
paid close attention to internal environmental management,
organized energy management network, clarified the
responsibilities of management personnel at all levels, and
improved energy quota management and energy inspection,
analysis and implementation system. All subsidiaries actively
implemented the national laws and regulations as well as internal
policies of the Group, revised the system and policies every year,
and promoted environmental management and energy
conservation and emission reduction to embark on the path of
green manufacturing and sustainable development.
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RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

The Group advocates clean production and pursues
environmental and economic benefits by reducing pollutant
emissions, improving energy utilization and reducing material
consumption. The Group and its subsidiaries continuously
improve their environmental management system and conduct
energy audits regularly to assess the rationality of energy use and
tap the potential for improving energy conservation. In 2020, five
subsidiaries of the Group passed the environmental management
system certification and four subsidiaries of the Group conducted
energy audit.

The Group has formulated the following green operation
objectives according to the sustainable development strategy to
guide the Group's sustainable development direction and
planning:

Improve the utilization efficiency of energy and water
resources

Reduction of GHG emissions intensity
Hazardous and non-hazardous waste disposal in compliance

3.1 Resource Conservation
Circular economy is a new strategy of economic growth.
Developing a circular economy and building a resource-
saving enterprise are important parts of the Group's
sustainable development strategy. The Group and its
subsidiaries comply with relevant local laws and regulations
such as the “Energy Conservation Law of the People’s
Republic of China” and “Water Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, as well as the Group's normative documents such
as the "Energy Management Implementation Details”,
“Measures for Peak-and-trough Electricity Consumption and
Management for Management Staff” and “Operation
Standard for Cooling Equipment in a Workshop in Summer”
to enhance resource management, facilitate integrated use
of resources and promote waste recycling, with an aim to
become an efficient, conserving and energy-saving pioneer.
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3.

RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

3.1 Resource Conservation (Continued)
3.1.1Energy management
Focusing on the green operation objectives of
“improving utilization efficiency of energy and water”,
the Group and its subsidiaries continuously strengthen
their energy management systems and strengthen
energy management energy efficiency has been
effectively improved:

Continuously improve the energy management
policy by installing more energy measure
instrument, set energy target and energy
consumption standard, and conduct energy
efficiency assessment;

Step up analysis on the efficiency of the energy-
consuming equipment in order to enhance their
operational efficiency for energy saving;

Designate management unit and personnel for
energy conservation, build a stronger team of
energy-saving workers, and strengthen energy-
saving training;

Conduct analysis on the energy consumption to
identify any insufficiency of our energy
management in a timely manner with a view to
raising our energy management capacity;

Intensify monitoring of the quality of parts and
components to improve the quality of
maintenance and repair. Identify and fix any
possible malfunction of equipment in a timely
manner to ensure that equipment is always in
good technological condition. Actively eliminate
energy-inefficient equipment to enhance the
energy efficiency.
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RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

3.1 Resource Conservation (Continued)
3.1.1Energy management (Continued)

Shandong Texhong: In 2020, in order to further
optimize energy measurement and statistics, the
Company formulated and implemented various
normative systems in energy conservation and
energy measurement, such as the “Reward and
Punishment System for Energy Conservation
Management”, “Responsibility for Energy
Measurement Management”, “Training and
Assessment Management System for Energy
Measurement Personnel”, “Use of Energy
Measurement Instruments and Maintenance of
Management System”, etc., and organized trainings
and examinations for relevant personnel. The
Company also holds energy utilization analysis
meetings from time to time to train energy
management personnel.
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Shandong Texhong: Energy utilization analysis meeting

WERRIL : BERFI DTS

Shandong Lanyan: Establish and improve the
position responsibility system and management
system, organize balance test and energy
performance assessment to continuously improve
energy performance and strengthen energy
conservation management. In addition, the
Company launched the "Basic Management of
Fabric Production and Energy Conservation and
Consumption Reduction Project” to strengthen the
awareness of energy conservation and
consumption reduction, and strengthen the
publicity, education and training;
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3.

RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

3.1 Resource Conservation (Continued)
3.1.1Energy management (Continued)

Zhejiang Qing Mao: Provide employees with
education and training on energy conservation and
environmental protection on a regular basis, and
setting annual consumption reduction targets for
energy and conducting annual assessment, which
are basically completed in 2020. In addition, the
Company also participated in the Clean by design
clean-up project, Zero Discharge of Hazardous
Chemicals Program (ZDHC) and self-assessment
tool Higg Index training, which jointly initiated by
the Natural Resources Defense Council and the
American Fashion Design Council to enhance
employees’ awareness of environmental protection
and energy conservation and knowledge reserve.

Technical renovation and equipment replacement

In 2020, the Group and its subsidiaries continued to
invest significant resources to promote energy saving
by transforming inverter updating equipment,
optimizing process and other means:

Texhong Galaxy: Replace the dust removal device
with the operation of the converter controlled by
the negative pressure switch. After the
transformation, the frequency of the converter is
reduced to the level below 45HZ, which can save
the current of 9A per unit. One motor controls two
full-yarn depots, reducing electricity consumption
by half. In addition, Texhong Galaxy also reasonably
adjusted the frequency of the wind turbines in air
conditioners and controlled the temperature of
each process to save cold source, which achieved
significant energy saving performance;

Shandong Texhong: Far transmission pressure
meters were installed for production water, and
pressure signals were used to control the frequency
of operation of converters. According to the
pressure of the pipeline network, the frequency of
operation of converters was adjusted in real time,
which stabilized the pressure of the water supply
pipeline network. It is estimated that the power
saving rate of the project can be around 5%.
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RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

3.1 Resource Conservation (Continued)
3.1.1Energy management (Continued)
Technical renovation and equipment replacement
(Continued)

Texhong Yinfeng: Transformed the spray system of
air-conditioning room, gradually phased out old
nozzles, replaced high-efficiency energy-saving
nozzles, and significantly reduced the number of
nozzles of each sprinkler system, with a power
saving rate of 10%. In addition, Texhong Yinfeng
also carried out renovation projects such as the
update of the automatic control system for
capacitor compensation, the cooling
transformation of transformer room, and the
addition of heat dissipation fan in the coarse yarn
control cabinet to save energy and reduce
consumption;

Taltex (Zhuhai): Implemented the technological
transformation of low-energy-consuming
equipment for dyeing and finishing processes,
dismantled the old equipment that had been
eliminated, introduced new energy-saving and
environmental-friendly dyeing machines, setting
machine equipment and supporting wet-drying
machines to achieve the technological
transformation of low-energy-consuming
equipment for dyeing and finishing processes of
high-end knitted fabrics. After the completion and
operation of the energy-saving renovation project,
the annual comprehensive energy consumption
can be reduced by 1,375 tons of standard coal;
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RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

3.1 Resource Conservation (Continued)
3.1.1Energy management (Continued)
Technical renovation and equipment replacement
(Continued)

Texhong Renze: Install converters for dust removal
machines to reduce the frequency of main motors
while meeting production requirements. Relieve
valves were also installed on the main pipelines of
the vehicles to reduce air pressure, so as to achieve
power-saving effect.

Converter

IR

Green office practices

In daily operations, the Group advocates green office,
truly encourages our employees to practice energy
conservation in work and life, and not only evangelizes
the practice of energy conservation but also becomes
conscientiously active in energy conservation:

Establish the on/off time for lighting system in
office and living areas in different time slots and
seasons. Switch off the lighting system when there
is sufficient daylight. Switch off the lighting system
at appropriate time after use at night;

Switch off electronic equipment not in use in office
areas;

Implement independent control over circuits for
lighting systems and sockets in staff quarter areas
etc.
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RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

3.1 Resource Conservation (Continued)
3.1.1Energy management (Continued)
Green office practices (Continued)
In 2020, the Group and its subsidiaries actively
promoted the concept of energy conservation through
promotion and education to raise employees’
awareness of energy saving:

Texhong Yinfeng held an energy-saving promotion
week and low-carbon experience day to promote
the concept of energy conservation and
disseminate energy-saving knowledge;

Xuzhou Texhong Yinlian Textile Co., Ltd. (“Texhong
Yinlian"): Carried out rational suggestions and
technological innovation activities to encourage
employees to give full play to their creativity and
actively participate in the reduction of
consumption.

3.1.2 Water resources management
Focusing on the green operation objectives of
“improving utilization efficiency of energy and water”,
and to become a water-saving enterprise, the Group
actively nurtures the culture of water conservation by
encouraging employees to develop the water-saving
habit:

Use water saving productions and implement
water recycling;

Turn off taps after use;

Check the water pipes regularly to avoid water
leakage and prevent any unintended use of water;
Install separate water metres in office, living and
production areas and assign dedicated staff to

record monthly water consumption and analyze
the data collected from each department.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RUI4SEBMARA T
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3. RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

3.1 Resource Conservation (Continued)
3.1.2 Water resources management (Continued)
In 2020, subsidiaries of the Group adopted a range of
measures, such as fixed water usage standards
installation of water-saving equipment, technological
innovation, self and mutual inspections, training and
education, with remarkable results:

Texhong Galaxy: Division and management of the
regional responsibility for domestic water use, use
the quota, and avoid waste caused by the absence
of responsible person management. For water
production, we strengthen water management
and reduce time in brushing the pool. Texhong
Galaxy also conducts 6S self-inspection and mutual
inspection on a weekly and monthly basis, and
gives strict criticism, training and assessment on
waste behavior to improve employees’ awareness
of conservation;

Texhong Yinlian: An underground water storage
tank has been built in the factory zone to store and
recycle the waste water generated from the
temperature and humidity adjustment of the air-
conditioning room, and used for green irrigation to
achieve the recycling of water sources. A
responsibility letter was signed with each dormitory
to fix the water consumption standard.
Independent water meters are used in office areas,
living areas, production areas, etc,, and designated
personnel are responsible for registration, and data
analysis is conducted on a monthly basis according
to the records of water consumption of each
department;

Texhong Yinlong: Renovation of production and
fire-fighting water, introducing the rain water pipe
of the shed into the cooling water tank of the
production, fire-fighting and central cooling
station, so as to save the water consumption of
production and fire-fighting tap water;
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3. RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT (Continued) 3. ERERER®
3.1 Resource Conservation (Continued) 3.1 BREPN(E)
3.1.2 Water resources management (Continued) 312 KERE®E (&)

Jiangsu Texhong: The Company conducted water- - JIERKRI : HREA R

drawing renovation for the “Texhong Lake” in the EATEUKMGE - BBEKRE

factory zone, introducing the lake water into the KRS ANEEER - KRR

production pipeline network through water *iﬁiﬁukﬂlfliﬁﬁﬁﬂ@”*

pumps, and the lake water is transported to each ERE) O HKEEHAZTHET

production water unit (air-conditioning room) BRHIE EAREANRKE

through the pipeline network. After heat exchange H BBERKENBLDIH

in the air-conditioning room, the lake water is A D EEIERFIRA B A -

discharged into the rain water pipe network in the
factory zone, and then returned to the lake through
the rain water pipe network, so as to achieve the
purpose of recycling.

Jiangsu Texhong:
“Texhong Lake” water-drawing renovation

STRRARML @ [ RULH | BRKBGE

3.1.3 Packaging management 313 BEER
The Group continuously monitors the consumption of AEEBEEEREMBHOAE
packaging materials and recycles and reuses the HHEETAEMNESEERA - 7
materials in a reasonable manner to facilitate more REEMBERRE .. =%
efficient use of packaging materials. In 2020, the Group FAKBEMBRAREBELZREE
and its subsidiaries continued to explore the possibility EMBERFANZMHE - BHRE
of recycling packaging materials and make efforts to HFEE -

reduce consumption.
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3.

RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

3.2 Emission In Compliance

The Group and its subsidiaries actively adopt emission
reduction measures and strictly comply with the
requirements of relevant local laws and regulations, such as
the “Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, "Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the People’s Republic of China” and “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste” to strengthen
prevention from the source, process control and terminal
treatment and reduce environmental impacts arising from
pollutants such as production effluent and domestic sewage,
exhaust and wastes.

The Group has not committed any environmental violation
in the past three years. In 2020, Texhong Yinlian met the
provincial “Cleaner production” testing standards.

3.2.1 Effluent Management

The Group requires separate treatment for production
effluent and domestic sewage:

Production effluent is reused or, if not reusable,
directly discharged to the sewage pipeline of
factory zone and discharged up to standard after
passing through the sewage treatment device;

Processed by the biological treatment system of
the factory zone, domestic sewage will meet the
first grade emission standard and be transported to
the municipal wastewater treatment system
through the sewage pipeline of the factory zone.

In 2020, the Group and its subsidiaries took a number of
measures such as comprehensive inspection and facility
renovation to reduce effluent discharge, for example,
Texhong Renze cleans all the wastewater shade wells
and filter sewage pools throughout the factory zone
every day, and installs sewage filtering instruments at
two sewage exits to clear the suspended solids in the
sewage.
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3.

RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

3.2 Emission In Compliance (Continued)
3.2.2 Exhaust Gas Management

The Group primarily produces fiber dusts and boiler
exhaust in production process. To minimize the
negative environmental impact of fiber dusts, the
Group requires workshops to close windows during
production for close operation. The Group installs dust
removal units in every workshop to handle fiber dusts
to reduce exhaust emission.

In 2020, subsidiaries of the Group actively worked on
technical renovation projects and equipment
replacement. In order to further reduce pollutant
emissions, Nantong Texhong increased investment in
2020, increased environmental protection facilities and
emission testing projects, shortened the maintenance
and replacement cycle of pollution control equipment,
and ensured the efficient operation of equipment.

3.2.3 Waste disposal

The Group primarily produces waste cotton, office and
domestic waste, waste equipment parts and
components and oily waste yarns in the production
process. The Group has prepared notices such as
“Notice on Enhancing Customized Placement of
Rubbish Bin and Classified Management” and “Notice
on Enhancing Management and Classified Deposit of
Industrial Waste and Domestic Waste”, bringing
classified management of domestic waste and
industrial waste into the scope of enterprise
management and requiring classified collection of the
abovementioned solid waste. According to these
documents, the Group separates the said solid waste
and stores such waste by category in the temporary
deposit zone of factory where a banner is hanged and
category, volume and storage period are displayed.
Waste from the production process, such as cotton
waste, can be reused as raw material, while the
remaining scrap cotton and impurities are collected for
sale and integrated use. For hazardous waste produced
by the Group, these wastes will undergo a
detoxification treatment by a competent organization
and general waste such as domestic waste will be
handled by the local collection authority.
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3.

RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

3.2 Emission In Compliance (Continued)

3.2.3 Waste disposal (Continued)

In 2020, subsidiaries of the Group reduced waste
generation through measures such as reduction of
consumables, production process modification, facility
renovation, promotion and training to employees, for
example, Nantong Texhong continued to increase
investment in research and development, and
improved the process level and production rate of raw
material processing from the aspects of process
improvement, equipment upgrade and transformation,
process indicator optimization, and process data
centralized control and analysis, so as to reduce the
production of waste cotton.

3.3 Response to Climate Change

The Group is well aware that the textile industry is an
important part of industries, and textile enterprises play an
important role in tackling climate change. The Group
regularly analyzes and reviews the risks and opportunities of
climate change to ensure the effective operation of the
power supply and water system in the factories of each
subsidiary and reduce the possible impact of natural
disasters such as typhoons and floods; supports the green
and low-carbon circular development model. Through green
technological innovation, recycling of resources, and use of
environmentally-friendly raw materials, the Group addresses
climate change in all aspects of production and operation,
S0 as to promote a positive interaction between ecology and
industry development; and will pay attention to the trend of
climate change and the direction of changes in domestic
and foreign policies, and continue to explore climate-related
opportunities and improve our response measures.
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3. RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT (Continued) 3. BRERER#®)
3.3 Response to Climate Change (Continued) 3.3 EEREEL(E)
Climate-related Potential Financial Climate-related Potential Financial
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3. RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT (Continued)
3.3 Response to Climate Change (Continued)

The Group actively adopts energy-saving measures to
reduce energy consumption and adopts clean energy and
photovoltaic power generation for the purpose of reducing
greenhouse gas emission. In 2020, each subsidiary of the
Group identified the risks that may arise from climate change
and formulated corresponding measures to reduce the

Company's potential losses:

Texhong Galaxy: In order to avoid losses caused by
extreme weather, Texhong Galaxy identified major
climate-related matters that may have an impact on the
Company and took corresponding preventive measures.
Texhong Galaxy regards typhoon and flood as major
climate-related matters, and has formulated relevant
treatment plans for typhoon and flood prevention in
summer, closely tracked after the local weather and
weather forecast, and organized all departments to meet
and carry out typhoon and flood prevention work;

Texhong Winnitex Nicaragua, S.A., Shandong Texhong
and Zhejiang Qing Mao: All subsidiaries actively promote
the use of photovoltaic clean energy and install
photovoltaic power in new dormitory buildings and new
plants to reduce petrochemical energy consumption, so
as to cope with the risks brought by climate change.

3. BERERE @
3.3 EHRERE(L (D)
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The following table shows the environmental data of the
subsidiaries within the reporting scope of this ESG report in

the past three years:

TREFIAESC IR & EE R EHER A

T=FRTABUE

2020 2019 2018  Unit
—B-%% —FT-AF —FT-/\F HBHf
Effluent discharge
REIR B
Total effluent discharge tonne
REKBE A & 8,908,358 8,431,407 8,760,656 M
Effluent discharge intensity tonne/RMB million sales
RERKHER R S 455.0 3832 4573 MR/ BB AREIHER
Waste discharge
REZEMIHEL
Hazardous waste discharge tonne
EEREDNE 12,685 12,348 6630 g
Hazardous waste discharge intensity tonne/RMB million sales
BEEBREMFNEE 0.6 06 03 ML/ BBTARKHER
Non-hazardous waste discharge tonne
BERRYVFNE 13,283 14,808 13,035 g
Non-hazardous waste discharge
intensity tonne/RMB million sales
BEEEDMH TR 0.7 0.7 07 MW/ BABTARKHER
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3. RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT (Continued)
3.3 Response to Climate Change (Continued)

3. ERERE#®)

3.3 EHRBESLE)

2020 2019 2018  Unit
—F=%F —“T-NF ~F-)\F Ef
Greenhouse gas emission
BEREBEEN
Scope 1: direct emissions tCOe
05— BEHN 15,557 26,877 - B-SLREECOe
Scope 2: energy indirect emissions tCOe
5~ BERMEEYN 1,575,409 1,475,908 - B-S(LHREE8COoe
Total greenhouse gas emission’ tCOe
BEREHFNEE 1,590,966 1,502,785 1272418 ME—SAfLHEEECOe
Greenhouse gas emission intensity tCO,e/RMB million sales
BERBHNEE W =S IR E E1Coe/ BET
81.3 683 664 ARBIHER
Energy consumption
BEIRIHE
Energy consumption MWh3
RERHAES 2,075,771 2,057,828 1,693,089  JKE B
Energy intensity MWh/RMB million sales
REREE 106.0 935 884 JKRE BETARKHER
Water consumption
IKERERE
Total water consumption tonne
BAKE 9,695,932 10,280,314 12,473,850 Mg
Water intensity tonne/RMB million sales
kB E 495.3 467.2 6512 Wi/ BETARKHER
Packaging material consumption
BEMELERE
Packaging material used tonne
BEMHERE 26,684 27,988 28396 Mg
Intensity of packaging material used tonne/RMB million sales
BEMKEREE 1.36 13 15 MR/ EBETAREIHERE
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3.

RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

3.3 Response to Climate Change (Continued)
Notes:

The Group primarily produces greenhouse gases due to
energy consumption in the production process, which include
Scope 1: direct emissions (petrol, diesel oil and natural gas)
and Scope 2: Energy indirect emissions (electricity).
Calculations of greenhouse gas of the Group are presented in
tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (tCOe) and audited in
accordance with the “Requirements of the greenhouse gas
emissions accounting and reporting — Part 12: Textile and
garment Enterprises” published by the National Development
and Reform Commission.

The Group's operation has no significant impact on the
environment and natural resources. Therefore, Aspect A3
(Environment and Natural Resources) and its KPI A3.1
(Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them) are not applicable to the Group and are not
disclosed in this ESG report.

The total energy consumption of the Group was calculated
based on the use of natural gas, gasoline, diesel, and
purchased electricity, and the "Requirements of the
greenhouse gas emissions accounting and reporting — Part
12: Textile and garment Enterprises” Appendix Il Calculation of
recommended values for common fuel related parameters
published by the National Development and Reform
Commission.

Most of the Group's water is sourced from municipal water,
and a few subsidiaries have obtained underground water in
compliance with laws and regulations, so as to ensure access
to sufficient and appropriate water sources.

3. BERERE @
3.3 EHRERE(L (D)
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4,

HEALTH AND SAFETY

In addition to strictly complying with the relevant local laws and
regulations regarding employee health and safety, such as the
“Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases”, “Measures for the Supervision and
Administration of Occupational Health Surveillance”, and “Design
Standards for Occupational Safety and Health for Businesses in the
Textile Industry”, the Group has introduced a series of internal rules
and systems to safeguard workplace safety and prevent
occupational diseases, strengthens the protection of female
employees and devotes its efforts to achieving the balance
between work and life of its employees. As of the end of 2020, a
total of nine subsidiaries of the Group passed the three-level safety
production standardization certification, and four subsidiaries of
the Group passed the I1SO 45001 occupational health and safety
management system certification.

4.1 Safety production
The Group attaches great importance to safe production. It
has established a safety management system and
implemented a top-to-bottom safety management
accountability system:

Marketing and production department is responsible for
management and supervision of production process and
sites;

Each branch factory conducts inspections, identifies and
promptly solves problems as required;

Operators of each process operate in accordance with
operating procedures, and often carry out self-inspection
and mutual inspection.

With the implementation of requirements such as “Policy on
Safe Production”, “Rules on Accident Handling”, “Policy on
Production Accidents”, "Policy on Production
Standardization”, "Policy on Regular Safe Production
Meetings”, “Policy on Safe Production Education”, “Policy on
Accident Reporting and Handling” and “Policy on Emergency
Response”, the Group has established the safe production
accountability mechanism for all subsidiaries and the safety
responsibilities of management personnel at all levels, and
specified accident levels and corresponding penalties;
upheld the principle of “Four prohibition” on incomplete
cause investigation, incomplete disciplinary action for
responsible staff member, incomplete rectification measures
and incomplete training for relevant staff member to
improve safety education and implement rectifying
measures; and continued the promotion of 6S management
and backup support of the Group and its subsidiaries.
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4. HEALTH AND SAFETY (Continued) 4, BERZESE)

4.1 Safety production (Continued) 41 RE2HEE(E)
In 2020, the Group and its subsidiaries constantly updated TECTF AEB RSB ARGE
and improved the safety management mechanisms and B REREEHERNGE

systems:

Texhong Yinlian: It obtained the National Level 3
Enterprise Certificate of "Safety Production
Standardization” and the provincial “Occupational Health
Operation Environmental Monitoring” Certificate of
Jiangsu Province. In accordance with relevant laws and
regulations, in 2020, Texhong Yinlian revised and
improved 112 safety production management systems
such as the Occupational Health and Safety
Management Policy;

Texhong Yinlong: The Company issued and adjusted a
series of policies and work arrangements such as the
"Adjustment to the Network of Fire Safety Committee
and Fire Safety Organization at All Levels”, the “Notice on
Adjustment to Special and Part-time Safety Officers of
the Company” and the “2020 Yinlong Flood and
Typhoon Prevention Emergency Rescue Plan” to
comprehensively improve the Company’s safety
management level;

Nantong Texhong Textile Co., Ltd. ("Nantong Texhong"):
According to the requirements of the superior safety
department and the actual situation of the Company,
the Company revised and improved the Safety
Management Assessment Measures, the Responsibility
Certificate for Three-level Safety Targets — (Company,
department, branch and process level) and other safety
management policies and standards.
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4. HEALTH AND SAFETY (Continued)

4.1 Safety production (Continued)

The Group and its subsidiaries adopts various safety
precautions throughout its daily operation, including:

Post notices and warnings in workplaces subject to
occupational hazards to raise employees’ awareness of
self-protection;

Provide training and learning sessions to its employees
in relation to workplace safety, which primarily include
the safety procedures, management system, hazard
identification skills and a three-level safety induction
program;

Cases of industrial accidents occurred and other
comparable companies would be used for learning and
discussion. Lessons are learnt through accident analysis
meetings to prevent repeated violation.

In 2020, the subsidiaries of the Group actively carried out
various activities such as fire drills, flood-control drills and
workplace safety training to spread knowledge of laws and
regulations and strengthen its capability to prevent
workplace accidents and save lives and safeguard its
production safety.

Shandong Texhong:
Red Cross Association
“first aid” training

Texhong Galaxy:
Fire and rescue drill
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Shandong Lanyan Textiles Co., Ltd.
(“Shandong Lanyan”):
“Safe Production Month”
black board exhibition
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4,

HEALTH AND SAFETY (Continued)

4.1

Flood prevention emergency drill

AR RIL : PR ESOEAR

4.2

Safety production (Continued)

Nantong Texhong:

In 2020, the number of lost days due to work injury of the
Group was 5,556 days. From 2018 to 2020, the number of
work-related fatalities of the Group was zero.

Occupational disease prevention and protection

The Group has established an occupational health and safe
production committee, with the general manager as the
head, the deputy general manager for production as the
deputy head, and the factory managers and department
managers of each branch as members. The Group diligently
implemented policies such as “Management of Occupational
Hygiene and Safety” and “Distribution and Management of
Labour Protection Equipment” and has constantly improved
the existing mechanism.

Nantong Texhong:
Flue escape training

FAE R - RERAEIEI

4, BERZESE)

4.1

4.2

REEE(E)

Texhong Winnitex Vietnam Limited
(“Texhong Winnitex Vietnam”):
First aid skills training
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4. HEALTH AND SAFETY (Continued) 4., BREHEZZH)
4.2 Occupational disease prevention and protection 42 BEFEHEE)
(Continued)

In 2020, the Group and its subsidiaries applied various
measures to prevent occupational diseases, including:

Offer health and safety education to employees and
provides induction safety training and arranges safety
retraining for elder employees;

Establish and maintain occupational health records,
regularly carry out occupational health examination such
as pre-employment and on-the-job occupational disease
examination to effectively prevent the occurrence of
occupational diseases;

Third-party institutions are invited to conduct
occupational hazard assessment and dust and noise
detection in the workplace and issue reports, and inform
and warn the places with occupational hazards in the
workshop to improve employees’ self-protection
awareness;

Labor protection supplies such as earplugs and masks
are distributed on a timely basis, and employees are
trained on how to wear them properly.

Texhong Galaxy: Shandong Texhong:
Occupational disease examination Occupational disease examination
RYTRST - B pTRE AR WRRYT - BiEmEm
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Texhong Yinlong:

Occupational disease examination
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4. HEALTH AND SAFETY (Continued)

4.3 Protection for female employees

4., BEHEZZRH)
43 LRHRI@EE

Female employees assume a wide variety of posts on
different levels in the Group. In strict compliance with
relevant local laws and regulations, such as the “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Women's
Rights and Interests”, “Labour Protection of Female
Employees” and “Healthcare Work of Female Employees”, the
Group protects the rights of female employees from the
sources. The Group is concerned about the problems
encountered by employees in their work and life and
constantly improves the working environment and condition
for female employees. The Group and its subsidiaries have
put in place a “Three-period” requirement and regular
physical examination system. For example, Nantong
Texhong organizes an individual physical examination for
female employees every year, providing care for female
employees’ physical and mental health.

In August 2020, Shandong Texhong established a “Mommy’s
Caring House" for female workers, providing comfortable rest
places for female workers during pregnancy and lactation,
and was awarded the honorary title of Jining.
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Shandong Texhong: “Mommy’s Caring House”
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4. HEALTH AND SAFETY (Continued)

4.4 Epidemic Prevention

In 2020, facing the severe outbreak of COVID-19, the Group
and its subsidiaries have taken a number of measures to
strengthen the protection of employees against the

epidemic, for example:

Shandong Lanyan: Revised the policy of leave application
and attendance based on the actual production situation,
which increased the flexibility of working hours. The
Company organized all employees to carry out the
"Epidemic Prevention, Health Protection” cleaning
activity, and thoroughly cleaned and disinfected the
factory zone and workshop. According to the medicinal
formula issued by well-known Chinese medicine
practitioners, the Chinese medicine was purchased and
the soup was prepared by the canteen according to the
dosage, and regularly distributed to employees every day
to enhance their resistance to the virus;

Shandong Lanyan: Cleaning

WRBE © EERTERR
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4. HEALTH AND SAFETY (Continued)

4.4 Epidemic Prevention (Continued)

5.

Texhong Yinlian: During the epidemic, employees were
popularized with the characteristics of “novel
coronavirus” and the knowledge of epidemic prevention
such as preventive measures through publicity posters,
bulletin boards and knowledge lectures;

Texhong Renze: The implementation of the Emergency
Plan for the Prevention and Control of Novel Coronavirus
Pneumonia Infection in Texhong Renze and the
Emergency Supplement Plan for the Prevention and
Control of Novel Coronavirus Infection in Texhong Renze
were formulated and promoted to ensure the health of
all employees;

Zhejiang Qing Mao: It provided assistance to employees
for returning to work, bore all expenses during the
quarantine period, and transportation subsidies for
employees returning to work.

CARE AND GROWTH
5.1 Legal employment

The Group pays attention to building a harmonious and
stable labour relation and strictly complies with relevant
local laws, regulations and policies, such as “Labour Law of
the People’s Republic of China” and “Labour Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China”. In accordance with the
“Employee Manual”, “Recruitment Management Policy”,
“Employee Induction and Loss of Office Management
Requirement”, “Employee Promotion Management
Requirement”, “Performance Management Measure”,
“Measures for Job Appraisal of Yarn Marketing Management
Department” etc,, the Group regulates recruitment process,
improves the mechanism of talent selection, and actively
protects employees’ legal rights.

The Group enters into written labour contracts with all
employee based on the principles of “Equality, willingness
and mutual agreement”, and has established an annual leave
policy according to legal requirements. The Group provides
updates through different means to employees on recent
production and operation conditions of the Group, as well as
rules, regulations, and policies that are closely related to their
interests:

Child labour: Recruitment of child labour is prohibited by
the Group. All candidates must pass age verification to
ensure that their identity documents are authentic and
they meet the legal age for employment.

4., BEHEZZRH)
4.4 RIEHEE)

RITiREE - ERBHE - AAER
B EEWER NBBEESS
BEAMEIE R [#HAERFE]
E s B K TR 1R i S R AR

RITE - $IE W& BECRIL(C
EEHATEMRESh A ELER
FERIRCRECEG ARS8
IESBREAR) BREEET
B B BB R

WIEX : AE T RE T{EREE
By AEREEEHEAOREER I
ABTRENE TIRHBAELS -

5. BEREAR

5.1

BRER

REBIEZTMERENS R
BASMITERARAR  ARMEK
A AR LA 85 8 R )RR A
RAMREBHSREE - KB(BEIF
) CHEBEEHE) (BETABERE
BRE) (EIBERRE) (B
EIRERPEINCH L 318 12 AR AR
ZHPE)SNARESE  RBEET
RERIE - B2 A ERES - FBiRR

[BETAAR -

AEBLRRFE - B HRE— %8
RAI BB TIRFEASHAR -
WHOEEITFHRBHE - AEBERES
BEAABIE#RAEEI M EEL
BIRNAREE THEZIARNRE
HE - RIEE THOFIE -

ET - ASEXREET - B
KB EEBRBFRIMEZ  #
REMNBHEE  BFELAEAT
FHg -

2020 ANNUAL REPORT —Z-ZFFH 115



BRE HMEREIRS

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

5.

CARE AND GROWTH (Continued)
5.1 Legal employment (Continued)

Forced or compulsory labour: Use of forced labour is
prohibited by the Group. Employees have the right to
refuse and report to high levels by bypassing their
immediate leadership for work arrangements that violate
safety regulations.

Working hour: We comply with all the requirements of
the national laws and regulations on working hour and
overtime arrangement for employees is on a voluntary
basis.

Labour union and collective bargaining agreement: We
recognize and respect employees’ right to organize and
participate in a labour union and collective bargaining.

Discrimination: Discrimination against gender, age,
ethnicity, race, color, nationality, religious belief, disability,
personality, etc. is prohibited.

Harassment and torture: Harassment, torture and
corporal punishment are prohibited.

Dismissal: Any dismissal of employees is in strict
compliance with local laws and regulations.

In 2020, the Group and its subsidiaries worked for continuous
improvement in employment system, and safeguarded
employees' rights and interests, including but not limited to:

Nantong Texhong: In terms of system, the Company
appropriately adjusted the recruitment incentive scheme
and revised the Employee Retention Plan to recruit and
retain outstanding employees. In terms of standardized
management, the Company revised the leave
application system and set special high temperature
charges and special bonuses to provide employees with
more benefits while ensuring a high attendance rate;

Texhong Yinlian: We actively cooperated with Xuzhou
Municipal Federation of Trade Unions to carry out the
right protection activity of “Co-operation” between
enterprises and employees, so as to effectively protect
the legitimate rights and interests of employees and
promote the harmonious and stable labor relations.
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5. CARE AND GROWTH (Continued) 5. BARERE#)
5.1 Legal employment (Continued) 51 AHIERE (Zé)
As at 31 December 2020, the total number of employees of HE-Z-ZF+-_A=+—H K
the subsidiaries within the reporting scope of this ESG report ESCHEHEASMMBARNE TR
was 32,712: £32,712 ¢
Male domestic
= 15,841 Gl 16,756
Gender Geography
R 5 Female 16,871 i overseas 15056
LS ’ B4 '
full-time
Age <30 12,436 Employee ES 32,689
category
REwR 30-50 18,342 REESR part—tlr‘ne 23
550 1,934 AR
During the Reporting Period, the employee turnover rate of WMEHMA - NESGREBE NS B A
the subsidiaries within the reporting scope of this ESG report AIMB TRAEBERNAT ¢
is as follows:
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BB
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The Group emphasizes equality and diversity, and provides
equal care and opportunities for disabled employees and
ethnic minority employees:

For disabled employees, the Group and its subsidiaries
provide them with equal employment opportunities and
care so that they can realize their potential in different

positions;

For ethnic minority employees, the Group and its
subsidiaries actively offer job opportunities and respect

their daily habits and needs.
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5. CARE AND GROWTH (Continued)

5.2 Humanistic care

The Group adopts a people-oriented approach, pursues
humanistic care, focuses on humane management, and
promotes employees’ sense of belonging and loyalty to the
Company. Coffee klatches are held monthly between
general managers, and seminars among workshop heads,

5.
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chief operator and chief mechanist as well as after-hours
meetings among employees are held regularly to help
employees maintain a positive work attitude and enhance
work enthusiasm.

Staff activities

The Group is well-equipped with activity facilities in
workspace and living space, including leisure room,
television room, basketball court and badminton court. In
2020, the Group and its subsidiaries held a variety of staff
activities to create a positive atmosphere.

Texhong Yinfeng: “National Day” fun sports

RITRE : [OEHE | BRER

Texhong Yinlong: Vietnam Women'’s Day
flower arrangement competition
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Texhong Galaxy: Autumn sports day
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Taltex (Zhuhai): Giving festive gifts
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5. CARE AND GROWTH (Continued) 5. BIBEMER®)
5.2 Humanistic care (Continued) 52 ANXEBEEE)
Employee/staff care BETHE

The Group endeavors to support employees in need and
offers relief and condolence to employees in difficulties and
their family members.

Shandong Texhong:
Employee Children’s Grant Ceremony
WRRY : BT FRBEEERENNED

Democratic communication

The Group has established a smooth and democratic
communication mechanism and set up Texhong employee
relations committee, which receives opinions and
suggestions from employees through complaint mailboxes
and complaint email, in order to understand opinion, identify
problems, and actively respond to employee demands to
promote harmonious working environment. Management
personnel at all levels stay close to the grassroots level to
understand employees’ opinions and suggestions on the
Company's production and life and management through
daily observation and reflection, employee discussions,
regular employee communication days, questionnaires and
other channels, and to solve problems.

Each subsidiary also adopts various methods to maintain
continuous communication with employees:

Nantong Texhong has set up a general manager mailbox
to respond to questions raised by employees in a timely
manner,

Shandong Texhong has set up a backup committee to
conduct ad hoc visits on shuttles, canteens, dormitories,
etc. that involve employees’ lives, to handle opinions and
feedback from employees, and to urge the management
and contractors to improve services.
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Texhong Yinlong:

Donation to employees in traffic accidents
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5. CARE AND GROWTH (Continued) 5.

5.3 Learning and Progress

Following the continuous expansion and extension of the
Group's industrial structure, manpower development has
become an important part of the Group’s development
strategy. Based on the strategic development needs, the
Group has formulated the “Training and Implementation
Measures of Texhong Textile Group” and improved Texhong
Education College structure for training, learning course,
technician, mechanist/engineer skill assessment, mid-to-
entry level training and senior leadership.

The Group puts in place a “Branched career path” for every
employee and provides employees with a personalized and
systematic development plan through “Budding program”
(for university graduates with less than one year of
experience), “Flourishing program” (for university graduates
with one to three years of experience) and “Stratified talent
nurturing program” (for all employee with more than three
years of experience). Through building a team of lecturers
and planning various career development paths, the Group
establishes back-up talent team and develop a learning
organization, with an aim to provide talents for the
development of the Group at all stages and become an
enterprise that learns and grows with happiness.

Talent training system chart ofTexhong Textile Group
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Talent training system chart of Texhong Textile Group
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5.

CARE AND GROWTH (Continued)

5.3 Learning and Progress (Continued)

In 2020, in terms of manpower training and echelon
construction, all subsidiaries constantly explored more
advanced and diversified models, and continuously enriched
and expanded employee training programs and career

development channels.

In 2020, the Group's subsidiaries carried out various training
activities including production training, management skills
and skills training, and provided targeted training for new
employees, junior management personnel, middle
management personnel and backup management
personnel to meet the needs of all levels.

Shandong Texhong:
Training on basic management of
equipment, process and proper operation
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Texhong Renze:
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ERRBIREAGHHENEI -
REERBITFR -

Texhong Yinfeng:
Winter operation sports day

RURE : K FREEHE

Evaluation, recruitment and recognition of technicians

R IR AFTRERE
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5.

CARE AND GROWTH (Continued)

5.3 Learning and Progress (Continued)
In 2020, the total training hours of employees of the
subsidiaries within the reporting scope of this ESG report
were 746,905 hours. The average training hours of
employees and percentage of employees trained by
employee category are as follows:

5. BREMEK @
ERER ()
“ETF REGREHNEANSHE

5.3

RAMETL
ZREER
ZIEDL

485 3)I|BF BUUA 746,905 /) B -
2D E T2 EFH
NN

_— - Percentage of
Training for employees Average training hours employees trained
BT il N I H| = 2
BTZIMER FHZINRR S E S
Senior/Middle-level
management personnel 10.1 78.2%
=E/ PEERAR
Employee category Basis level/office clerk
= N 24.8 83.0%
ZIEEE £E BEXE ’
Front-line employees
and others 264 95.2%
—RBE T REAM
Mal
EE,? ; 253 90.3%
Gender -3
RIER Female
204 87.1%
zik ’

6.

INTEGRITY AND HONESTY

The Group strictly complies with the requirements of relevant
local laws and regulations, such as the “Company Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, “Bidding Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, “Anti- Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, and “Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery”.
It issued a series of anti-corruption policies, including “Texhong
Textile Group Anti-Corruption Management Regulations (Trial)”,
‘Texhong Textile Group's Integrity and Self-Discipline Incentive
Measures (Trial)", “Texhong Textile Group Whistle-blower
Protection and Reward Policy (Trial)", * ‘Texhong Textile Group
Whistle-blower Protection and Reward Policy (Trial)’ — Whistle-
blowing Guidelines and Requirements for Suppliers and
Customers”.
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6.

INTEGRITY AND HONESTY (Continued)

In order to take forward the work on anti-corruption and anti-
bribery, the Group has established an internal control mechanism.
The President’s Office was designated as the anti-corruption
department responsible for investigating corruption,
strengthening supervision and management on key segments
and key positions where corruption is frequent and highly likely to
ensure the governance of commitment system to prevent
commercial bribery, and guiding the management personnel of
the Group to act in accordance with the law and consciously resist
corruption and malpractices such as deception and fraud. The
President’s Office is the only dedicated department authorized by
the Group to conduct investigations on corruption, and reports
directly to the Chairman of the Board and the President of the
Group, thereby guaranteeing the acceptance of report and the
independence and objectivity of investigation from the
governance structure.

The Group requires suppliers, customers and other partners of
Texhong Textile to uphold integrity and honesty, participate in the
Group's integrity management supervision system. We have
included "Anti-Commercial Bribery Agreement” as a mandatory
appendix to the contract, requiring all cooperative suppliers to
sign the agreement, and have conducted a joint special inspection
on the signing of “Anti-Commercial Bribery Agreement” since
2019. If a contract is found to be not in compliance with the
requirements, the relevant department will be held accountable.

The Group has specially launched the "HonestTH” module on its
official website and announced its internal anti-corruption policies
and reporting channels such as whistle-blowing hotline, email
address, mailing address, online message on the official website
and appointment visits to encourage internal and external
personnel to report corruption issues. Once the issue is verified,
the Group will immediately carry out an investigation and give
cash rewards to the whistle-blower or cooperating units. Malicious
reporting and false accusation are prohibited.

The Group attaches great importance to the protection of
whistleblowers. The President Office prioritizes the confidentiality
of reports. There is a strict control system and process for the
acceptance and investigation of reports, and the whistle-blower’s
personal information and all report materials provided by the
whistle-blower are kept strictly confidential. There are also multiple
strict measures to protect suppliers, partners, or individuals who
report in real names.
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6.

INTEGRITY AND HONESTY (Continued)

In 2020, the Group's headquarter, its functional departments,
business units and subsidiaries all organized learning activities on
the theme of "HonestTH". In response to a series of anti-corruption
regulations issued by the Group, all subsidiaries organized a series
of anti-corruption activities. The Group refined its business ethics
code, conducted interviews and exchanges with new suppliers to
promote anticommercial bribery and corruption; held promotion
and study sessions on anti-corruption and anti-commercial bribery
for management personnel of all departments, and required
employees to sign the “Undertaking of Integrity and Anti-
corruption as an Employee” etc,, so as to maintain integrity and
self-discipline and to protest the favorable internal operating
environment.

Jiangsu Texhong: The Group organized training and study on
the Group's anti-corruption management regulations for
employees in the marketing department and other
departments to strengthen their awareness of integrity and
self-discipline and urge them to strictly abide by the
professional bottom line.

FRERIE (#)

“E-FTF REEEI - SR &
2HE - SHBATREASBERT [B2X
T M EEETES) - FHBRARIBIREER
EETRN—RIIRBET B8 T R
REBERES AEERETEHEEER
8 BIEHEEHEEETEAEEN
SEREEBHE RGN BEHIEEEA
BHTRERRELHESESTE B
2EETHI(ETRENERLE)  MD
FREE  BERTNNDLEESE -

TTERRML : DRSS ER TH#
TEERBREZGONEINIMEE - A
MEETRZSRNER  BREIET
B EAR -

Jiangsu Texhong: Training on Anti-Corruption Management Regulations

SIERRYL ¢ RIBRERERIFI

In 2020, there were no legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the Group.
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7.

TO GIVE BACK AND REPAY

The Group has been committed to giving back to society over the
years. For instance, we acquired bankrupt cotton textile
enterprises in the People’s Republic of China and offered better
remuneration package and living security for retained staff. In
response to state policy of “One Belt One Road” initiative, we
proactively implemented industrial support in Xinjiang by
recruiting ethnic minority employees in order to improve their
living quality with job and education opportunities. Being
enthusiastic in social welfare, we made donations every year and
hired disabled employees so that they can support themselves
financially. The Group established the “Charity and Social Welfare
Management Policy of Texhong Textile Group” for organizing
charity and welfare activities.

Assist in epidemic countering

Since the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group has actively assisted in
the fight against the epidemic and fulfilled its corporate social
responsibility.

In February 2020, the Group donated RMB5 million through the
charity federation of Jiangsu, Shandong and Xinjiang for the
purchase of supplies for epidemic prevention and control.
Shandong Lanyan sped up its production of more than 20,000
protective isolation suits and more than 30,000 protective isolation
caps to support epidemic prevention and control work of local
governments so as to provide protection for the safety of
epidemic prevention personnel;

In March 2020, all Party members of Shandong Lanyan donated a
total of RMB10,000 to various branches to fight against the
epidemic, contributing to the prevention and control of the
epidemic;

In June 2020, Taltex (Zhuhai) donated RMB100,000 to Zhuhai Red
Cross to support the Red Cross.
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7. TO GIVE BACK AND REPAY (Continued) 7. [EEREERWE (4)
Overseas Charity iSPUA
In 2020, Texhong Yinlong and Texhong Galaxy donated :§:§¢ + K BT 9R BB A1 K U1 4R JA] & 4 F AP
VND200,000,000 to the victims who suffered from flooding in EHKEREOLDEBR _ELRE  URDEM
central Vietnam to help them to rebuild their homes with the help %Z?} PEERRE -

of enterprises.

In 2020, Texhong Renze provided bases for visiting and —E-TE %ﬂﬂ‘%ﬁﬁﬁzuﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬁiﬁkg
exchanging and internship from the Department of Chinese X E- JI\E{K&I\ BABHRXE - HAERAM
Language of Ho Chi Minh City Normal University, the Department FoTEEKRE a&ﬁi tAE B T A & R 1y
of Chinese Language of Hue University College of Foreign j(fj Eﬂj{r‘ikﬁ\j“ T BEEM -

Language, the textile profession of the Second Industrial University
College of Ho Chi Minh City, Ho Chi Minh City University of
Technical Education and the University of Technology.

In 2020, all employees from Texhong Winnitex and Texhong —TZTF RUBEEMRTREZBET
Yinlong donated nearly VND14,000,000 and VND160,000,000 to DR EESTHKEENBERIARBIRE
the people in central Vietnam who suffered from flooding —THEEBER —EATEWE  EBE
respectively, helping them overcome difficulties. R EERE o

Texhong Yinlong: Texhong Galaxy:

Donation to the people in central Vietham Donation to the people in central Vietnam
who suffered from flooding who suffered from flooding
RUTEREE : MR K KREBLBR RULERSA : MR Atk KRB LB
Texhong Renze: Texhong Winnitex:
Provided a base for exchange and internship Disaster relief donation
RI-F - RUSBRIRETEN RITEZ | BB
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To the Shareholders of Texhong Textile Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Texhong Textile Group Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 134
to 248, which comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2020;

the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888  Fax: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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A key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised as follows:

Revenue recognition: Sales of goods

Key Audit Matter
HEESRER

koA E

PR B B E = A

WAER. © R aniH &

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMEERTHNEERREREENG

Revenue recognition: Sales of goods

AR BmEE

Refer to Note 2.27 to the consolidated financial statements
B2 A M HEN T 227

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
recognised RMB19,576,938,000 of revenue from
sales of goods.

REBEE_Z-_TF+-_A=+—HIFE"

EEBECHARmHERAR
AR #19,576,938,000 7T ©

Revenue is recognised when control of the underlying
products has been transferred to the customers.

W NP 8 22 am O 2 B % B 3R 2 B 0 T
E)E'HT{]EM\ ©

We focused on this area due to the high volume of
sales generated in various locations and from
decentralised customers, and thus significant audit
time and resources were devoted in this area, in
particular relating to the occurrence, accuracy and
timely recording of such transactions.

MR B TEMER kBN EFELERIHEE -
WERMEEAE - WIRAKS B iR H
BRI RS  LEREAURSHHEL
HERU R EECEEBNEE -

We understood, evaluated and validated management’s controls in
respect of the Group's process to recognise sales transactions,
including contract approval, recording of sales based on contract
terms, and reconciliations with cash receipts and customers' records.

B EEERRHER I I EHIEZRF - BEANIE
BRI G AR SHE REWER R E P o e iR - IR -

A RZEEEE -

We tested the revenue derived from different customers and different
locations for selected samples by examination of the sales contracts,
invoices and goods delivery notes to revenue recorded. We
compared the delivery dates based on delivery notes with the
timing of revenue recognition, and we also examined transactions
which occurred immediately before and after the balance sheet
date for their recording as revenue in the proper periods.

FRMEHESL  BERERRWRAZEERH - HIRE
REHBEFUATRER KT EBEEAWA - ZPIRE
ZRERELEREAE A HRERWARRE - RATREEERE
REZHESIRANENERE BN REBERETORS -

Based on our audit procedures, we found the Group's revenue
recognition in relation to sales of goods was supported by the
relevant evidence that we gathered.

ERNEZIEF  BAEREEEANE @SN RAER
SRR EREE R
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Dou Wang, Angel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 12 March 2021
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FERERARSE

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December 2020
WZZE-TF+-_A=+—H

2019
—E-NEF
Note RMB000
KtaF ARMTFT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Freehold land IKAEREL M 6 167,794 170,005
Property, plant and equipment Yz - WE N 7 8,894,136 9,445,725
Right-of-use assets FREEE 8 1,324,417 1,344,312
Intangible assets EEE 9 63,406 67,067
Investments accounted for using gz A AR ZIRE
the equity method 10 290,075 243,269
Deferred income tax assets BRI ERE 22 89,712 103,676
10,829,540 11,374,054
Current assets nEEE
Inventories FE 12 3,795,718 5,100,090
Properties under development BERBPYE 12 228,680 227,580
Trade and bills receivables EWE S M B RIE 13 1,735,593 1,534,673
Prepayments, deposits and other AR -« e REMEK
receivables IR 14 512,358 798,492
Derivative financial instruments PTESRITA 20 111,167 287,435
Pledged bank deposits B IRIRITFK 15 260,610 21,478
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEED 15 2,683,613 1,830,859
9,327,739 9,800,607
Total assets EEH#E 20,157,279 21,174,661
EQUITY S
Equity attributable to owners AAREEAEGLER
of the Company
Share capital: nominal value %A - mE 16 96,709 96,709
Share premium B (B 16 433,777 433,777
Other reserves Hih 18 942,310 905,019
Retained earnings RE = A 18 6,390,471 6,037,951
7,863,267 7,473,456
Non-controlling interests FEFE M R 609,471 625,919
Total equity A 8,472,738 8,099,375
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HRERERRSE

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December 2020
R _FF+_A=+—H

2019
—
Note RMB'000
Mt et AREFIT
LIABILITIES =K
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Borrowings BE 19 3,225,622 4,925,007
Lease liabilities HE&E 8 125,229 135,386
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFEHRARE 22 292,659 287,461
Long-term payables RHEAETARSK 21 29,871 144,212
3,673,381 5,492,066
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade and bills payables BB 5 REBEFIR 23 2,652,659 3,035,868
Contract liabilities AHEE 220,143 133,027
Accruals and other payables Tt & A & E At JE - AR K 24 811,632 797,958
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHAE 69,984 96,879
Borrowings BE 19 3,837,481 3,359,616
Derivative financial instruments PTHESRTE 20 234,704 29,530
Lease liabilities HE&E 8 60,516 35,770
Long-term payables due within 1 year 1 RNEH 2 R EAFE (T AR X 21 124,041 94,572
8,011,160 7,583,220
Total liabilities EE%8E 11,684,541 13,075,286
Total equity and liabilities HERRAE 20,157,279 21,174,661

The notes on pages 142 to 248 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 134 to 248 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 12 March 2021 and the
consolidated balance sheet was signed on its behalf by:

Hong Tianzhu
Director

Zhu Yongxiang
Director

REIREAUEZMERNELFAMBRR L —

B °

REIBAE U8 E IR NBHRRER T _—F
—At-REZ=EeE YR TIESARRES
CHREHERNGAEERER

HERB RKFFE
EF EF
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FellRR

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTHF+_A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=T—-HLEE

2019
—T-NF
Note RMB000
Kt et ARETFT
Revenue A 5 19,576,938 22,002,943
Cost of sales SHE RS 26 (16,869,820) (19,009,506)
Gross profit EF 2,707,118 2,993,437
Selling and distribution costs HE RO HEFY 26 (752,298) (847,204)
General and administrative expenses —MRERITHHEX 26 (1,034,040) (1,010,446)
Net accrual of impairment losses THIRSREE
on financial assets VERIEN =0 3.1(b) (4,851) (3638)
Other income EH A A 25 179,106 143,966
Other (losses)/gains — net Hith (&18), W — F8 25 (239,384) 358,346
Operating profit Fe il 855,651 1,634,461
Finance income BRI 28 50,774 28,467
Finance costs 7% 2 A 28 (270,689) (576,218)
Finance costs — net MEER — F5E 28 (219,915) (547,751)
Share of profits less losses of investments {51 B EZSEARR 2
accounted for using the equity method & & % Fl el &5 18 10 45,124 28,090
Profit before income tax MREFEH AR R 680,860 1,114,800
Income tax expense Frig%if 2 30 (150,506) (192,051)
Profit for the year FERA 530,354 922,749
Attributable to: BT E LS :
Owners of the Company VIN/NETEZ 2= N 517,065 883,726
Non-controlling interests FEHE I 1 R 13,289 39,023
530,354 922,749
Earnings per share for profit KATHEE AEMLERZ
attributable to owners of BRER
the Company
— Basic earnings per share — BRERZF] 31 RMB AR¥0.57 RMBAKRX097
— Diluted earnings per share — BREERF 37 RMB AR¥0.56 RMBAR%097

The notes on pages 142 to 248 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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FEZEBRR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_T-_ZTHF+_A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=1T—HLHFE

2019
—T-NF
Note RMB'000
Kt et AREFT
Profit for the year FERF 530,354 922,749
Other comprehensive (losses)/ Hih2m (&E), Wi
income
Item that will not be reclassified HREH/TEET P HE B
subsequently to profit or loss ZIHEH
Revaluation of buildings BFEH
— gross — B - 210,988
— deferred income tax — RIS - (38,203)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently ~— HE {8 AJfE & E# 5 E 2 1875
to profit or loss ZHEE
Currency translation differences BE¥HBERE 18 (2,023) 2,296
Total comprehensive income FE2ANZEE
for the year 528,331 1,097,830
Attributable to: AT & T R -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZZ =N 515,042 1,058,807
Non-controlling interests FEfE ) MR 13,289 39,023
528,331 1,097,830
The notes on pages 142 to 248 are an integral part of these RE12FE248E 2T RILEFHEEVBRERZ —

consolidated financial statements.
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ReHERERR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE_ZT-_TF+_A=1+—HItEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADREB A
Non-
Share Share Other Retained  controlling Total
capital premium reserves earnings interests equity
FEPEIE
BA  BROEE EuREE  REERN n  ERER
Note RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
it ARBFT ARETT ARMTT AREFT ARETT ARKTTL
Balance at 1 January 2019 R-E-hF-A—BH&H 96,709 433,777 712893 5495258 98185 6836822
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year FEHF - - - 883,726 39023 922,749
Other comprehensive income: Hi 2 mEs
Surplus on revaluation of buildings EFBHAR
— gross — % = 210988 = = 210988
— deferred income tax — BEFEH = = (38,203) = = (38,203)
Currency translation differences EELBmER 18 = = 2,29 = = 2,29
Total comprehensive income FE2ERBAE
for the year - - 175,081 883,726 39,023 1,097,830
Transactions with owners HERERBAZRS
Non-controlling interests arising EB a0 EEN RIS
on business combinations - - - - 477315 477315
Excess of consideration paid recognised  #E38 (FEHE I MRS A
in the transactions with non-controlling X Z AR X+
interests reserve within equity REZSE - - (17,120) - 11,396 (5,724)
Dividend relating to 2018 “T-N\FZKE 32 - = - (158,936) = (158,936)
Dividend relating to 2019 “E-NEFZRE 2 - - - (148230) - (148230)
Employee share option scheme & BB 2 17 - - 298 - - 298
Transfer to statutory reserves ERSLTRE 18 = = 38,125 (38,125) = =
Transfer from revaluation reserve AERRBEERERE T
to retained earnings
— gross — % - - (6:470) 6,470 = =
— deferred income tax — RIEFTEH - - 2212 2212) = =
Total transactions with owners ERERBAZRZEE - - 17,045 (341,033) 488,711 164,723
Balance at 31 December 2019 R-B-h&E+=A=+-H
:0Fe3:S 96,709 433,777 905,019 6,037,951 625919 8,099,375
The notes on pages 142 to 248 are an integral part of these REBINEUSE 2T AL FHREMBHREK 2 —

consolidated financial statements.
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ReEn=E
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_T-_ZF+-A=t+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RARHEEAELE
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserves earnings interests equity
FEEE
BEA  ROEE HtRE REERN BE  ERSE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
M ARERETT ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETRT
Balance at 1 January 2020 R-BE-Z2F-A-HNES 96,709 433,777 905,019 6,037,951 625,919 8,099,375
Comprehensive income 2EkE
Profit for the year FEER - - - 517,065 13,289 530,354
Other comprehensive income: Hib2EME :
Currency translation differences BRI RS 18 - - (2,023) - - (2,023)
Total comprehensive income FE2HNSAE
for the year - - (2,023) 517,065 13,289 528,331
Transactions with owners HAREFEEAZRS
Capital injection from non-controlling B A AIFFEMAR R E
shareholders of subsidiaries - - - - 6 6
Dividend paid for non-controlling BERzE eyl )
interests - - - - (29,743) (29,743)
Dividend relating to 2019 ZT-NEZRE kY] - - - (125364) - (125364)
Employee share option scheme EEEREE 17 - - 133 - - 133
Transfer to statutory reserves BRI RE 18 - - 48,231 (48,231) - -
Transfer from revaluation reserve RERfFHEEEZREEH
to retained earnings
— gross — % - - (11,530) 11,530 - -
— deferred income tax —RIEFEH - - 2,480 (2,480) - -
Total transactions with owners HREREAZRZAE - - 39,314 (164,545)  (29,737)  (154,968)
Balance at 31 December 2020 R-E-Z£+-A=1+-H
ek 96,709 433,777 942,310 6,390,471 609,471 8,472,738
The notes on pages 142 to 248 are an integral part of these A REMB®RER 2 —

consolidated financial statements.
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HelaRER
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTHF+_A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=1T—HLHFE

2019
—T-NEF
Note RMB000
KtaF ARMTFT
Cash flows from operating activities RERZEEZHNELSRE
Cash generated from operations KEMELEZRE 33 3,417,862 2,602,807
Interest received B FILE 50,774 28467
Income tax paid B ETRE (167,851) (212918)
Net cash generated from operating EEEFATSIR S F5E
activities 3,300,785 2,418,356
Cash flows from investing activities REREZENRERE
Dividends received from joint venture BAELETRBIEMARE
entity 1,318 =
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEN B R R FTS50E - 67,852
Investment in associates REEE AR (3,000) (10,472)
Purchases of property, plant and BEYE  BERFE
equipment (660,232) (1,785,749)
Purchases of land use rights IBE TR - (107,687)
Purchases of freehold land BEXKAERLH - (34,740)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEWE - BE K
plant and equipment JAEFTS IR 33 13,156 14,472
Proceeds from sale of land use rights H &+t (F R REFT 1S 208 223 -
Payments on acquisitions of subsidiaries, U B&HI B R I
net of cash and cash equivalents HBREWERES &
acquired REFEY - (25,409)
Purchases of financial instruments BESRTE (9,829) (67,120)
Net proceeds from settlement of SRt T EAEEFGRIRFEE
financial instruments 80,651 9,565
Net cash used in investing activities WERB MRS F5 (577,713) (1,939,288)
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FERKRER

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTHF+-_A=+—BLFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=1T—HLHFE

2019
—EFNEF
Note RMB'000
KtaE AREFT
Cash flows from financing activities REREIZHNRERE
Proceeds from borrowings EEEHIE 6,777,463 5,471,856
Repayments of borrowings BEEE (7,898,732) (4,433,830)
Principal elements of lease payments HMENRZAEH D (48,418) (33,782)
Dividends paid B E (125,364) (307,166)
Capital injection from non-controlling VNGB 2 8 D=y
shareholders of subsidiaries 6 -
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests A 3F 422 i 14 4 %50 A5 2 A% 2, (29,743) -
Interest paid BEAFLE (353,531) (460,457)
(Increase)/Decrease in pledged BB ITER (8,
bank deposits 15 (191,999) 60,449
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEE (FTiE) Fif5
financing activities I E=E (1,870,318) 297,070
Net increase in cash and cash RERBSEEMIGMFE
equivalents 852,754 776,138
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ~ E¥2H & KIELEEY
of the year 15 1,830,859 1,054,721
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRZEESRRESEEY
of the year 15 2,683,613 1,830,859

The notes on pages 142 to 248 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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ReMBERRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020

"=

1.

“ERCEFF A=+ ALFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Texhong Textile Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
manufacturing and sales of yarn, grey fabrics, non-woven fabrics
and garment fabrics as well as garments.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12 July
2004 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of Cayman Islands. The address of its registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 9 December 2004.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Chinese
Renminbi ("RMB”), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated
financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors of the Company on 12 March 2021.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of buildings,
financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, which are
carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.
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FeMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTHF+-_A=+—BLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(a) Amendments to HKFRSs adopted by the Group in 2020

A number of amendments to existing standards
became applicable for the current reporting period.
These amendments to existing standards did not give
rise to any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements. These amendments are set out below:

()

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 regarding
definition of material

The HKICPA has made amendments to HKAS 1
‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and HKAS 8
‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors’ which use a consistent
definition of materiality throughout Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting,
clarify when information is material and
incorporate some of the guidance in HKAS 1
about immaterial information.

In particular, the amendments clarify:

that the reference to obscuring information
addresses situations in which the effect is
similar to omitting or misstating that
information, and that an entity assesses
materiality in the context of the financial
statements as a whole, and

the meaning of ‘primary users of general
purpose financial statements’ to whom those
financial statements are directed, by defining
them as ‘existing and potential investors,
lenders and other creditors’ that must rely on
general purpose financial statements for
much of the financial information they need.
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FeMBRRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE—

EoZE+—A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(Continued)
(a) Amendments to HKFRSs adopted by the Group in 2020
(Continued)

(ii)

(i)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 regarding definition of
a business

The amended definition of a business requires an
acquisition to include an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs. The definition of the
term ‘outputs’ is amended to focus on goods and
services provided to customers, generating
investment income and other income, and it
excludes returns in the form of lower costs and
other economic benefits.

The amendments will likely result in more
acquisitions being accounted for as asset
acquisitions.

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting

The HKICPA has issued a revised Conceptual
Framework which will be used in standard-setting
decisions with immediate effect. Key changes
include:

increasing the prominence of stewardship in
the objective of financial reporting

reinstating prudence as a component of
neutrality

defining a reporting entity, which may be a

legal entity, or a portion of an entity

revising the definitions of an asset and a
liability
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FeMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-ZT-_ZTF+=-A=

T—HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(Continued)
(a) Amendments to HKFRSs adopted by the Group in 2020
(Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial

Reporting (Continued)

- removing the probability threshold for
recognition and adding guidance on
derecognition

adding guidance on different measurement
basis, and

stating that profit or loss is the primary
performance indicator and that, in principle,
income and expenses in other
comprehensive income should be recycled
where this enhances the relevance or faithful
representation of the financial statements.

No changes will be made to any of the current
accounting standards.

Amendments to HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39
regarding interest rate benchmark reform

The amendments made to HKFRS 7 ‘Financial
Instruments: Disclosures’, HKFRS 9 ‘Financial
Instruments’ and HKAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement’ provide certain
reliefs in relation to interest rate benchmark
reforms.

The reliefs relate to hedge accounting and have
the effect that the reforms should not generally
cause hedge accounting to terminate. However,
any hedge ineffectiveness should continue to be
recorded in the income statement. Given the
pervasive nature of hedges involving Inter Bank
Offered Rate based contracts, the reliefs will affect
companies in all industries.
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FeMBRRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BHE_T_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(Continued)
(a) Amendments to HKFRSs adopted by the Group in 2020
(Continued)

(v)

Amendments to HKFRS 16 regarding Covid-19-
related rent concessions

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, rent
concessions have been granted to lessees. Such
concessions might take a variety of forms,
including payment holidays and deferral of lease
payments. In May 2020, the HKICPA made an
amendment to HKFRS 16 ‘Leases’ which provides
lessees with an option to treat qualifying rent
concessions in the same way as they would if
they were not lease modifications. In many cases,
this will result in accounting for the concessions
as variable lease payments in the period in which
they are granted.

Entities applying the practical expedients must
disclose this fact, whether the expedient has been
applied to all qualifying rent concessions or, if not,
information about the nature of the contracts to
which it has been applied, as well as the amount
recognised in profit or loss arising from the rent
concessions.

This amendment is effective on 1 June 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE—ZT-ZTF+-A=

T—HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(Continued)

(b) The following new standard and amendments to
HKFRSs have been issued but are not effective for the

financial year beginning on 1

January 2020 and have

not been early adopted by the Group:

()

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

Amendments to HKAS 1 regarding classification
of liabilities as current or non-current, effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 (possibly deferred to 1 January 2023).

Amendments to HKAS 16 regarding property,
plant and equipment, proceeds before intended
use, effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022.

Amendments to HKAS 37 regarding onerous
contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract, effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 regarding reference to
the conceptual framework, effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

HKFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’, effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 regarding
sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture, originally
intended to be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The
effective date has now been deferred/removed.

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2018-
2020, effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022.
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FeMBRRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE—

EoZE+—A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1Consolidation

(a)

(b)

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the group has control. The
Group controls an entity where the group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of
the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their
acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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FeMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTHF+-_A=+—BLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from
such remeasurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair
value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill (Note 2.9). If the total of
consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured
is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in
the consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the Group's accounting policies.
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FeMBRRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(9}

(d)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.
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FeMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTHF+-_A=+—BLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

EESBERUME %)

22 KMEARE)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee's net assets
including goodwill.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
also required according to Note 2.10.

2.3 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carry
amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest
in an associate, any difference between the cost of the
associate and the Group's share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for
as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.
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e MG HRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Associates (Continued)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there
is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of profits less
losses of investments accounted for using the equity
method’ in the consolidated income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group's financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interests in associates
are recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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FeMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTHF+-_A=+—BLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Joint arrangements

25

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements.
Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures.
Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. The Group's investments in joint
ventures include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon
the acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint venture,
any difference between the cost of the joint venture and the
Group's share of the net fair value of the joint venture's
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.
When the Group's share of losses in a joint venture equals or
exceeds its interests in the joint ventures, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
the joint ventures have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Committee of Executive Directors of the Company
that makes strategic decisions.
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e MG HRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company'’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
items are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated income statement
within ‘finance income and costs — net’. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement within ‘other (losses)/
gains — net’.

Changes in the fair value of debt securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as available
for sale are analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the
security and other changes in the carrying amount of
the security. Translation differences related to changes
in amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and
other changes in carrying amount are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences
on non-monetary financial assets, such as equities
classified as available for sale, are included in other
comprehensive income.
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e MR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE—ZT-_TF+_F=t+—HItEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group's
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each consolidated
income statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other financial instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is sold or any borrowings forming
part of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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e MG HRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. Buildings are
shown at fair value, based on periodic, but at least triennial,
valuations by external independent valuers, less subsequent
depreciation for buildings. Any accumulated depreciation at
the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset, and the net amount is restated
to the revalued amount of the asset. All other property, plant
and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of
buildings are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset
are charged to other comprehensive income; all other
decreases are charged to the consolidated income
statement. Each year the difference between depreciation
based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged
to the consolidated income statement and depreciation
based on the asset’s original cost is transferred from
‘revaluation reserve’ to ‘retained earnings’.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs or
revalued amounts to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

2.5%-6.7%
6.7%-16.7%
10.0%-33.3%
14.0%-20.0%

— Buildings

— Machinery and equipment
— Furniture and fixtures

— Motor vehicles

15 t0 40 years
6to 15 years
3to 10 years
5to 7 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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FeMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTHF+-_A=+—BLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

29

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within ‘other (losses)/gains — net’ in the consolidated
income statement.

When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in
revaluation reserve are transferred to retained earnings.

Construction-in-progress, representing buildings on which
construction work has not been completed and machinery
pending installation, is stated at cost, which includes
construction expenditures incurred, cost of machinery,
interest capitalised and other direct costs capitalised during
the construction and installation period, less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. No depreciation is provided in
respect of construction-in-progress until the construction
and installation work is completed and put into use. On
completion, construction-in-progress is transferred to
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment.

Freehold land
Freehold land is not amortized.

Intangible assets

(i) Goodwill
Goodwill is measured as described in note 2.2.1.
Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold.
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FeMBRRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

29

Intangible assets (Continued)

(i) Goodwill (Continued)
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose. The
units or groups of units are identified at the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating segments.

(ii) Customer relationship
Customer relationship acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and are
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

(iii) Amortisation methods and periods

The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited

useful life using the straight-line method over the

following periods:

Customer relationship 15 years

2.10 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates,

joint ventures and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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FeMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE

CECRETA=tHIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets
2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income (OCI)
or through profit or loss), and

those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

2.11.2Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)
2.11.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or
loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
There are three measurement categories into which
the Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented
in other gains/(losses) together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the statement of
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTHF+-_A=+—BLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.3 Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)
FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income and
foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other
gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in other gains/
(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOC| are measured at FVPL. A
gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net within other gains/
(losses) in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCl, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of
the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group's right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognised in other losses in the statement of profit or
loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

2.11.4Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see note 13 for further
details.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

2.13 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designed as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of item being hedged.
Derivative instruments held by the Group do not qualify for
hedge accounting and are accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss. Changes in fair value of these
derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statement within ‘other (losses)/gains — net'.
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FeMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE—

ZoZE+-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Government grants/subsidies

Grants/subsidies from government authorities are
recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant/subsidies will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants/subsidies relating to assets are
presented in the balance sheet by deducting the grant in
arriving at the carrying amount of the asset.

Government grants/subsidies relating to compensation for
relocation are deferred and recognised in the consolidated
income statement over the period when the relocation takes
place.

2.15 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.16 Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Net realisable value takes into
account the price ultimately expected to be realised, less
applicable variable selling expenses and the anticipated
costs to completion.

Development cost of properties comprises cost of land use
rights, construction costs, borrowing costs and professional
fees incurred during the development period. On
completion, the properties are transferred to completed
properties held for sale.

Properties under development are classified as current assets
unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond
normal operating cycle.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade and other
receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.18 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held at call
with banks.

2.19 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

2.20 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

2.22 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

2.23 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company'’s subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill and
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTHF+-_A=+—BLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group
is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only where there is an
agreement in place that gives the Group the ability to
control the reversal of the temporary difference in the
foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation to
taxable temporary differences arising from associate’s
undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates only to the
extent that it is probable the temporary difference will
reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable
profit available against which the temporary difference
can be utilised.

2.24 Employee benefits

(a)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.
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e MG HRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Pension obligations (defined contribution plans)
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund
does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the current and
prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Bonus plan

The Group recognises a provision for bonuses where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice
that has created a constructive obligation.

2.25 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments
(options) of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted:

including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period); and
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FeMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE—

ZoZE+-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
2.25 Share-based payments (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)
including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save or hold
shares for a specified period of time).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest
based on the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the consolidated income statement, with
a corresponding adjustment to equity.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide
services in advance of the grant date and therefore the grant
date fair value is estimated for the purposes of recognising
the expense during the period between service
commencement period and grant date.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new
shares. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (and share
premium).

2.26 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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e MG HRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition

(a)

(b)

Sales of goods

The Group manufactures and sells yarns, grey fabrics,
non-woven fabrics and garment fabrics as well as
garments in the market. Sales are recognised when
control of the products has transferred, being when
the customer has inspected and accepted the
products. The Group does not expect to have any
contracts where the period between the transfer of the
promised goods to the customer and payment by the
customer exceeds one year. Delivery occurs when the
products have been shipped to the specific location.

If discount is granted to customers, revenue from these
sales is recognised based on the price specified in the
contract, net of the estimated discounts. Accumulated
experience is used to estimate and provide for the
discounts, and revenue is only recognised to the extent
that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will
not occur. No significant financing component is
deemed present as the sales are made with a credit
term of less than 90 days to its customers in Mainland
China and 120 days to its customers in other countries,
which is consistent with market practice.

A receivable is usually recognised when revenue
recognised as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.

If the payments exceed the value of the goods sold, a
contract liability is recognised.

Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the consolidated income statement as
part of other income. Interest income is presented as
finance income where it is earned from financial assets
that are held for cash management purposes. Any
other interest income is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction
of the loss allowance).
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FeMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTHF+-_A=+—BLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

2.28 Leases

EESBERUME %)

2.28 &

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
had substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership were
classified as finance leases. Finance leases were capitalised at
the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments. Each lease payment was allocated between
the liability and finance charges. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, were included in finance
lease obligations. The interest element of the finance cost
was charged to the consolidated income statement over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases was depreciated over the shorter of the useful
life of the asset and the lease term.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments).

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being
the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
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e MG HRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.28 Leases (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since
third party financing was received

uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the
Group, which does not have recent third party financing,
and

makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg. term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,
and

any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. While the
Group revalues its land and buildings that are presented
within property, plant and equipment, it has chosen not to
do so for the right-of-use buildings held by the Group.
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FeMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTHF+-_A=+—BLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHEREBE®

POLICIES (Continued)

2.28 Leases (Continued) 2.28 HE (&)
All land in the Mainland China is state-owned and no REAMEETE T BEE - TFEE
individual land ownership right exists. The Group acquired F A {E A T BEG #E - ANEBERESFEH
the right to use certain land. The premiums paid for such HTEHARER] o StEBERER XA
right are treated as prepayment for operating lease and BE ARKEHENTENZIE - AR
recorded at cost as right-of-use assets, which are depreciated SVEEREEE  RNEEHRNNUESE
over the lease periods using the straight-line method. E -
Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment BB HE REREBEEER
and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised BHEEHBONRABGRENERER
on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short- RAY - RAAHEREEER A 12EAK
term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. LTHEE - REEEEBEEMEHE
Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and small items of AR R N RV R ©

office furniture.

2.29 Earnings per share 2.29 BREF
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREXEF
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: BRERBNZFETER
the profit attributable to owners of the company, - BEBRAREEBAZEN T
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than BIEE BRI IN Z A
ordinary shares an PR ZRBR A
by the weighted average number of ordinary - REBEEABITEIINE R
shares outstanding during the financial year, ZINEFEHE - REREITZ
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares LB Z A F TR AR
issued during the year and excluding treasury R EEEFER G
shares.
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) SREBERF
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in BREERTALRETERELRER
the determination of basic earnings per share to take HF P A 2 B AR K

into account:

the after income tax effect of interest and other . HEBETESTBEREEAAE
financing costs associated with dilutive potential NEAMBEERAZRTBET %
ordinary shares, and e R

the weighted average number of additional - BEMEBEES ST AEKRKR
ordinary shares that would have been outstanding i% - A B EAT RSN E iR
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential A HN#EF 988

ordinary shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
2.30 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company's
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, when
appropriate.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risk
(including foreign exchange risk, price risk, cash flow and fair
value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's risk management focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance. The Group uses
derivative financial instruments to hedge certain of its risk
exposures on changes in interest rates.

(@) Marketrisk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Mainland China
and Vietnam. Most of the Group's transactions,
assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB or
United States dollars ("USD"). Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations. The Group is
exposed to foreign exchange risk primarily
through pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, trade and
bills payables, and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entity. It
manages its foreign exchange risks by performing
regular review and monitoring of its foreign
exchange exposures and purchase of foreign
currency forward contracts (Note 20). In 2020, the
Group has entered into the forward foreign
exchange contracts and cross currency swap
contracts to manage the expected fluctuation of
RMB against USD or HKD.

174 TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XII4#BEBMAR AT

EESTBERME %)

2.30 RE DK

AARRABER D RS ERSERR
BIBRCRAES (HER) tAEN SRR A
KERARRNHFEHRAERSARE

B 7% B B B 2R
3.1 BKEKBEZR

AEBENEKmE SETEREAR (B
SMNERR - BRER  RERERAF
EFXER) FEERBREABDESR
o AEENAREEZESHT SN
G SCRESE RN = L= Fa P ET
MRREELEEZENERRER
1K > REBEFBITES R T B LASHA
REBHMELNE TRER

(a) THE
() SPERESE
RNEEE £ ZE B R &l
FEE - ARBAHOIRS
BENBEAARESKET
(L)) FHE © FMNE R B 2Kk
BRI E INETS R R
Ry BHREIAEERBER
KREFE  AEBEEEHAI
ERk EZREEHEFR
1 BekReEED
BWE S REBERIE - B
BEOREBREREE -
A S IEH AEAEEEE
ZINEEEE AN B IEE -
RNEEB#EITE PRy RER
HAONE R O F188 B = iy &
A H(KI5E20) A B IR EHNE
B RZZE_FF - A&
BEEFEHIINESDH KRR
XEBEBEHONEEAR
& N TS S TLRITEER R & ©



e MR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTHF+-_A=+—BLFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(i)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 6.5% (2019: 1.6%) against USD
with all other variable held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have been
RMB117,637,000 (2019: RMB36,976,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of the net foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of USD-
denominated pledged bank deposits, cash and
cash equivalents, trade and bills receivables, trade
and bills payables, and borrowings.

At 31 December 2020, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 6.1% (2019: 2.2%) against HKD
with all other variable held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have been
RMB194,982,000 (2019: RMB114,963,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of the net foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of HKD-
denominated pledged bank deposits, cash and
cash equivalents, trade and bills receivables, trade
and bills payables, and borrowings.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to raw material price risk
because of the volatility of the price of main raw
material, cotton. The management of the Group
analyze the trend of raw material price on weekly
basis. To manage its price risk, the Group has
entered into the cotton future contracts and
cotton option contracts and decide to enter long
term contracts to mitigate the impact from raw
material price changes, and diversify the suppliers
if they expect significant fluctuation in the future.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)
(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for pledged bank deposits and cash at
bank (Note 15), the Group has no significant
interest-bearing assets. The Group'’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.
Management does not anticipate significant
impact resulted from changes in interest rates on
interest bearing assets.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Borrowings obtained at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. As at 31
December 2020, approximately 28% (2019: 22%)
of the Group’s borrowings were at fixed rates and
the remaining were at floating rates.

The Group manages certain of its cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk by purchasing cross
currency swap contracts. Such cross currency
swaps have the economic effect of converting
borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates. As at
31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group in
substance converted majority of its borrowings
from floating rates to fixed rates through
purchasing cross currency swap contracts. So
there is no significant interest rate risk for the
Group.

(b) Creditrisk

The Group has more than 5,000 customers and does
not rely on the orders from certain customers. So the
Group has no significant concentration of credit risk.
The carrying amounts of pledged bank deposits, cash
and cash equivalents, trade and bills receivables and
other receivables represent the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group generally grants credit terms of less than 90
days to its customers in Mainland China and 120 days
to its customers in other countries. The Group's
management performs periodic credit evaluations/
reviews of its customers and ensure that sales are made
to customers with an appropriate credit history. The
Group places deposits with major banks in Mainland
China and Hong Kong, to limit the amount of credit
exposure to any financial institution.

Trade and bills receivables, and other receivables are
subject to the expected credit loss model.

To lower the Group's exposure to credit risk, the Group
may request 5% deposits from certain of their
customers before delivery of goods. In addition, 100%
(2019: 100%) of the bills receivable of the Group are
endorsed by banks as at 31 December 2020.
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(b)

ZECRET A=+ HIEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MBEREE®

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BKEBEZEE)
Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERRE)
Impairment of trade receivables FEW B 5 5K TE R B
The Group has trade receivables from sales of products REEBAETEB ISR ELER
that are subject to HKFRS 9's new expected credit loss oI IEHEEEEEXNE
model. The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified i E EWE S 30E - NEEEKA
approach to measure expected credit losses which B ISWREERIFE oKL T
uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade ATEEHBEEEE RUTSER
receivables from initial recognition. To measure the B BRTAEWE 5 IaEEZE
expected credit losses, trade receivables have been FEHRNNTELEE - A28 H
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and FEEER  EWESRECRES
the ageing days. The expected loss rates are based on e B R B M BRER D 8 - TEHR
the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 month EEXRER - _ZFTF+ =8
before 31 December 2020 and the corresponding =+ —HA36ME A B HE S
historical credit losses experienced within this period. BN R AEARE A IR A B BT
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current ZEEE - ﬂﬁﬁéﬁafﬂzﬁ ﬂ%él«,{
and forward-looking information on macroeconomic RSB R 4 E EGIERE N
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle RERBEREZNE A &HIJ EJ& &
the receivables. On that basis, the loss allowance as at Bl o M EE - RZEZTF+=
31 December 2020 was determined as follows for trade A=+—HArEKE S HIBEER
receivables: HIHEFEWLT
At 31December 2020 A=ZT =T F

+=A=+-8

Gross carrying amount RN 849,875 17,057 9,793 4,728 881,453
Expected loss rate ,\,ﬂ J!E‘ﬂa = 0.63% 18.82% 19.14% 98.67% 1.71%
Loss allowance EE s 5,328 3,210 1,874 4,665 15,077
Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented FEUE 5 R R BB B &

as net impairment losses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the same line item.

Net impairment losses on financial assets recognised in
profit or loss

During the year, losses of RMB4,851,000 (2019:
RMB3,638,000) are recognised in net accrual of
impairment losses on financial assets.
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BE

3.

CECRETA=tHIEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. UWHEBREE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HMBEBREER(E)
(c) Liquidity risk (0 RBESERE
Prudent liquidity risk management includes AEERRNEBENRBDE S ARE
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of B ERTHNEAREERER
funding through an adequate amount of committed BERARESRUHANES - A%
credit facilities. The Group aims to maintain flexibility in EEFE AR ANERAHEE
funding by keeping committed credit lines available. BE  URBESZEEEN - E
Details of the undrawn borrowing facilities available to BAASERNRESABEEREFER
the Group are disclosed in Note 19 to the consolidated A TG ERMTE 19 HKEER -
financial statements.
The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities TR AEBHN SR EEIT
into relevant maturity groupings based on the tﬂ?ﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁxﬂﬁﬂiﬁﬂﬂlmﬁﬁﬂ,%;f
remaining period at the balance sheet date to the EEAMEBENFSHARETDY
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in 71‘)? TKANBEBRHNSERE AMEAREL
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. BHRBME °
Less than Between 1 Between 2 More than
1year and2years and 5 years 5years
PR—F —FZERF WEERF BENE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREFT AREFTT AREFT
At 31 December 2020 R-B-ZHF
+ZA=t+—H
Borrowings BE 3,837,481 1,802,628 1,422,994 -
Interest payable on borrowings & & & 7| & 128,527 67,128 39,390 -
Derivative financial instruments 744 & T & 234,704 - - -
Trade and bills payables e E 5 R BB ZIE 2,652,659 - - -
Accruals and other payables  FEIRE M R H i
(excluding non-financial ERERR (TR
liabilities) Femam) 387,587 - - -
Lease liabilities MEaE 66,683 51,981 51,363 37,879
Long-term payables REAFES R X 129,936 30,726 - -
7,437,577 1,952,463 1,513,747 37,879
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZB-hE
tT=BA=t—-H
Borrowings R 3,359,616 2,904,576 2,020,431 -
Interest payable on borrowings & E & 7 & 279,116 156,926 62,242 -
Derivative financial instruments  $74 & T A 29,530 -
Trade and bills payables AN Y ES &8 3,035,868 = = -
Accruals and other payables  TBIZ B i R B ERTBR X
(excluding non-financial (TBEEeman)
liabilities) 408,106 - - -
Lease liabilities MEEE 41,365 36,662 64,569 53,519
Long-term payables RERE T AR 105,693 120,236 30,726 =
7259294 3218400 2,177,968 53,519
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders or
issue new shares.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including ‘current and non-
current borrowings’ as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet), lease liabilities and long-term payables less pledged
bank deposits and cash and total equivalents. Total capital is
calculated as ‘total equity’ as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet less non-controlling interests plus net debt.

The net gearing ratios at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as
follows:

3.

R EE 2
3.2 EsEkER

AEBERESHN B RAREASER
BICEREN  RERRBERE®RER/E
S E AmRRE  WHERFERE
GBI D B AR

REFIABELGERE  AKEHEH
EABRRKNRESERBEITHRND °

HEENEMAR 5 AEENBREE
BELXRERERS - S RUAAEFE
BRUBERBENE - REFREUEER
B(BRGRBEERBRAIIRZ R
MIERBEE]  HEREBERRHERN
BRRREERRITERERERAESE
BYEFE - EXRRBENGAEEREBER
WFIRZ [ 48RS | FNRR IEHE H ME#E a5
MEEFEAE -

RZF_FFR-_F-NAF+=A
ST -BZFRERBHERNAT -

2019

—T-NF

RMB’000

AREFT

Total borrowings (Note 19) BELRE (K 19) 7,063,103 8,284,623

Lease liabilities (Note 8) HEaEHZs) 185,745 171,156

Long-term payables (Note 21) REAER AR (AYaE 21) 153,912 238,784
Less: pledged bank deposits and B BEERRTEREReR

cash and cash equivalents (Note 15) REFEW (KT 15) (2,944,223) (1,852,337)

Net debt BEFRE 4,458,537 6,842,226

Total equity excluding non-controlling  #2#EZ§ - FOBR IEIR S MERESS

interests 7,863,267 7,473,456

Total capital BB 12,321,804 14,315,682

Net gearing ratio FEEBBLE 36% 48%
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group held forward
foreign exchange contracts, cross currency swap contracts,
cotton future contracts and cotton option contracts. These
forward foreign exchange contracts have been fair valued
using forward exchange rates that are quoted in an active
market. Cross currency swaps are fair valued using forward
exchange rates that are quoted in an active market and
interest rates extracted from observable yield curves. Cotton
future contracts and cotton option contracts are fair valued
using forward cotton price that are quoted in an active
market. The effects of discounting are generally insignificant
for Level 2 derivatives.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MBEBERE®)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEMAT(E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AFESER(E)
The following table presents the Group's assets and liabilities TERENAEBR - E_TER T
that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2020 and —hWE+-_A=t—BERAFEFTEZ
2019: BENAE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—& -t | F=& st

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARMTE AREBTT AR®TT ARETT

At 31 December 2020 R-ZB-ZF
+=-—B=+—H
Assets EE
Derivative financial instruments TSI A - 111,167 - 111,167
Liabilities =R
Derivative financial instruments PTEERIA - 234,704 - 234,704
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF—H B F=H et

RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARRTT ARETT AR®ETT ARETT

At 31 December 2019 R-ZB—IE
+=—H=t+—H
Assets BE
Derivative financial instruments PTEESMTA = 287,435 = 287,435
Liabilities =L
Derivative financial instruments TTEERI A = 29,530 = 29,530
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BE—

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

4.1

4.2

Estimated useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful
lives and residual values and consequently the related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. It could change as a result of technical
innovations and competitors action in response to sever
industry cycles. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, or it will write-off or write down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives,
and actual residual values may differ from estimated residual
values. Periodic reviews could result in a change in
depreciable lives and residual values and therefore changes
in depreciation expenses in the future periods.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and selling expenses. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations, changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycle. Management
reassesses these estimates at each balance sheet date.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.3

4.4

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

The Group's management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and bills receivables based on the
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade and bills receivables. The loss
allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. Management
uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Management reassesses the provision at each
balance sheet date.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment is reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined based on
value-in-use calculations or market valuations. These
calculations require the use of judgments and estimates.

Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related assets values
may not be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of an
asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, being
the higher of fair value less costs to sell or net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management in
assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value in the impairment test
and as a result affect the Group’s financial condition and
results of operations. If there is a significant adverse change
in the projected performance and resulting future cash flow
projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment
charge to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.5 Income taxes and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
it is likely that future taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
When the expectations are different from the original
estimates, such differences will impact the recognition of
deferred tax assets and income tax charges in the period in
which such estimates have been changed.

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
Committee of Executive Directors of the Company. Operating
segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The
Committee of Executive Directors reviews the Group's internal
reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments based on
these reports.

The Committee of Executive Directors considers the business from
both a product and geographical perspective. From a product
perspective, management assesses the performance from sales of
yarns, grey fabrics, non-woven fabrics and garment fabrics as well
as garments.

Due to the continuous improvement of the regional integration
process, the Group shows homogeneity of operation and
management in the same geographical area. As a consequence,
the Committee of Executive Directors integrated the segment
information in the same area.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The scope of the operating segments has been modified following
the changes in management responsibilities as from 1 January
2020. China now includes Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macao.
Southeast Asia now includes Vietnam and Cambodia. Americas
now includes United States, Mexico and Nicaragua.

2019 comparative information has been restated.

The Committee of Executive Directors assesses the performance
of the operating segments based on revenue and operating profit.

The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2020 is
as follows:

5. oHER @)
B-T-TH— A0 BIZEERESY
b @EESPBHBESEFER - RERE
ERE NN - SRR o G HI A
ERREE - ENBEAELE  REFRE
AORL

—TENFUBREHNCDEES -

HITEZTZRESRBUA R ENFHL
BNEZEE

o

BE_ T ZHF+_A=+—HILtFEZD
HERIT

Year ended 31 December 2020
BECR-RELCASL-ALER

Yams Garment fabrics and Garments Grey fabrics Non-woven fabrics
£ EHRER by B/GH
Southeast Southeast Southeast Southeast
China Asia Americas Others China Asia Americas China Asia China Asia
HE REE Bl -0 T REE By HE REE HE REE
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARRFR ARETT ARBFT ARETR ARETT AREFL ARMTL ARBTT  AREFZ  ARETL AREFZ
Total revenue BRA 19,694,736 7,044,903 19,535 172314 3,090,115 678,469 756,862 625,724 381,558 56,105 60,010 32,580,331
Inter-segment revenue AHERA (5185193)  (6,524,519) (19,535) - (106,159) (528,971) (74128) (129,806) (380,675) - (54,407)  (13,003,393)
Revenue (from external customers) W A (RE N % F) 14,509,543 520,384 - 172314 2,983,956 149,498 682,734 495918 883 56,105 5603 19,576,938
Timing of revenue recognition AR
— Atapointintime — INE (AR 14,509,543 520,384 - 172314 2,983,956 149,498 682,734 495918 883 56,105 5603 19,576,938
Segment results ARER 435,296 385,254 (17,908) (20,432) 129,222 47,627 (14,070) 9,048 9,715 944 12,598 977,294
Unallocated losses KAREE (121,643)
Operating profit fdyetil 855,651
Finance income BEMA 50,774
Finance costs BRER (270,689)
Share of profits less losses of HENERENEZ
investments accountedforusing ~ REAREFIREE
the equity method 45,124
Incorne tax expense FERAX (150,506)
Profit for the period BRER 530,354
—
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH (447,376) (332,851) (832) (15,533) (103,770) (44,592) (21,873) (7,685) (23477) - (5,681)  (1,003,670)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTHF+-_A=+—BLFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2019 is

restated as follows:

DEER (&)

MEMEHOT

HE-F-NF+-A=+—RILFEZH

Year ended 31 December 2019 (Restated)
BE-T-NET-A=T—-RLFE(F))

Yams Garment fabrics and Garments Grey fabrics Total
P ER R i k)
Southeast Southeast Southeast
China Asia Americas Others China Asia Americas China Asia
e BT =i £t HE REE e HE LT
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB0O0O RMB0O00 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AREFT ARBTrT ARMTT ARMTT ARKTT ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Total revenue TGN 21,583,366 8,189,565 - 94,036 3770914 892394 939,366 988,799 565893 37024333
Inter-segment revenue AEERA (5581915)  (7,570,760) - - (93,694) (803478) (127,347) (278,530) (565,666)  (15,021,390)
Revenue (from external customers) WA (RESMBZEF) 16,001,451 618,805 - 94,036 3,677,220 83916 812019 710,269 227 22002943
Timing of revenue recognition DN
— Ata point in time — R AR 16,001,451 618,805 - 94036 367720 88916 812019 710,269 27 2000943
Segment results DIREE 585,775 357,937 (5,247) (13783) 371,841 (14639) (10,026) 43875 16378 133211
Unallocated profits RARRA 302350
Operating profit Feyil 1634461
Finance income BEIRA 28467
Finance costs HER (576.218)
Share of profits less losses of AENEREAEZ
investments accounted for using REANSHRER
the equity method 28,090
Income tax expense FrSFiEx (192,051)
Profit for the period HREF 922,749
Depreciation and amortisation REREH (387,675) (312,126) (467) (5,285) (79.910) (67.972) (22,095) (15,786) (31375) (922,691)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_T-_ZF+-_A=t+—HItEE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. oHER @)
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2020 are as R-EBE_TEE+_A=1T—HZHoHEEK
follows: BEWT :
Asat 31 December 2020
W-2-8E1t=A=t-H
Yams Garment fabrics and Garments Grey fabrics Non-woven fabrics
FES ERREE 1 3%
Southeast Southeast Southeast Southeast
Asia Americas Others Asia Americas China Asia China Asia
REE M 0] REE M il RED Ll | REE
RMBO0D  RMB000  RMB'000 RMBO00  RMB000  RMBOOO  AMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBO0O  RMB000
ARETE AEEFT ARETR AREFRT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFZ
Total segment assets ARBEE 9,309,102 4,156,144 397,829 396,007 3,206,076 986,656 615,563 174,788 271,633 10,884 578,669 20,103,351
Unallocated assets FOREE 53,928
Total assets of the Group rEEAEE 20,157,279
Total segment liabilities APEEE (3,668,124)  (2,369,948) (336,565) (365,684) (736,773) (816,676) (396,447) (59,681) (257,611) (422) (425,143)  (9,433,074)
Unallocated liabilties FOEER (2,251,467)
Total liabilities of the Group rEEAGE (11,684,541)
Addition to non-current assets FEERHEE 115,379 32,815 32,026 14,349 103,838 71,667 48,509 1 - - 121,041 539,795
The Group planned to develop real estate and has purchased NEFEHZBREEHEYEEBERLN AE40E
relevant land use rights with lease terms of 40 to 70 years of 704F B8 78 £ b {5 A #E A R 5 228,680,000 7T ©
RMB228,680,000. No construction had started till 31 December BHE-_ZT-_TF+_A=1T—HBHEKABIE
2020, such land use rights were recognised in unallocated assets. T - Mm% T (FE RER R D IR EEARNIER ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE—ZT-_TF+_F=t+—HItEE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2019 are

restated as follows:

5.

DEER (&)

RIB-NF+-A=T—HZOHBEER

BEEWT :

As at 31 December 2019 (Restated)

RZF-NETZRA=1—R(Zj)

Yarns Garment fabrics and Garments Grey fabrics Total
Y HHRMR% 7 ]

Southeast Southeast Southeast

China Asia Americas Others China Asia Americas China Asia

HE RBE Fh £t e RBE =M e REE
RMB00O RMB00O RMB00O RMB00O RMB00O RMB00O RMB00O RMB00O RMB00O RMBO0O
NRETFT ARBTT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFR
Total segment assets AEEE 9480,505 4535545 387,345 379097 3602748 790,260 532858 331,183 786312 20825853
Unallocated assefs FAREE 348808
Total assets of the Group rEEEEE 21,174661
Total segment liabilities ABABE (4088377)  (1,153862) (236327) (106,279) (690417) (426,182) (283,146) (26254) (3588%6)  (7,369,740)
Unallocated liabilties FOERE (5,705,546)
Total liabilities of the Group FrEELER (13,075,86)
Addition to non-current assets REFRBEE 722080 130970 420069 165,508 59901 180,138 115234 10562 296856 2101318

2020 ANNUAL REPORT

—Z-TEER 189



iR e MR RME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_T-_ZF+-_A=t+—HItEE

6.

FREEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 6. XKAEREL#R L hFERAE
2020 2019
—E-SFE —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT AREFT
Freehold land KA EREL 167,794 170,005
2020 2019
—B-FF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB000
AR FT AREFT
Opening net book amount FARREFE 170,005 1,011,183
Adjustment for change in accounting policy & &SR % 8 A - (877,045)
Restated opening net book amount B F AR FE 170,005 134,138
Additions NE - 34,740
Currency translation differences BHIE R AR (2,211) 1127
Closing net book amount FARRENFE 167,794 170,005
The Group's freehold land cost is analysed as follows: REEZKAERTHMESHTMT :
2020 2019
—ECoEE —T—hEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F ARETFT
Freehold land K AEERE T
— In Cambodia — PARIEHER 119,443 116,257
— In Turkey —REHH 19,511 20,847
— In Mexico — REEFET 14,048 15,020
— In Uruguay —RERE 9,755 10,073
— In Nicaragua — e pnHz I 5,037 7,808
167,794 170,005
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE—ZT-_TF+_F=t+—HItEE

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

7. W% BERERHE

Machinery Furniture
and and Motor  Construction
Buildings ~ equipment fixtures vehicles  in-progress Total
BF HKEREE GLREE B ERIE @t
RAMB000 RAMB000 RMB000 RMB000 AMB000 RMB000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETL
At 1January 2019 R=B-hnf-A—-H
Cost or valuation A (B 3015122 7082672 86,769 50,683 905219 11140465
Accumulated depreciation e 472738) (2,879,281 (43729) (27.797) - (3423544)
Net book amount RE S E 2,542,384 4,203,391 43,041 22,886 905,219 7716921
Yearended 31 December2019 HZE=E-H &
T-A=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount FOEEFE 2,542,384 403,391 43,041 22,886 905219 7716921
Adjustment for change in SHIREENRE
accounting policy - (17,409) - - - (17,409)
Restated opening net BH|FIREFE
book amount 2542384 4185982 43041 22,886 905,219 7699512
Additions NE 21,115 319,100 16928 5353 1575630 1938126
Revaluation Efh 210,988 - - - - 210988
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHB AR 331,642 184,739 6,928 3839 - 527,148
Transfers fEE 331,162 811488 8062 1200 (1151912) -
Disposals (Note 33) & (HfiE33) (129) (19,562) (206) (128) - (20,025)
Depreciation charges (Note 26) & i (Ff7#26) (154,245) (681,001) (14,702) (7,47) - (857,195)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWBAR (57,027) = = = = (57,027)
Currency translation differences S H¥[EH =5 2,308 1,265 655 (30) - 4,198
Closing net book amount FREEFE 3228,198 4802011 60,706 25873 1328937 9,445,725
At 31 December 2019 R-B-h&E
+ZA=t-H
Cost or valuation A BB 3847420 8,300,346 115,139 59,205 1328937 13651047
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (619222) (3498335 (54433) (33332) - (4205322
Net book amount RESE 3228198 4802011 60,706 25873 1,328,937 9,445,725
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_T-_ZF+-_A=t+—HItEE

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 7. ¥ BERSZE®

Machinery

Buildings

52
RMB000

ARBFR

Yearended 31 December2020 HZ-ZE-F£

and

equipment

BERRE

RMB’000

AREFR

Furniture
and
fixtures
BRREE
RMB’000
ARETR

Motor Construction
vehicles  in-progress
RE  REIR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETFT

Total

st
RMB'000
AREFT

TZA=t-HLEEE
Opening net book amount FNREFE 3,228,198 4,802,011 60,706 25873 1328937 9,445,725
Additions RE 4,088 28,595 4,901 3,803 440,068 481,455
Transfers fEt 318,669 882,139 215 2,589 (1,203,612) -
Disposals (Note 33) HE (A7 33) (3,986) (13,946) (1,103) (1,410) - (20,445)
Depreciation charges (Note26) ~ #r&E X H (i3t 26) (159,020)  (744,839) (15,877) (7,041) - (926,777)
Impairment charges (Note 26) BB i (Hzt26) - (16,863) - - - (16,863)
Currency translation differences  E¥ER =% (22,208) (11,686) (527) 7 (34,531) (68,959)
Closing net book amount ERREFE 3365741 4,925,411 48,315 23,807 530,862 8,894,136
At 31 December 2020 R-B-EF

TZA=t-H
Cost or valuation PSR f(E 4,129,468 9,070,279 113,965 59,749 530,862 13,904,323
Accumulated depreciationand ~ 2HTE RFES

impairment charges (763,727)  (4,144,868) (65,650) (35,942) - (5010,187)

Net book amount FRESE 3365741 4925411 48,315 23,807 530,862 8,894,136

Buildings are shown at fair value, based on periodic, but at least
triennial valuations by external independent valuers, less
subsequent depreciation. As at 31 December 2019, buildings with
net book amount of RMB3,228,198,000 were stated at fair value.
The Group did not revaluate the buildings as at 31 December
2020, because in the opinion of the directors, the net book
amount of RMB3,365,741,000 as at 31 December 2020 for such
buildings did not differ materially from which would be
determined using fair value.

The valuation performed as at 31 December 2019 was determined
using the depreciated replacement costs approach and was
within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Current gross
reproduction costs of the buildings are adjusted for physical
deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence and
optimization.
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FeMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTHF+-_A=+—BLFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The revaluation surplus, net of applicable deferred income tax
liabilities, was regarded as other comprehensive income and
credited to revaluation reserve in equity (Note 18).

If buildings were stated on historical cost basis, the amounts
would be as follows:

ME - BMENRRKE®)
EGRSBNMBERNETHEHEaRE  EA
H i 2 E NS 5 AERS PO B 15 5 (H
18) °

HBFAEEKAOERSER - SR /T

2019

—ET-NF

RMB000

ARKEFIT

Cost B AN 3,819,189 3,537,141
Accumulated depreciation 2T E (740,268) (595,763)
Net book amount R FE 3,078,921 2,941,378

During the year ended 31 December 2020, depreciation of
RMB838,759,000 (2019: RMB785,213,000) was included in cost of
sales, RMB4,557,000 (2019: RMB5,432,000) was included in selling
and distribution costs and RMB83,461,000 (2019: RMB66,550,000)
was included in general and administrative expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no finance cost was
capitalised as part of property, plant and equipment (2019: Nil).

As at 31 December 2020, no property, plant and equipment (2019:
a net amount of RMB709,529,000) were pledged as collateral of
the Group's bank borrowings (Note 19).

REBEE-_ZT-_FE+_A=t+—HItEE "
AR#838759000c(ZF— L& : ARK
785213,0007C) MM EEF AHERAE * AR
¥ 4,557,000 C (= — 1L.F : ARMES5432,000
TR EETAHERDHEHASZRARK
83,461,0007L(=ZZ —NF : AR% 66,550,000
TL)BMEETA—BRITHRAX °

REE-_ZT-_FTE+_A=+—HItEE "
MEREER(—ZE—NF: E)EXRLAEY
¥ BEAEHzZ—EHD -

R-ZZBE-_FBE+-_A=+—8  HEYE
BMERBB(ZE—ALF: FHEARK
709,529,000 7T ) B A A AL B IRITEERE
#Hen (FEEE19) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLLFE

8.

LEASES

(i)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet

The consolidated balance sheet shows the following

amounts relating to leases:

8. &

(i)

UTARAERGEEEERRERANS
%5 .
HEEREN RN G EERER
m -

2019
—T-NF
RMB'000
AREFT

Right-of-use assets EREEE
Land use rights b {5 A 4 1,147,878 1,178,793
Buildings and warehouses EBFREE 133,021 115,422
Equipment and others ot R H A 43,518 50,097
1,324,417 1,344,312
Current lease liabilities BIHHEaE 60,516 35,770
Non-current lease liabilities JERNERHEAE 125,229 135,386
Total lease liabilities HESBAHE 185,745 171,156

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2020 financial
year were RMB58,340,000 (2019: RMB320,294,000).

The Group leases various machinery and equipment under
finance lease agreement. The original lease terms are 3 to 4
years. Under the terms of the leases, the leasors transfer
ownership of the assets to the Group by the end of the lease

term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTHF+-_A=+—BLFE

8. LEASES (Continued) 8. HEm®
(ii) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income (i) ERGERBZREZNESHE
statement
The consolidated income statement shows the following BAWRERYIIAATHBERENFUE

amounts relating to leases:

2019
—T-NF
RMB’000
AREFT
Depreciation charge of FREEENEEH
right-of-use assets
Land use rights + i fE R 27,207 23498
Buildings and warehouses EFREE 38,988 31,476
Equipment and others R R EA 7,037 6,861
73,232 61,835
Interest expense (included in FMERE GIAMBER)
finance cost) (Note 28) (Kt 28) 6,215 6,077
Expense relating to short-term leases ARG HHEENMY
(included in selling and distribution GtAHE kY HERASZ AR
costs and administrative expenses) TR (HfaF 26)
(Note 26) 2,577 9,115
Expense relating to leases of low-value A RIARFIR A il 58 HAFL &Y
assets that are not shown above as KEEEEHENRE
short-term leases (included in cost of (GFASHER A &
sales and administrative expenses) TR (HfaF 26)
(Note 26) 137 399
The total cash outflow for leases in 2020 was RMB51,132,000 —ECTENHERSREHAERAR
(2019: RMB157,060,000). #51132000L( ZF— N F: AR¥

157,060,000 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLLFE

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

9. BIEE

Customer
Goodwill relationship Total
[EES EEHE #st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFIT ARETT ARSTT
At 1 January 2019 R=Z-h&—HF—H
Cost [B#N 17,641 54918 72,559
Accumulated depreciation 2xtirE = (1,831) (1,831)
Net book amount AREHE 17,641 53,087 70,728
Year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-ZF—HhE
+t-A=1+—-HLEEE
Opening net book amount FHEmFE 17,641 53,087 70,728
Amortisation charges (Note 26) B R (Mat26) - (3661) (3,661)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 17,641 49,426 67,067
At 31 December 2019 R-E—HE
+=A=t-H
Cost or valuation BN Sk {E 17,641 54,918 72,559
Accumulated amortisation 2t - (5492) (5,492)
Net book amount REFE 17,641 49,426 67,067
Yearended 31 December2020 HE—ZE_T&
T=ZHA=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 17,641 49426 67,067
Amortisation charges (Note 26) B R Mzt 26) = (3,661) (3,661)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 17,641 45,765 63,406
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZB-EH
+=-A=+—H
Cost or valuation AR R 17,641 54918 72,559
Accumulated amortisation S = (9,153) (9,153)
Net book amount AREHE 17,641 45,765 63,406

During the year ended 31 December 2020, amortisation of
RMB3,661,000 (2019: RMB3,661,000) was included in general and

administrative expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HIFE

10. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 10. Uz A DI RIVIRE
EQUITY METHOD
The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are as AT AERGEEEABRERNESE
follows:

2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE-NF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARFT ARBFT

Associates i/ 286,228 238,560
Joint ventures S8 E 3,847 4,709
At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—8H 290,075 243,269
The amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement LT ACRGEEKRERERNES
are as follows:
2020 2019
“ECEH —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT AREFIT
Associates A= NE 44,668 27,257
Joint ventures e 456 833
For the year ended 31 December HE+T-A=1t—HIEE 45,124 28,090
Investments in associates REE QX TNERE
2020 2019
—EoEH —T-AF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT AREFIT
Share of net assets of unlisted associates DMEFELETHE AR BEEFE 286,037 238,369
Goodwill EES 191 191

286,228 238,560
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLLFE

10. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)
Movements of shares of net assets attributable to the Group are as

10. BUEREFIRNVIRE (&)

REEE A RHRE (&)
AEBREEEFEZFNOT ¢

follows:

2019
—E-NF
RMB’000
AREFT
Opening amount B4 238,369 200,640
Additions NE 3,000 10,472

Share of profits less losses based on BRI FTHF RRE 2 P (R R R & 18
equity held 44,668 27,257
Closing amount HiR & %A 286,037 238,369

On 9 March 2020, the Group acquired 30% interest of Jiangsu
Dasheng Intelligence Technology Development Co., Ltd, a
company engaged in manufacturing and sale of textile products
in China, for a consideration of RMB3,000,000. The Group's share of
the fair value of net assets acquired at incorporation date on
aggregation was RMB3,000,000.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interests
in the associates.

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31 December
2020 which, in the opinion of the directors, are individually
immaterial to the Group. The associates as listed below have share
capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly
by the Group; the country of incorporation or registration is also
their principal place of business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZTHF+-_A=+—BLFE

10. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

10. AEREIIRNIRE (&)

Investments in associates (Continued) R A TNIRE (&)
Nature of investments in associates as at 31 December 2020: N-_E—F

FT-A=1+—8 RELERF
REHIEE :

Place and date of

Particulars of

incorporation and issued share
Name of associate form of legal entity Principal activities capital Interest held
BENTER AMRIBEREHAR  ETEXH ERTRAHE FrisREs
EERRER
Nantong Textile Group Co, Ltd. Nantong, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of RMB116,375,000 48%
11 September 2002, top-grade textile knitting
limited liability company products and garments
HRHBEREBN B2 RENEE —TT_F HERHERRHE AR 48%
ARAT NA+—8 EmRAK 116,375,000 7T
BREEAF
Hongyan Vietnam Holdings Limited  British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in RMB166,167,000 45%
2 July 2015, British Virgin Islands
limited liability company
BRESEERER AR HBRAES —T-1F RNEBRXHESET AR¥% 45%
tAZH BREARAR REZK 166,167,000 70
Henglun International Hong Kong, 11 June 2019, Investment holding in USD5,000,000 30%
(Hong Kong) Limited limited liability company Hong Kong
BmER (BE)BRAF BB ZT-NF REBETRERK 5,000,000 7T 30%
AAT—R-
BREEAF
Hualida Vietnam (Quang Ninh) Hong Kong, Investment holding in HKD20,000 45%
Holdings Limited 16 November 2018, Hong Kong
limited liability company
EhEwm (RE)EK BB ZT-N\F REBETRERK 20,000 7T 45%
ARAT +—A+xE"
BREAEAF
Jiangsu Dasheng Intelligence Nantong, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of RMB10,000,000 30%
Technology Development 9 March 2020, textile products
Co, Ltd. limited liability company
TEHAE BN ER hEAMER  —TTF ERHEHER AR 30%
ARRA =ANE  BREERHF 10,000,000 7C
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10. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 10. AR EIBRNIRE (&)

EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued) R A TNIRE (B)
Place and date of Particulars of
incorporation and issued share

Name of associate form of legal entity Principal activities capital Interest held

BeENRERE HMERIHBRARUAR FEEE BRITRAFEE FrsfEs
TEERER

Subsidiaries of Hongyan Vietnam Holdings Limited

BREGHERERARZMEAT

— Lanyan Denim Garment Hong Kong, 2 June 2015, Investment holding in HKD100 45%
Vietnam Holdings Limited limited liability company Hong Kong

— BT RR SR AR FHE —T-1F REBETREER 1007&7T 45%
ARAT ANAZR  EREELA

— Hualida (Vietnam) Garments Vietnam, January 2016, Manufacturing of Vietnam Dong 45%
Limited Company limited liability company garments in Vietnam ("'VND")

39,870,000,000

— Nz () REARE BE - —T-RF-A  RERRENK 39,870,000,000 45%

AR BREERA wrE(EEE])

A subsidiary of Henglun International (Hong Kong) Limited

BHER (55) AR AT HBAT

Henglun Textile (Vietnam) Vietnam, November 2019, Manufacturing of garment USD5,000,000 30%
Company Limited limited liability company fabrics in Vietnam
Bims 8 (i) BRAA) BE —E-NF+—A RERSEEH 5,000,000 % 7T 30%
BEREFRT

A subsidiary of Jiangsu Dasheng Intelligence Technology Development Co,, Ltd.
THAE BN ERAR AR ZHB AT

Nantong Dasheng Third Nantong, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of RMB23,030,000 30%
Cotton Textile Co, Ltd. 26 April 2020, textile products
limited liability company
HBRKE=RHBERATF FEAMER T 22F REREEHES AR 30%
A=A - 23,030,000 7T
BREELQH
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10. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 10. IESREIRNIRE @)
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued) REE QA RINRE ()
2019
—T-NF
RMB000
AREFT
Aggregate carrying amount of BRI 3EE KBk & A R AR EE
individually immaterial associates 286,228 238,560
Aggregate amounts of the Group's share of: &2 [ fE (5 A N & IB48%8 -
Profit from continuing operations FELE BN 44,668 27,257
Investment in a joint venture REELENRE
2019
—E-AF
RMB'000
ARETFT
Opening amount Hi) 258 4,709 3,876
Share of profits DEET 456 833
Dividends received from joint venture entity B & &% & 52 WEAI LB (1,318) -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 3,847 4,709
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interests REBNE SRS sk AREE -
in the joint venture.
Set out below is the joint venture of the Group as at 31 December NTER-_ZZE-_TF+-_A=+—H E=F
2020 which, in the opinion of the directors, is immaterial to the REAHAEBUTNEEZAEBEERE -
Group. The joint venture as listed below has share capital THEeatEZRANEREBRAN - A
consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the RNEBEERE  HafMK G MBERm

Group; the country of incorporation or registration is also its REFEZ LM -
principal place of business.
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10. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 10.
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

Investment in a joint venture (Continued)

LS R SIRMRE ()

REELENRE (F)
—T-F

Nature of investment in a joint venture as at 31 December 2020: R-E-_TEF+_A=1T—"HBHEAZDEN
REME
Place and date of Particulars of
incorporation and issued share
Name of the joint venture form of legal entity Principal activities capital Interest held
RELXER AMEIBEREHAR  FTEXEH ERTREFE FrisREs
EEERER
Texhong Tan Cang Logistics Vietnam, 30 June 2016, Cargo transportation by land VND20,000,000,000 50%
Joint Stock Company limited liability company and sea; other assistant
services; cargo landing-over,
storage, management
consulting
RIFEYRBID A BE - —T-RF BEEYES  Hit 20,000,000,000 50%
~NA=TH - WYAE &Y BrEE
BREMERA HiE - @7
BB

Texhong Tan Cang Logistics Joint Stock Company is a private
company and there is no quoted market price available for its

RIFBEY R AR ABLART  HixH
W BT IZIRE

shares.
2019
—ET-NF
RMB'000
AREFT
Carrying amount of the immaterial TBREANSSPEMERE
the joint venture 3,847 4,709
The Group's share of profit from NEE DI ER LT
continuing operations & Y A 456 833
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BE-_T-_ZF+-A=t+—HILFE

11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 1. BEHEINERMI A

31 December 2020

—2-Bf+tZA=1-H

Assets at

fair value
through the
profit and loss

AT
BHNAE
RMB’000
ARBF7

Financial

assets at
amortised cost
RE AR
ZEREE
RMB’000

AR® T

Total

st
RMB'000
ARETF T

Assets as per balance sheet BEEBRMIEE
Trade and bills receivables Y E 5 REEHEA

(Note 13) (Hi13) - 1,735,593 1,735,593
Derivative financial instruments TESB TR (ffzt20)

(Note 20) 111,167 - 111,167
Deposits and other receivables Rd R E AR RN

(Note 14) (FiaF14) - 61,916 61,916
Pledged bank deposits and cash EERRIEARERE R

and cash equivalents (Note 15) ReZ@EW(HE15) - 2,944,223 2,944,223
Total st 111,167 4,741,732 4,852,899

31 December 2020

—9=SF+=A=+-A

Liabilities at
fair value
through the
profit and loss

BAFERA
REMAE
RMB'000
AREFT

Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R
B8Rz
Htheme s
RMB’000
AR® T

st
RMB'000
AREF T

Liabilities as per balance sheet ~ BE&EXRFHIERE
Borrowings (Note 19) & (Hit19) - 7,063,103 7,063,103
Derivative financial instruments PTHES BT A (faE20)

(Note 20) 234,704 - 234,704
Trade and bills payables (Note 23) BB 5 REEFE M F23) - 2,652,659 2,652,659
Accruals and other payables HEiRE R REMEMRR

excluding deposits and (TMefERe EEAE)

statutory liabilities (Note 24) (Kizt24) - 387,587 387,587
Lease liabilities (Note 8) MEaEHTS) - 185,745 185,745
Long-term payables (Note 21) REERBRRR (MaE21) - 153,912 153,912
Total @t 234,704 10,443,006 10,677,710
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11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 1. BEHEINEMIE#)

(Continued)
Assets at
fair value Financial
through the assets at
profit and loss amortised cost Total
BAFERA RS AR
BaMEE JEZemEE et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBTFT ARETFT
31 December 2019 —E—hF
+=—HA=+—H
Assets as per balance sheet EESBXRMIIEE
Trade and bills receivables FEWE 5 R EBEFIA
(Note 13) (Krat13) - 1,534,673 1,534,673
Derivative financial instruments  $74 & & T B (A73F20)
(Note 20) 287,435 - 287,435
Deposits and other receivables 3% 4 K E fih FEUR BR 3k
(Note 14) (Krzt14) - 19,252 19,252
Pledged bank deposits and cash B iEFRITER NS K
and cash equivalents (Note 15) 3R & B (AfzE 15) - 1,852,337 1,852,337
Total B=t 287,435 3,406,262 3,693,697
Liabilities at
fair value Other financial
through the liabilities at
profit and loss amortised cost Total
RE
BATERA BRI BR 2
BERABE Hit e @B E fBEt
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AREFT AREFT ARSFT
31 December 2019 —E-hE
+t=A=+—-H
Liabilities as per balance sheet EEEBXRMIIERE
Borrowings (Note 19) &8 (Hfzt19) = 8,284,623 8,284,623
Derivative financial instruments PTTEESBMIT A (Fat20)
(Note 20) 29,530 - 29,530
Trade and bills payables (Note 23)  JENE 5 R Z &8
(HfiE23) - 3,035,868 3,035,868
Accruals and other payables TERRE A REMERMERR
excluding deposits and ("eERER
statutory liabilities (Note 24) EEBE) (i 24) = 408,106 408,106
Lease liabilities (Note 8) MERBHEs) - 171,156 171,156
Long-term payables (Note 27) REERBRF (K 21) - 238784 238,784
Total @t 29,530 12,138,537 12,168,067
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12. INVENTORIES AND PROPERTIES UNDER 12. GERBEDYE
DEVELOPMENT

Inventories 78
2019
—T-NF
RMB000
AEEFT
Raw materials JRATE 2,344,703 3,189,503
Work-in-progress ER S 446,589 481,381
Finished goods RUAK 1,004,426 1,429,206
3,795,718 5,100,090

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in
‘cost of sales’ amounted to RMB12,905,462,000 (2019:
RMB14,963,466,000) (Note 26).

In 2020, the Group made an inventory provision of approximately
RMB70,287,000 (2019: RMB8,957,000). These amounts have been
included in ‘cost of sales’ in the consolidated income statement
(Note 26).

As at 31 December 2020, no inventories (2019: a total net book

amount of RMB66,580,000) were pledged as collateral for the
Group's bank borrowings (Note 19).

Properties under development

BREBABIA [HEXDS] NFEKAS
£ AN R#12,905462,000 T (ZE—NE - A
R #14,963,466,000 7T ) (M 5E 26) ©

RZZBZZF  AREFREERBAOAR
#70,287,000 (= —LF : AR®8957,000
TL) c ZES BB AREWRERZ [HEK
A AR (B EE26) ©

R=_FE-_ZTF+_A=+—8 #@EEFE(=
T—NF  RAFEEA AR 66,580,000 7T
NFEEMEAANEBESIRITEE 2 B m (M
£F19) o

EELRYES

2019

—ET-NF

RMB'000

ARKEFIT

Land use rights + b {s AR AE 228,680 227,580

As at 31 December 2020, land use rights of RMB228,680,000 (2019:
RMB227,580,000) were in Mainland China with lease terms of 40 to
70 years.

As at 31 December 2020, no construction had started yet, and no
finance cost was capitalized as part of properties under
development (2019: nil).

R-ZTBE-_TBE+-_A=+—08 £ BAHM
K 4 H 55 A B A R 85 228,680,000 T (=&
—heE : AR#227,580,0007T) @ HEHRE A
40FE 704 °

R-ZTB-_TE+_A=+—08 " HAHEE

I BEMKER(CE—LF: ®)EX(L
RERPYEZ D
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13. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 13. EWEZ REEFIE

2019

—T—NF

RMB000

ARKFIT

Trade receivables JEUE 5 FIE 881,453 817,743
Less: provision for impairment VB R E R (15,077) (10,226)
866,376 807,517

Bills receivable e E ] 869,217 727,156
1,735,593 1,534,673

As at 31 December 2020, included in the trade receivables were
amounts due from related parties of RMB123,000 (2019: nil) (Note
35).

The fair values of trade and bills receivables approximate their
carrying amounts.

As at 31 December 2020, bills receivable with a total net book
amount of RMB160,000,000 were pledged as collateral for the
Group's bank borrowings (2019: nil) (Note 19).

The Group generally grants credit terms of less than 90 days to its
customers in Mainland China and 120 days to its customers in
other countries. The ageing analysis of the trade and bills
receivables (including amounts due from related parties of trading
in nature) based on invoice date is as follows:

R-EBE-_FE+_-_A=+—08 EKEBS=X
TH AR B 35 e UK A 3 5 3R T K ET A R #5123,000
TT(ZZT— & : T)(HisE35) »

JEWE 5 R EBEFIRZ A FEBIEREE °

R-ZZE-_TE+-_A=+—08 " REFEH
T AR 160000000 (ZE—NF : T)HW
EREEBEER  IWMEAXEBEGRT
BEEZ IR (FIFE19) °

AEBRFEFABAMEFZEEH KA
WHA METEMBAREF Z2EEHA120
B - EBRE S REEFE(BIEEE BEK
BoME R 2 38) IBEE B E 2 Rk DT U0
T~

2019

—T-NEF

RMB’000

AREFT

Within 30 days 30 HA 1,101,062 1,050,742
31 to 90 days 31290 H 448,412 399,113
91 to 180 days 912180 H 168,690 75479
181 days to 1 year 181THZE 14 17,985 9,694
Over 1 year T E 14,521 9,871
1,750,670 1,544,899

Less: provision for impairment W RE R (15,077) (10,226)
Trade and bills receivables — net EUNE 5 M EEFRTE — 558 1,735,593 1,534,673

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade and
bills receivables, as the Group has a large number of customers.

HRAKERAALETS  WEKRE S MR
BFRESTNEERR o
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13. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 13. EWEZ REEFIE &)

Impairment and risk exposure

Trade receivables

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables.

Information about the impairment of trade receivables and the
Group's exposure to credit risk, foreign currency risk and interest
rate risk can be found in Note 3.1.

Trade and bills receivables are denominated in the following
currencies:

AR K BB i O

W E 5 RE
REBRABBVBHREERIFE ST
FETERHEEEER  RRIARIKESHIE
BEEEFERANNTEEEE -

BEREEEZFBERAKREMEBRNEER
B~ SNE R Ko ) R R O S B B BT RE3 D

FEWE 5 MR EFRE AT EHEHE ¢

2019
—T-NF
RMB'000
ARMTFT
usD ETT 1,116,227 905,040
RMB AR 560,251 519,003
HKD BTT 48,462 100,000
VND WA 25,730 20,856
1,750,670 1,544,899
Movements of the provision for impairment of trade receivables FEWE SHIBRERESSHIOT :
are as follows:
2019
—ET-NF
RMB'000
ARMTFT
At 1 January n—HA—H 10,226 6,588
Accrual of provision for impairment of FHREWE 55018
trade receivables B B A 4,851 3,638
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 15,077 10,226

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables
have been included in net accrual of impairment losses on
financial assets in 2020 and 2019. Amounts charged to the
allowance account are written off when there is no expectation of
receiving additional cash.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying amount of trade and bills receivables.

BEREEGREHEREFERER _F=_F
FR-F-NFRIAFREESREEZRE
BEFE - ERMARERNEIRER &
HE{f B P HIRR A0 FORAS MBS

RBEAH AREEHNEAEERRS
FEWE 5 KRB RMREE
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14.

15.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

14. AARIR - BERHEMERRK

2019

—E-NF

RMB'000

AREFT

Value-added tax recoverable FERIZER 181,914 327,586
Prepayments for purchase of raw materials % B R ) T8 (508 175,746 315,856
Due from related parties (Note 35) Ji&E Uk RE B 5 SR IE (BT At 35) 53,480 -
Prepaid expenses AR 52,037 104,665
Prepaid income tax TR TS HL 40,745 31,133
Deposits for operation BELS 5,229 15,567
Other receivables H fih FEURBR TR 3,207 3,685
512,358 798